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C o r p o r a t e  p r o F i l e

With a rich heritage dating back to 1959,  
sGX-listed F J Benjamin Holdings ltd is an industry 
leader in brand building and management, and 
development of retail and distribution networks 
for international luxury and lifestyle brands across 
asia. Headquartered in singapore and listed on 
the singapore exchange since november 1996, 
F J Benjamin has offices in eight cities, manages 
over 20 iconic brands and operates 226 stores. 

the Group employs over 3,000 employees 
and runs three core businesses:

Luxury and LifestyLe 
fashion retaiLing and 
distribution 

F J Benjamin exclusively retails and 
distributes brands such as Banana 
republic, Catherine Deane, Céline, 
Gap, Givenchy, Goyard, Guess,  
la senza, loewe, raoul, sheridan, 
superdry, tom Ford, Valextra and 
VnC across various territories. 

its retail footprint includes southeast 
asia and Hong Kong. it distributes 
in-house labels raoul and Catherine 
Deane through points-of-sale across 
China, europe, the united states 
and the Middle east.

timepiece distribution 

F J Benjamin exclusively distributes 
timepiece brands – alpina,  
Bell & ross, Chronoswiss, 
Frédérique Constant, Gc, 
Guess, Julien Coudray, nautica, 
superdry, Victorinox swiss army 
and Vulcain across asia.

creative and design 

F J Benjamin’s Creative & Design 
division handles the creation and 
production of raoul designs.
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C o r p o r a t e  D i r e C t o r Y

directors

Mr Frank Benjamin 
Executive Chairman

Mr Keith Tay Ah Kee  
Non-Executive Deputy Chairman

Mr Eli Manasseh (Nash) Benjamin 
Chief Executive Officer

Mr Douglas Jackie Benjamin 
Executive Director

Ms Karen Chong Mee Keng 
Executive Director

Ms Wong Ai Fong 
Independent Director

Mr Chew Kwee San 
Non-Executive Director

Mr Daniel Ong Jen Yaw  
Independent Director

Mr Ng Hin Lee  
Independent Director

company secretary

Ms Karen Chong Mee Keng

soLicitors

Drew & Napier LLC
10 Collyer Quay
#10-01 ocean Financial Centre
singapore 049315

principaL banKers

Citibank Berhad
DBs Bank ltd
Malayan Banking Berhad
oversea-Chinese Banking 
Corporation ltd
rHB Bank Berhad
standard Chartered Bank
the Hongkong and shanghai 
Banking Corporation limited

share registrar

Boardroom Corporate & 
Advisory Services Pte Ltd
50 raffles place 
#32-01 singapore land tower  
singapore 048623

auditors

Ernst & Young LLP
one raffles Quay  
north tower level 18  
singapore 048583
Partner:  
Mr Vincent toong Weng sum 
(since financial year 
ended 30 June 2013)

registered office

10 science park road
#04-01 the alpha
singapore science park ii
singapore 117684
tel : (65) 6737 0155
Fax : (65) 6732 9616
email : info@fjbenjamin.com
Website : www.fjbenjamin.com

03
a n n u a L  r e p o r t  2 0 1 3 / 1 4



e X e C u t i V e  C H a i r M a n ’ s  r e V i e W

dear sharehoLders

We have just come through the worst financial 
year since 2001 when we suffered the fallout 
from the 1997/98 asian financial crisis which 
ravaged the regional retail landscape. 

Consumer sentiment across our key markets was 
generally weak during the year, and it worsened 
in the fourth quarter from april to June. news 
of the mysterious disappearance of Malaysian 
airlines MH370 in March severely hurt retail 
spending and tourism in southeast asia, which 
accounted for 86% of our Group turnover in 
FY14. Both Malaysia and singapore sustained 
double-digit declines in Chinese tourist arrivals in 
the immediate aftermath of the MH370 tragedy. 

While Chinese tourists in north asia curtailed 
spending on luxury items following the Chinese 
government crackdown on gifts and conspicuous 
consumption, shoppers in southeast asia pulled 
back on their purchase of discretionary goods 
including fashion and timepieces. this led 
retailers in singapore especially, to engage 
in rampant and almost yearlong price cutting 
in their bid to boost sales and clear stocks. 

the decrease in sales in north asia and the 
heavy discounting in southeast asia resulted 
in a marked deterioration in our margins. our 
gross margin, which is a rough gauge of our 
operating performance and which measures our 
net sales less the cost of goods sold, fell below 

40% for the first time in five years, from 43% 
in FY13 to 39%. overall, the net loss of $22.1 
million we sustained in FY14 was the biggest 
in 13 years. We believe the worst is behind 
us. our focus in the new financial year ending 
30 June 2015 is to return to profitability as 
soon as possible so that we can again deliver 
acceptable returns to our shareholders.

We believe that asia will continue to be the 
engine driving global growth, even if the heady 
years of high growth give way to more moderate 
and sustainable levels as the region adjusts to the 
“new normal” global environment of volatility and 
unpredictability. We are also confident that our 
track record for managing brands will put us in 
good stead when economies in the region snap 
out from their sluggishness and asia’s increasingly 
affluent customers start to spend again. 

Meanwhile, we have taken steps to mitigate 
the effects of our external environment. 
We have cleared inventory, closed down 
or downsized underperforming stores, 
and cut costs across the Group. 

We will also stay vigilant in ensuring that our 
brand portfolio mix is always in tune with the 
changing needs of our customers. in this regard, 
we are glad that in recent years, we have 
upscaled our fashion portfolio with the addition 
of luxury labels like tom Ford, Goyard, Valextra, 
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FRANK BENJAMIN
Executive Chairman
F J Benjamin Holdings Ltd

and Givenchy, which are more 
resistant to price undercutting seen 
in mass market lifestyle labels.

More recently, our continued strong 
performance in indonesia has seen 
us taking another important step 
in that populous asean country. in 
august, we forged an alliance with 
saratoga, an indonesian investment 
and business group controlled 
by edwin soeryadjaya and 
sandiaga s uno, which involved 
an investment of 25% in both equity 
and debt instruments in the Group’s 
indonesian business. the Group will 
realise a net gain of about $11.5 
million from the transactions. the 
alliance is a strategic milestone for 
F J Benjamin as saratoga will assist 
in the Group’s growth in indonesia 
with a view to an ipo of the business 
when market conditions allow.

For the period under review, some 
of the more significant developments 
in our business included the expiry 
of our exclusive distributorship 
agreements with Girard-perregaux 
in north asia and southeast asia 
in February 2014, the opening of 
superdry, tom Ford and Valextra 
stores in the region, and the 
addition of new timepiece labels.

the Group’s fashion business 
witnessed turbulent times, with tourist 
arrivals and spending down, and 
the rupiah depreciation making 
shopping more expensive for 
indonesian visitors. overall, the 
Group’s fashion business turnover 
managed a five percent increase. 

our timepiece business in the north 
asian markets of Hong Kong, China 
and taiwan contracted 36% in the 
fiscal year just passed on top of a 
31% decline in the previous year.

as we consolidate our retail network 
to improve yields, we expect the 
number of stores in singapore to 
shrink to 35 by the end of FY15 from 
the current 40. the smaller footprint 
in singapore, a developed economy 
with more moderate growth rate and 
where retailers suffer from the triple 
whammy of falling demand, rising 
costs and labour shortage, will allow 
us to focus on the larger and growing 
markets of indonesia and Malaysia. 
We expect the total number of stores 
in these two countries to rise to 202 
by end FY15 from the current 185.

Despite the challenges of market 
conditions and of breaking into 
overseas markets, it is heartening 
to note that our Group’s in-house 
brand, raoul, has continued to 
make headway. We only started 
to roll out an international strategy 
for raoul about four years ago, 
and today, it is already available in 
25 countries, including the fashion 
capitals of london, paris and new 
York. raoul made its foray into China 
in september 2013 with a franchise 
agreement under which the franchisee 
will open 27 stores by 2017. last 
December, the Group inked another 
franchise deal to expand in the 
Middle east with the leading player 
in the luxury business, the Chalhoub 
Group. the latter will open nine 
raoul standalone stores by 2017. 

During the financial year under 
review, Group turnover slipped 1% 
to $368.2 million. the FY14 net loss 
was $22.1 million compared with a 
profit of $4.0 million the year before. 
operating expenses rose 2% to 
$167.0 million due to higher rentals, 
staff costs and depreciation charges. 
Group net gearing rose to 78%. 

the Board has recommended a 
first and final dividend payout 
of 0.25 cent per ordinary 
share (tax-exempt one-tier).

looking ahead, i have confidence 
that our disciplined approach to 
rebalance our brand portfolio and 
cut costs would help us turn around 
the business and position the Group 
to resume sustainable growth.

Finally, i wish to thank our 
management and staff for their 
dedication and hard work during 
a trying 12 months. i am grateful 
for the support of our landlords, 
bankers, business partners and 
associates. My gratitude also 
goes to my fellow Board members 
whose wise counsel and guidance 
have been much appreciated by 
our management team and me. 
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C H i e F  e X e C u t i V e  o F F i C e r ’ s  r e p o r t

dear sharehoLders,

During our financial year 
ended 30 June 2014, market 
forces presented challenges 
which caused us to review our 
business priorities. Many of our 
setbacks occurred in the fourth 
quarter. they reflected protracted 
problems as well as unexpected 
events beyond our control which 
significantly dampened consumer 
sentiment and spending.

since 2012, China’s economic 
slowdown and its crackdown on 
extravagant gifts have led to a quiet 
implosion in luxury spending in 
north asia and to a lesser extent 
in southeast asia. Companies 
targeting the high end segment, 
more used to chalking up growth 
in excess of 20% a year, have 
been reporting lacklustre results.

the restraint in Chinese spending on 
luxury goods badly hurt the Group’s 
timepiece business in north asia, 
and to some extent in southeast 
asia where Chinese tourists are a 
major source of earnings for the 
industry; in singapore, for example, 
they are estimated to spend $2 
for every $5 spent by all tourists.

at the same time, the cost of doing 
business has been rising relentlessly. 

rents in singapore’s shopping 
districts, already the highest in the 
region, have continued to climb 
as new global brands entering the 
market competed for a limited stock 
of prime retail space. Wages have 
also been climbing due partly to 
labour shortage as a result of the 
government’s policy to manage 
the flow of foreign workers. 

Group turnover in FY14 contracted 
for the second consecutive year, 
due mainly to sluggish sales of 
timepieces in north asia, and 
to a lesser extent, in southeast 
asia. the weaker indonesian 
rupiah, which depreciated more 
than 20% against the singapore 
dollar in the last year, also curbed 
spending by indonesian tourists 
in singapore. the subdued 
retail environment precipitated 
one of the most aggressive 
and extended discountings 
across the industry particularly 
in lifestyle brands as retailers 
competed to clear inventory.

financiaL revieW
the Group’s financial 
performance reflected the 
competitive market conditions.
•  Turnover slipped 1% 

to $368.2 million 

•  Operating loss was $12.6 
million against a profit of 
$7.5 million previously

•  Net loss was $22.1 million 
against a profit of $4.0 million 

•  Gross margins dropped four 
percentage points to 39%

•  Cost-to-revenue ratio rose to 
45.3% from 43.8% last year

Gross margins came under pressure 
during the year, resulting in a drop 
in gross profit of $15.1 million for 
the full year, of which $6.9 million 
occurred in the fourth quarter. 
the bulk of the decline in the final 
quarter came from north asia. 

Group operating expenses rose 
2% to $167.0 million due to 
higher staff costs, rentals and 
depreciation charges for new 
stores opened and the full year 
impact of stores opened in FY13. 

the net loss was compounded 
by non-cash provisions totalling 
$5.1 million and an unrealised 
translation loss of $2.7 million 
booked by the Group’s 
indonesia associate company. 

By business segment, the fashion 
business accounted for 74.8% 
of total turnover, up from 70.4% 
the previous year. the timepiece 
business shrank slightly to 25.0%. 
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sales for the Group’s fashion 
business rose 5% to $275.2 
million, while sales for timepieces 
fell 16% to $92.1 million.

Geographically, fashion sales 
in south east asia increased by 
5% while timepiece sales rose 
2% over the previous year. sales 
in indonesia for both fashion 
and timepieces were strong, 
rising 13% from the previous 
year while maintaining constant 
gross margins. However, the 
share of result from the Group’s 
indonesian associate company 
was negatively affected by an 
unrealised translation loss of $2.7 
million booked at the year-end.

indonesia, which has just seen 
a smooth political leadership 
transition, is a good growth market 
with an increasingly affluent middle 
class. the Group forged an alliance 
with indonesian investment firm 
saratoga in august to enhance 
the growth of our business there. 
With our new partners, we are 
optimistic of increasing our market 
share there by introducing new 
brands and extending our retail 
network at a more rapid pace 
with a view to a public listing 
of the business in the future. 

in north asia, the timepiece 
business in Hong Kong decreased 
by 33% while business in China 
fell 43%. sales in taiwan also 
contracted by 45%. the lower 
sales were mainly due to the 
economic slowdown in China, 
the decline in mainland Chinese 
spending in Hong Kong and 
the loss of sales from Girard 
perregaux timepieces following 
the expiry of the distribution 
agreement in February 2014.

retaiL netWorK

as at 30 June 2014, the Group’s 
retail network saw a net increase 
of 14 stores to a total of 226 
stores. this included 40 stores 

in singapore, 73 in Malaysia, 
and one in Hong Kong, all of 
which we operated directly; 
and 112 in indonesia operated 
by our joint venture partner. 

the size of our network rose 
6.0% to 441,000 sq feet. in 
singapore, we will scale back the 
number of stores to 35 by next 
June but expand our footprint 
in indonesia and Malaysia by 
adding 17 more to bring the total 
to 237 stores by June 2015. 

brands

the Group will open a toM ForD 
store in orchard road, singapore 
in november 2015, and the first 
toM ForD store in Jakarta in the 
third quarter of 2015. We had 
a successful opening of the first 
standalone tom Ford boutique 
in southeast asia at singapore’s 
Marina Bay sands in april 2014. 
luxury italian leather goods label 
Valextra also opened its first 
standalone store in southeast 
asia with the opening of an outlet 
in singapore’s premier paragon 
shopping Centre to carry the 
entire range of luxurious hand 
bags, wallets, and luggage.

as the luxury fashion business 
continued to fare well, we also 
opened the second Celine and 
Givenchy boutiques in singapore 
at Marina Bay sands and also the 
first loewe store in Kuala lumpur 
during the year under review. 

We will open the first superdry 
store in singapore in December 
2014 after launching three stores 
in Malaysia. the British brand, 
which debuted in Kuala lumpur 
in 2013, has been trading well.

For the timepiece business, the 
Group added two swiss brands, 
Frédérique Constant and alpina 
to its portfolio. We see demand 
in asia for good quality swiss 
watches at affordable prices.

our in-house flagship brand raoul 
continues to gain momentum in 
international markets. We signed a 
franchise agreement in the Middle 
east with the Chalhoub Group to 
open nine raoul standalone stores 
by 2017. the Middle east deal 
came after an earlier franchise 
agreement in China. these 
developments underscore raoul’s 
growing popularity and should 
result in a franchise network of 
37 stores in the next five years.

outLooK 

We will continue to grow our 
business in the region with new 
brands and new stores with a 
focus on indonesia and Malaysia. 
We will also be prudent in 
managing our business risks as 
we seek new opportunities which 
will present themselves in this 
changing market dynamics. 

appreciation

i would like to extend my 
appreciation to all the management 
and staff of the Group who 
have worked tirelessly in these 
difficult market conditions. i am 
also grateful to our principals, 
business associates, partners and 
landlords for their support. We 
will work smart to improve our 
operations and to deliver improved 
results in the coming year.

ELI MANASSEH (NASH) BENJAMIN
Chief Executive Officer
F J Benjamin Holdings Ltd
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G e o G r a p H i C a l  p r e s e n C e

new York
Milan

73 Malaysia

1 Hong Kong

taiwan

shanghai

40 singapore
112 indonesia

showrooms/offices offices

retaiL footprint    
FY 2012 FY 2013 FY 2014

singapore 28 35 40
Malaysia 65 67 73
indonesia 95 106 112
Hong Kong 5 4 1
australia – – –
Total 193 212 226
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C o r p o r a t e  s t r u C t u r e

investment Holdingactive Dormant

F J BenJaMin 
HolDinGs ltD

Southeast Asia

singapore
F.J.B. investment  
100%

F J Benjamin Concepts  
100%

F.J.Benjamin Concepts (thailand) 
49% (79% voting rights)

F J Benjamin ideas 
100%

Ferro Designs 
100%

Fashion Dynamics HK ltd 
100%

BMi (Hong Kong) 
100%

arcangel limited 
60%

atelier arcangel limited 
100%

Fashion Dynamics international  
100%

Malaysia

thailand

Hong Kong

uK

taiwan

italy

indonesia

North Asia

Europe

USA

Australia

F J Benjamin (M) 
100%

F J Benjamin (H.K.) 
100%

pt Meteor prima sejati Group of Companies  
100%

F J Benjamin (taiwan)  
100%

F J Benjamin italy s.r.l 
100%

F. J. Benjamin Fashions (us) 
100%

arcangel inc 
100%

F J Benjamin (aust) 
100%

F J Benjamin (singapore) 100%

F J Benjamin lifestyle  100%

F J Benjamin lifestyle  100%

F J Benjamin (shanghai)  100%

F J D 48% 

Devil’s Bar 50% 

F J Benjamin 
leading Watch Concepts 100%

Fashion Dynamics 
singapore pte ltd 100%

Fashion Dynamics 
(shenzhen) 100%

F J Benjamin luxury timepieces 
100%
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G r o u p  F i V e - Y e a r  F i n a n C i a l  s u M M a r Y
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FY 10 11 12 13 14

120,000

60,000

30,000

0

150,000

90,000

137,085
131,434

133,951
131,306

102,620

2.00 2.00

1.00

0.50

0.25

FY 10 11 12 13 14

0.5

1.0

1.5

2.024.10
23.11 23.55 23.09

18.04

FY 10 11 12 13 14

25

20

15

10

5

0 0

FY 10 11 12 13 14

9,226

17,042

19,670

7,293

(19,204)

20,000

15,000

10,000

5,000

-5,000

-10,000

-15,000

-20,000

0

1.45

2.28
2.44

0.78

(3.89)

FY 10 11 12 13 14

0

0.5

-0.5

-1.0

-1.5

-2.0

-2.5

-3.0

-3.5

-4.0

1.0

1.5

2.0

2.5

10
f  J  b e n J a m i n



turnover by business segment turnover by geographicaL segment 

25%

92.1 mil

0%

0.9 mil

75%

275.2 mil

total

368.2 mil

FY2014

2010
$’000

2011
$’000

2012
$’000

2013
$’000

2014
$’000

PROFIT & LOSS
turnover  289,355  353,918  393,237  373,403  368,200 
operating profit / (loss) before Borrowing 
Costs and exceptional items

 9,558  18,102  22,046  7,014  (12,596)

Borrowing Costs  (1,758)  (1,775)  (2,663)  (3,307)  (3,572)
exceptional items  (367)  (771)  (289)  2,819  (1,350)
share of results of associates / Joint Venture  1,793  1,486  576  767  (1,686)
profit / (loss) Before taxation  9,226  17,042  19,670  7,293  (19,204)
profit / (loss) after taxation  
and non-Controlling interest

 8,260  12,963  13,898  4,447  (22,102)

Basic earnings / (loss) per share (cents)  1.45  2.28  2.44  0.78  (3.89)
operating Margin (%) 3.3 5.1 5.6 1.9 (3.4)

BALANCE SHEET
non-Current assets  43,842  44,432  61,920  55,648  50,058 
net Current assets  97,582  90,859  81,942  82,834  62,622 
shareholders’ equity attributable 
to owners of the parent

 137,085  131,434  133,951  131,306  102,620 

(net Cash) / net Debt  (7,356)  7,259  52,108  69,328  80,029 
return on equity (%) 6.0 9.9 10.4 3.4 (21.5)
net Debt to equity  n/a  0.06  0.39  0.53  0.78 
net tangible assets per share (cents)  24.10  23.11  23.55  23.09  18.04 
Dividend per share (cents)  2.00  2.00  1.00  0.50  0.25

total

373.4 mil

FY2013
0%

0.7 mil

29%

109.8 mil

71%

262.9 mil

total

373.4 mil

FY2013

17%

61.6 mil

2%

8.3 mil

81%

303.5 mil

total

368.2 mil

FY2014

11%

39.9 mil

3%

10.5 mil

86%

317.8 mil

Fashion licensing timepieces southeast asia north asia others
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B o a r D  o F  D i r e C t o r s

mr franK benJamin

Date of appointment as Director: 
5 June 1973
Date of last re-election: 
31 October 2013
nature of appointment:
Executive
Board committees served on: 
Executive Committee (Chairman)  
and Nominating Committee

Mr Frank Benjamin is the executive Chairman 
and founder of F J Benjamin. With more than 50 
years of experience in the retail industry,  
Mr Benjamin formulates the Group’s strategy for 
growth and future expansion into new markets. 
He is also responsible for defining the overall 
strategy and vision of the Group, and oversees 
developmental activities to create long-term 
growth drivers and enhance shareholder value.

mr Keith tay ah Kee

Date of appointment as Director: 
1 August 1996
Date of last re-election: 
31 October 2013
nature of appointment:  
Independent
Board committees served on: 
Executive Committee, 
Nominating Committee (Chairman) 
and Remuneration Committee

Mr Keith tay is the non-executive Deputy Chairman of 
the Group. He was Chairman and Managing partner of 
KpMG peat Marwick from 1984 to 1993. He also serves 
on the board of the singapore international Chamber of 
Commerce, of which he was Chairman from 1995 to 1997.

He is Chairman of stirling Coleman Capital ltd. He sits 
on the boards of rotary engineering limited, sats ltd, 
singapore reinsurance Corporation ltd, singapore post 
limited and Ytl starhill Global reit Management limited.
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mr eLi manasseh 
(nash) BenJaMin

Date of appointment as Director:  
26 July 1973
Date of last re-election:  
31 October 2013
nature of appointment:  
Executive
Board committees served on:  
Executive Committee

Mr eli Manasseh (nash) Benjamin 
is the Chief executive officer of 
the Group, and has been with F 
J Benjamin since 1968. He has 
over 40 years of experience in 
the fashion retail and timepiece 
distribution businesses. He is 
involved in the formulation of 
long-term corporate strategies 

mr dougLas benJamin

Date of appointment as Director: 
3 November 2000
Date of last re-election: 
28 October 2011
nature of appointment: 
Executive
Board committees served on: 
Executive Committee

With F J Benjamin since 1989,  
Mr Douglas Benjamin is the 
Chief operating officer of the 
Group. He works closely with 
nash Benjamin to coordinate the 
Group’s activities. in addition, he 
directs the international expansion 
of house label raoul and helms 
the raoul design team in his 
capacity as co-creative director. 

and policies of the Group, 
maintains a close relationship 
with all the Group’s principals 
and oversees the business 
development arm of the Group.

in 2007, nash was awarded the 
ernst & Young entrepreneur of the 
Year award in the lifestyle category. 
He also won the Chief executive 
officer award (market cap. below 
s$300 million) in 2009 at the 
singapore Corporate awards.

Mr Benjamin sits on the boards of 
the national Museum of singapore 
and st. James Holdings limited.

in 2012, Douglas was awarded 
the ernst & Young entrepreneur 
of the Year award in the 
lifestyle and retail category.

Mr Douglas Benjamin sits on the 
board of trustees for the KK Hospital 
& Health endowment Fund.
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mr ng hin Lee

Date of appointment as Director: 
11 July 2014
Date of last re-election: 
Not applicable
nature of appointment: 
Independent
Board committees served on: 
Audit Committee (Chairman)

Mr ng has more than 30 years of financial 
experience and is a Fellow member of the 
institute of singapore Chartered accountants. 
prior to joining the Group, he was the Chief 
Financial officer of singapore post limited, 
advanced systems automation limited and 
Gul technologies singapore limited where he 
was also the co-founder, executive Director 
and member of the audit Committee and 
investment Committee. He currently sits on 
the boards of two non-listed companies. 

ms Karen chong mee Keng

Date of appointment as Director: 
1 April 2005
Date of last re-election: 
28 October 2011
nature of appointment: 
Executive
Board committees served on: 
Executive Committee

Ms Karen Chong is the Chief 
Financial officer and Company 
secretary of the Group. she has 
been with the Group since 1997. 
she is a Fellow of Cpa australia, 
association of Chartered Certified 
accountants and a member of the 

B o a r D  o F  D i r e C t o r s

institute of singapore Chartered 
accountants. prior to joining the 
Group, she was with a public 
accounting firm for several years 
and had accumulated more 
than 20 years of financial and 
operational experience in the local 
and overseas retail industry.
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ms Wong ai fong

Date of appointment as Director: 
3 November 2000
Date of last re-election: 
25 October 2012
nature of appointment: 
Independent
Board committees served on: 
Audit Committee and  
Remuneration Committee (Chairman)

Ms Wong ai Fong was formerly 
the General Manager of Marketing 
Communications, responsible for 
leading the Group’s marketing and 

public relations in singapore as well 
as its regional markets between 1994 
and 2000. Ms Wong was previously 
Director of Communications, nokia 
asia pacific for over 10 years. she 
has more than 20 years of marketing 
and communications experience in 
various industries including financial 
services, media, entertainment and 
publishing as well as arts and culture.

mr cheW KWee san

Date of appointment as Director: 
3 November 2008
Date of last re-election: 
25 October 2012
nature of appointment: 
Non-Executive
Board committees served on: 
Audit Committee
and Remuneration Committee

Mr Chew is an executive Director 
of the tecity Group and Council 
Member of the tan Chin tuan 
Foundation. the tecity Group was 
founded by the late banker and 
philanthropist, tan sri (Dr) tan 
Chin tuan; its philanthropic arm 
is the tan Chin tuan Foundation. 
 
He sits on the boards of Malaysia 
smelting Corporation Bhd and the 
national Council of social service.

mr danieL ong Jen yaW

Date of appointment as Director:  
30 November 2011
Date of last re-election:  
25 October 2012
nature of appointment:  
Independent
Board committees served on:  
Audit Committee
and Nominating Committee

Mr ong is the executive Director 
of food and beverage company, 
sushi-tei pte ltd. Mr ong has over 
20 years of working experience in 
diverse fields ranging from banking 
and finance, property investment 
and development, manufacturing, 
cruise operations and food and 
beverage business. Mr ong sits on 
the board of st. James Holdings ltd.
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s e n i o r  M a n a G e M e n t

singapore

IAN LIM
Chief Executive Officer
F J Benjamin (Singapore) Pte Ltd 

Mr lim joined the Group in 2009 with 15 
years of experience in the fashion and 
retail industry. Mr lim is responsible for the 
operations and business development in 
singapore. He also heads the Group's Gap 
and Banana republic and la senza businesses 
in singapore, Malaysia and indonesia.

ODILE BENJAMIN
Creative Director
Fashion Dynamics Singapore Pte Ltd

Mrs Benjamin joined the Group in 1993 and 
heads the Creative & Design division, which is 
responsible for the design and development of 
in-house label raoul. Mrs Benjamin has been 
instrumental in the brand-building, strategic 
and operational direction of the brand.

SAMUEL BENJAMIN
Group Director – Timepiece Division 

Mr Benjamin joined the Group in 1991.  
He was appointed senior Vice-president of  
F J Benjamin Fashions (u.s.) inc. in 2009 and 
was responsible for the new York office and 
the raoul operations in the united states. He 
relocated back to singapore in november 2012.

Mr Benjamin now oversees the operations 
of the timepiece businesses in the region.

KIM TIONG QUAH
Director – Wholesale 
F J Benjamin (Singapore) Pte Ltd

Mr Quah joined the Group as product 
Manager in 1982 and rose through the 
ranks, and now oversees the distribution 
business of sheridan and Guess Handbags.

BEN BENJAMIN
General Manager – Luxury Division 
F J Benjamin (Singapore) Pte Ltd

Mr Benjamin joined the Group in 2005 
and is responsible for the overall business 
operations of the Group’s luxury brands 
Céline, Givenchy, Goyard, tom Ford and 
Valextra as well as the development and 
identification of new brands for the division.

DIMITRI AUBERT
General Manager – Luxury Timepieces
F J Benjamin (Singapore) Pte Ltd

Mr aubert is responsible for high-end 
timepiece labels in singapore, thailand and 
indonesia. Based in singapore, he oversees 
the overall operations of the businesses in 
these markets, including sales, brand-building 
and growth of the distribution network.
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maLaysia

OON LAI YEOH
Chief Executive Officer 
F J Benjamin (M) Sdn. Bhd.

Mr Yeoh joined the Group in 2012 with more 
than ten years of experience in fashion retailing. 
He is responsible for the operations of F J 
Benjamin (M) sdn. Bhd. and its subsidiaries. 

SOON WAI HOOI
Chief Operating Officer / Chief Financial Officer
F J Benjamin (M) Sdn. Bhd.

Mr Hooi joined the Group in 2010 and 
oversees the operations as well as the 
financial and accounting functions of 
the Group’s entities in Malaysia.

CHEE WEI TONG
General Manager – Timepiece Division  
F J Benjamin (M) Sdn. Bhd.

Mr tong joined the Group in 1992 and is 
responsible for the business operations,  
sales and marketing of the luxury 
timepieces in Malaysia.

hong Kong / china / taiWan

TONY FUNG
Chief Executive Officer  
F J Benjamin (H.K.) Limited
F J Benjamin (Taiwan) Ltd
F J Benjamin (Shanghai) Co., Ltd. 

With the Group since 1997, Mr Fung is 
responsible for the operations, marketing 
and distribution of the Group’s timepiece 
business in Hong Kong, Macau, 
Mainland China and taiwan.

LYDIA CHAU
Chief Financial Officer
F J Benjamin (H.K.) Limited

Ms Chau joined the Group in 1996 and is 
responsible for overseeing the operations in 
Finance, logistics, information technology and 
administration in Hong Kong, China and taiwan.

DAVID NAM 
General Manager  
F J Benjamin (Shanghai) Co., Ltd 
Commercial Director 
F J Benjamin (Hong Kong) Ltd 

Mr nam has been with the Group since 
2001 and is responsible for the day-to-
day running of the business, marketing 
and distribution of timepieces in Mainland 
China, as well as the management of the 
Bell & ross business in Hong Kong.

united states

KAREN KATZMAN
President – Sales 
F J Benjamin Fashions (U.S.) Inc.

Ms Katzman joined the Group in 2010 and 
works closely with Mr Douglas Benjamin to 
formulate sales strategies and to develop 
relationships with specialty retailers, on-
line retailers and major department 
stores in the united states for raoul.
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Catherine established her label in london in 2005. 
Born in ireland, raised in south africa and inspired 
by living in london and Hong Kong, Catherine’s 
designs take cultural references from her nomadic 
lifestyle and her passion for long-forgotten craft 
techniques and femininity.

traditional techniques with a modernist twist 
of simplicity form the foundation of Catherine’s 
works and are fuelled by the continual search 
for new methods from around the world. 
Juxtaposition plays an important part in the 
aesthetic of Catherine’s designs. Between 
textile and craft, strength and fragility, old and 
new, there is a constant balance drawn in all 
that she creates; every ying has a yang.

all of these elements combine to create one of 
a kind, wearable piece that enriches women 
with a sense of a femininity, beauty and 
uniqueness, designed to be worn forever. 

atelier arcangel is the creative parent 
to Catherine Deane the brand and is an 
international operation with studios and 
showrooms in Hong Kong and new York as 
well as a design studio based in london.  
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Céline’s collection of ready-to-wear, leather 
goods, shoes and accessories, perpetuates 
a sense of subtle luxury which originated 
from Céline Vipiana, the label’s founder.

the French luxury fashion house founded in 1945 
is now owned by the lVMH Moët Hennessy louis 
Vuitton Group. With British fashion designer 
phoebe philo at the helm as Creative Director 
since 2008, Céline is now synonymous with 
modern, forward-looking, but functional women’s 
fashion. Ms philo, Vogue’s Designer of the 
Year in 2010, was credited with reviving the 
sartorial sparkle of Céline with her designs that 
focus on proportion, line, cut and silhouette. 

she presented her first Céline ready-to-wear 
collection for spring/summer 2010 at the paris 
Fashion Week. Céline is now considered a 
trendsetter for the fashion industry. in the past 
few years, it has built up a proud cachet of 
accessories, evidenced by the significant waitlist 
around the world for its famous luggage bags. 

since the reconstruction of Céline’s design 
philosophy, the brand has also captured new 
customer segments and is now celebrated 
by opinion leaders, fashion-influencers 
and insiders, and Céline consumers.

F J Benjamin is the exclusive partner and 
distributor in singapore, Malaysia and indonesia. 
as at June 30, 2014, Céline has five stores 
across southeast asia – two each in singapore 
and indonesia and one in Malaysia.



Givenchy, the French luxury label 
owned by lVMH Moët Hennessy 
louis Vuitton, was founded in 
1952 by Hubert de Givenchy. 
the brand captures the essence 
of sophistication and elegance 
through the sharp tailoring and 
the edgy designs of riccardo tisci, 
Creative Director since 2005. 

the designs are infused with a 
gothic yet sensual spirit, and the 
ready-to-wear collections feature 
a unique pairing of hard and soft 
materials, making Givenchy by 
riccardo tisci unforgettable.

With his cool and chic taste, tisci 
has translated the feminine and 
aristocratic codes of the House 
of Givenchy into modern day 
romanticism and sensuality.

F J Benjamin was appointed 
franchisee for the brand four years 
ago for singapore and indonesia. 
since the opening of its first store in 
singapore in 2010, Givenchy has 
opened its second store in May 2014 
at the shoppes at Marina Bay sands. 

there are now three Givenchy 
stores, one in indonesia 
and two in singapore. 



since its beginnings in 1792, 
Goyard has been the archetypal 
luxury trunk manufacturer in France. 
the brand was born through 
Francois Goyard’s apprenticeship 
at Maison Morel, the official trunk 
maker to the French royalty. after 
Morel’s passing in 1853, Francois 
Goyard took over the business and 
renamed it la Maison Goyard.

under Francois’s son, edmond, 
la Maison Goyard became ‘the’ 
luggage- maker of the international 
set. as proof of its prestige, 
aristocratic families would have 
their Goyard luggage marked 
with their own coat of arms.

in 1998, Jean-Michel signoles, an 
entrepreneur who created French 
children’s clothing brand Chipie, 
bought over the 150-year old label 
from descendants of its original 
founders. He introduced new colors 
-- such as white, blue and green 
to brighten Goyard’s traditional 
collection of dark colours.

Goyard is known for its hard-sided 
trunks and tote bags with its signature 
hand-painted chevron motif, which 
has been its definitive emblem 
since 1892. it is also renowned 
for monogramming its durable, 
lightweight bags with the initials 
of their customers upon request. 
Goyard’s waterproof luggage 
bags are constructed of lightweight 
poplar and strong birch, with 
nickel hardware and leather trim. 
the fabric is made of linen, cotton 
and hemp woven together, and 
carefully treated in a painstaking 
manual process in its workshop at 
Carcassonne, France. the same 
workshop continues to produce 
special made-to-order bespoke pieces.

the brand has since grown to expand 
its repertoire to beyond trunks, 
and today produces a collection 
of bags and small leather goods 
alongside its classic trunk range.

the Goyard boutique in singapore 
opened in December 2013 at 
ngee ann City shopping centre.
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the spanish leather luxury brand loewe opened a 
new store in Kuala lumpur in the pavillion shopping 
mall. the store was designed by peter Marino, 
the world renowned architect who specialises 
in retail spaces for luxury fashion brands.

loewe’s heritage and luxury appeal were the main 
inspirations for the concept. the new loewe store 
will offer bags along with small leather goods 
and accessories for men and women. signature 
collections such as the iconic amazona, created in 
1975 and still highly sought after today, as well as 
the Flamenco, inspired by a design from the late 
1980s, is on display along with the latest offerings. 

to commemorate the opening in Malaysia, 
loewe offered amazona atelier, an exclusive 
service which allows clients to custom-make 
the iconic amazona bag in four different types 
of leather in different colour combinations.

loewe was founded five generations ago in 
Madrid as a leather workshop dedicated to 
crafting exquisite creations for the nobility of the 
day. it has remained spain’s leading authority on 
leather know-how ever since. loewe uses only the 
very best quality leather for its products and the 
leather is handworked by skilled artisans using 
expertise passed down through the generations.



raoul, now in its 12th year, has grown from 
strength to strength. the in-house brand of F J 
Benjamin Group began as a men’s shirt label 
and has since evolved into a full collection of 
ready-to-wear for men and women (including the 
Cruise and pre-Fall Collection), leather goods 
and accessories. the brand is continually making 
headway both regionally and internationally with 
its mandate to create affordable luxury products 
without compromise on great design and quality.

raoul’s growth as an international fashion brand 
has been aided by strong global coverage from 
leading periodicals like the times, Vogue uK, 
Marie Claire uK and Gioia italy. Celebrities 
like Kate Middleton, Freida pinto, Kourtney 
Kardashian, Jennifer lawrence, Viola Davis, 
Minnie Driver, elle Macpherson and Zhang Ziyi 
were seen wearing raoul at international events. 

progressing on its path of internalisation with 
its team of consultants in Milan, new York and 
london, raoul continues to expand its collection 
and marketing efforts to grow its european 
and us sales. the brand participated in both 
new York and Milan Fashion Week and has a 
growing list of stockists such as Harrods, liberty 
and Fenwick in uK, saks Fifth avenue and 

neiman Marcus in usa, larinascente in Milan, 
KaDeWe in Berlin, and printemps Haussmann 
in paris. raoul is also retailed online on portals 
such as saks Direct and Bloomingdales Direct. 
the showrooms in new York and Milan support 
the growth in the us and european markets.

raoul signed up raphael Young, the accessory 
and footwear designer whose creations have been 
worn by Beyoncé, lady Gaga and rihanna, to 
design shoes and handbags from Fall Winter 2014. 
the first collection hit the stores in august 2014. 

F J Benjamin inked a franchise deal for raoul in 
the Middle east with the Chalhoub Group, the 
leading company for the luxury business across 
the Middle east. the deal will see the opening 
of nine standalone raoul stores in the region by 
2017. the Middle east franchise comes after 
earlier agreements in China and underscores 
raoul’s growing popularity. raoul will expand to a 
franchise network of 37 stores in the next five years.

as of 30 June 2014, the Group operates three 
raoul standalone stores in singapore and indonesia. 
other standalone licensed stores include two in 
China and plans are underway to open more stores.
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the toM ForD boutique which 
opened in singapore on 29 april 
2014 at the shoppes at Marina Bay 
sands is modelled after the brand’s 
new York flagship, carrying the 
complete range of toM ForD men’s 
and women’s ready-to-wear and 
accessories, eyewear, fragrance, 
beauty and fine jewellery. the 
elegant and private environment, 
beautifully outfitted in the signature 
palette of greys and deep browns 
with chrome and glass accents, 
surrounds the visitor in an atmosphere 
of exclusivity and refined comfort. 

the Group is planning to take the 
designer’s vision of modern luxury 
beyond singapore’s shore, with a 
flagship store in Jakarta, indonesia in 
2015 and another store in Malaysia

the label’s namesake founder gained 
international fame for his turnaround 
of the Gucci fashion house, where 
he was creative director for both 
Gucci and Ysl from 1994 to 2004. 
Born in austin, texas, he moved 
to new York during his teens and 
graduated in architecture from new 
York’s parsons the new school 
for Design. He moved to Milan to 
work for Gucci in 1990, initially 
as the company’s Womenswear 
Designer, then becoming its Design 
Director and Creative Director. 
at Gucci, he was responsible for 
the design of all product lines, 
from clothing to perfumes, and 

for the Group’s corporate image, 
advertising campaigns and store 
design. During the 10 years that 
tom Ford was Creative Director for 
Gucci and the Gucci Group, sales 
rose from us$230 million to almost 
us$3 billion, making Gucci one 
of the largest and most profitable 
luxury brands in the world.

He left Gucci in 2004 following 
its sale to ppr, and in april 2005 
announced the creation of the 
toM ForD brand. He was joined 
in the venture by Domenico De 
sole, who helmed Gucci during 
tom Ford’s tenure there. 

since the creation of the toM ForD 
brand in april 2005, the brand 
partnered with Marcolin Group to 
produce and distribute optical frames 
and sunglasses. an alliance with esteé 
lauder also led to the creation of the 
toM ForD BeautY brand which 
currently includes 15 private blends,  
6 signature fragrances and a 
complete cosmetics collection which 
launched in Fall 2011. in april 
2007, the designer’s first directly 
owned flagship store opened in 
new York at 845 Madison avenue 
and it coincided with the debut 
of the toM ForD menswear and 
accessory collection. in september 
2010, during an intimate presentation 
at his Madison avenue flagship, 
the much anticipated womenswear 
collection was unveiled. 
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Founded in 1937 by Giovanni Fontana in 
Milano, Valextra combines the delicate craft of 
ancient saddlery with timeless, understated styles 
in luxury bags, travel cases and accessories. 
Valextra is also recognised for its innovation: 
many Valextra pieces have become historical 
best-sellers and icons of design. they include the 

award-winning “24 Hour Bag” that was exhibited 
at MoMa, new York, the first ever “Grip spring” 
coin purse for men, and the “avietta 48”, one 
of the most coveted airplane cabin bags. 

the singapore boutique located at paragon 
carries Valextra’s range of luxurious hand bags, 
wallets, luggage for both women and men.

a Valextra creation is recognised for its quality, 
clean lines, discreet details such as the thread 
used for stitching, hand-lacquered piping, soft 
light-coloured leather lining and hardware 
accents finished in an array of more than 20 
colours. Valextra is produced only in italy by 
about a team of 60 highly skilled craftsmen. 
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in summer 2014, Banana republic partnered  
with Finnish fashion and design house, Marimekko, 
on an exclusive collection that uniquely married 
Banana republic’s modern american style with 
Marimekko’s most iconic textile designs. Bold prints, 
bright colours and new silhouettes were introduced 
to the collection. 

spring 2014 introduced a new brand platform 
based on “the true outfitters of Modern american 
style,” which was inspired by the brand’s legacy 
and pioneering spirit rooted in san Francisco. the 
campaign championed true relationships, true styles 
and true emotions by illustrating life’s most precious 
and authentic moments that are shared between 
loved ones. in essence, it celebrated authenticity 
with style and the California state of mind, which 
are core qualities that define Banana republic.

For Holiday 2013, the brand made gifting more 
accessible to everyone. During the festive season, 
the brand diversified its offerings with a variety 
of styling options for customers. Banana republic 
also released a limited edition collection with 
l’Wren scott, which was designed to inspire 
glamorous holiday parties out on the town or at 

home. plus, three original prints were created 
exclusively for this collaboration. to help bring 
this collection to life, an in-store shopping event 
was held at paragon shopping Centre in early 
December. it was hosted by leading fashion stylist, 
Jerome awasthi, where he went through key 
holiday looks over champagne and canapés.

in Fall 2013, Banana republic collaborated with 
issa london on a capsule collection that was 
inspired by the safari roots of Banana republic’s 
heritage and the spirit of an exotic journey. the 
collection marked the first time that issa london 
had collaborated with a global retailer and 
was a merger of Banana republic’s covetable 
sense of effortless modernity with issa london’s 
feminine shapes and use of signature prints.
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Gap introduced a new branding 
campaign, “Back to Blue,” in 
Fall 2013 which celebrated the 
brand’s denim heritage and its 
philosophy of living the authentic 
life. adam Driver, star of HBo hit 
series, Girls, and model-actress 
and great granddaughter of 
author ernest Hemingway, Dree 
Hemingway, were selected to front 
the campaign for the season. 

in addition to the new campaign, 
Gap also announced the seventh 
annual Best new Menswear 
Designers in america too. this 
project was launched in 2007 to 
shine the spotlight on up-and-coming 
american menswear designers. 
the class of 2013 included paige 
Mycoskie from aviator nation, 
Matt Baldwin from Baldwin Denim, 
liam Fayed and sam Fayed from 
Bespoken and ernest alexander 
sabine from ernest alexander. 

Meanwhile, the limited edition Gap 
x GQ collection was introduced in 
singapore, Malaysia and indonesia 
for the first time.

in Holiday 2013, Gap focused on 
the idea of spreading love, hope and 
joy with its “Make love” campaign. 
it built on the idea of getting back 
to what matters most, which Gap 
had introduced earlier in Fall with 
the “Back to Blue” campaign. 
Cultural icons such as Cyndi lauper 
and tony Bennett, were part of the 
campaign that hope to inspire people 

to spread the love and celebrate the 
spirit of togetherness. F J Benjamin 
celebrated the campaign ideas in 
singapore, Malaysia and indonesia 
through private movie screenings of 
blockbusters for customers and their 
loved ones.

For spring 2014, the “lived in” 
campaign featured a cast of emerging 
and talented young artists including 
Birdy and rJ Mitte, who expressed 
confidence and comfort in the clothes 
that they wear.

the spring 2014 collection was 
the first collection that was created 
by new Creative Director rebekka 
Bay, who was inspired by Gap’s 
expression of american optimism and 
casual style. 

as part of ongoing efforts to raise 
awareness of Gap’s denim heritage, 
the entire in-store denim experience 

was brought to denim lovers across 
singapore with a #1969denim truck 
that “popped up” in key locations in 
early april. More than 1,000 fans 
dropped by Gap’s very first pop-up 
truck to get fitted for their perfect 
pairs of jeans with the complete 
#1969denim experience.

as a follow-up to spring, the 
“lived in” campaign evolved in 
summer 2014 with a focus on 
music. the seasonal campaign 
featured promising musicians such 
as say lou lou and Wardell, who 
embodied the truest expression of 
“lived in”. singapore and Malaysia 
partnered with Good Vibes Festival 
to bring the music experience 
to customers in end august. 
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synonymous with a young, sexy and 
adventurous lifestyle, Guess is a global 
iconic brand known for its quality, marketing 
creativity and trendsetting advertising. 

During a 20-year partnership with Guess inc., the 
Group has grown the retail footprint of Guess from 
a single modest store at Wisma atria in singapore 
back in May 1991, to 94 stores across four different 
concepts in singapore, Malaysia and indonesia. 
they are Guess, Guess accessory, Guess Kids 
and Guess Footwear. of these, nine are located in 
singapore, 36 in Malaysia and 49 in indonesia

in keeping with the brand’s commitment to continuously 
introduce iconic ad campaigns, Guess collaborated 
with the multiple award-winning, Bollywood icon, 
priyanka Chopra, for its Holiday 2013 advertising 
Campaign. priyanka, a former Miss World, an actress 
and recording artist, is one of the most recognised and 
celebrated talents in india and international cinema. 
With the indian movie industry exploding on a global 
stage, and Guess having a brand presence in 87 
countries, the brand could not have found a better 
global brand ambassador. paul Marciano, Creative 
Director for Guess?, inc., was quoted as saying that 
“Choosing priyanka reinforces our celebration of 
multi-talented, dynamic and accomplished women.”

in the new financial year, the F J Benjamin Group 
will continue to enhance the brand and refresh 
key stores in the region with the introduction 
of the latest retail concepts in these stores.
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guess accessory

With a comprehensive collection 
of watches, bags, shoes, jewellery, 
sunglasses and perfume, the Guess 
accessory store (Gas) concept 
has established itself as a leader in 
providing one-stop fashion accessories 
services to the customer. since its 
debut in 2005, the Group has rapidly 
established its presence with 42 
stores across singapore, Malaysia 
and indonesia as at 30 June 2014.

the Guess accessory store continues 
to reinvent itself and refresh its 
store concept and product offering 
to complete the lifestyle needs of 
an aspirational young adult.

With the success of the “Black 
Concept” since its introduction in 
December 2010, all Gas stores 
have since converted to the concept. 
the “Black Concept” incorporates 
many innovative and progressive 
ways of displaying the products 
such as using black mannequins, 
fibre optic lighting, and even a 
special concept “runway” table.

31
a n n u a L  r e p o r t  2 0 1 3 / 1 4



la senza is where the fun-loving girls go for the 
hottest lingerie. our customer is vivacious, stylish 
and holds her own at parties. We offer her an 
affordable way to feel sexy with our range of 
fashion-forward bras, panties, and accessories. 
Whether she is showing off on the dance floor 
or staying at home, we have everything she 
needs to feel good about her femininity.

under a newly evolved brand direction, la senza 
re-establishes the brand’s leadership position with 
the launch of the new “pin-up” concept store.  
this new concept celebrates a fun, young, sassy 
and sexy attitude, with the use of strong iconic 
brand images and emotive brand experience 
which connect with the aspirational 23-year-olds. 

store windows are continuously refreshed with 
a compelling product story, while the in-store 
experience focuses on fashion lifestyle.  
in-store bra experts armed with comprehensive 
product knowledge also recommend the 
best fit for each customer, with the aim of 
having the needs of every customer met. 



For over 20 years, F J Benjamin has distributed 
exclusive sheridan home furnishing to fine stores 
across southeast asia. Devoted to great design, 
quality and innovation, sheridan elevates the 
experience of the home to a place of self-expression 
and luxury. sheridan employs the finest materials 
and construction, and offers bed linen with up to 
1,200 thread count.

as at June 30 2014, the points-of-sale in  
southeast asia includes singapore, Malaysia, 
philippines and indonesia.
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Born from an inspirational trip to tokyo, superdry 
was created in 2003 by Julian Dunkerton and 
James Holder – both of whom are still the lifeblood 
of the brand today. sold in more than 100 
countries, superdry is a true British fashion success 
story with a brand Dna synonymous with intricate 
details design, premium fabrics and British-tailored 
cuts. With its roots based around Japanese imagery 
and vintage american sportswear, superdry has 
evolved into the most diverse British lifestyle brand 
with a true global reach. Collections of depth and 
style are sold via more than 400 global retail points 
from london to Mumbai, new York to Hong Kong. 

launched to fill a gap in the market, the brand 
has upheld its reputation for innovation. 
Menswear and accessory collections quickly 
grew and in 2005 superdry launched its first 
womenswear collection. initially mirroring the 
signature men’s styles, the collection has matured 
to include fashion-forward outerwear, denim 
alongside feminine dresses and stylish knits. 

Malaysia will have four retail stores and one 
concession by end 2014. singapore will open 
its first retail store also by the end of the year.
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a playground for shoe lovers and 
addicts, Malaysia’s VnC brand 
pushed the boundaries in footwear 
by introducing hot off the runway 
styles at incredibly affordable prices. 
VnC approaches shoe making as 
an art form and design challenge. 
Drawing inspiration from the great 
maisons, fashion week events and 
up-to-the-minute fashion news, VnC 
creates footwear that is distinctive, 
desirable and on trend. the same 
approach is also extended to VnC’s 
bags and accessories collections. 
By adhering to affordability, 
trendiness and a quick-to-market 
strategy, VnC is today an iconic 
brand with a huge global following 
of adoring shoes enthusiasts.
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since its creation, Bell & ross has 
constantly strived to perfect the 
look of tools dedicated to aviation 
and featuring amazing functional 
mechanics. in 2014, Bell & ross 
went even further, presenting 
a totally exclusive motorcycle, 
the B-rocket, constructed with 
the engineers at shaw Harley 
Davidson, who share the brand’s 
values of innovation, performance 
and precision. in the wake of the 
B-rocket, Bell & ross is launching 
two limited edition watches which 
perform complementary functions 
and are complementary in size.

Bell & ross are extraordinary watches 
created for people of the extremes. 
pilots, divers, sailors, astronauts all 
choose functionality, legibility and 
the strength of Bell & ross watches. 
Whether they are flying at high 
altitude, diving into the ocean depths, 
exposing themselves to extreme 
temperatures or resisting the strongest 
acceleration, the very best time-
measuring instruments are essential.

Designed so that each function is 
optimised and to ensure that the 
essential is never compromised by 
the superfluous, Bell & ross watches 
are, above all, authentic. there are 
no meaningless details, each serves 
a purpose. a Bell & ross timepiece 
is created based on four crucial 
elements i.e. readability, performance, 
precision and water-resistance.

thirty years of unbowed 
fascination for fine mechanical 
wristwatches – the brand 
Chronoswiss has influenced the 
mechanical renaissance like 
hardly any other. Known for its 
high quality swiss components, 
the brand is associating with 
exceptionally exquisite timepieces 
by connoisseurs all over the world.

Genuine handcraft, true 
craftsmanship and the 
preservation of ancient traditions 
such as guilloche à main and 
enamel are the key values of the 
brand. Chronoswiss is dedicating 
an exclusive edition to the revival 
of these traditional techniques.
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Following the successful launch of 
the first Heart Beat Manufacture 
Calibre in 2004, Frédérique 
Constant has presented every year 
an additional version to its Heart 
Beat Manufacture range. some 
features remained constant, such 
as the signature aperture, perfectly 
centred at the six o’clock position. 
each year, however, new design 
features have been added; the Heart 
Beat is constantly being revised, 
updated and technically advanced.

in 2014, Frédérique Constant will 
introduce the new FC-945 silicium 
Heart Beat Calibre, improved in 
terms of reliability, durability and 
pure technical excellence. For the 
past two years, the r&D Department 
at Frédérique Constant has been 
designing, developing and improving 
the 126 components contained in 
the all-new Heart Beat Manufacture. 

Frédérique Constant, which was 
established in its current form in 
1988, is involved in all the stages 
of watch production, from initial 
design to final assembly. Watches 
manufactured under its trademark 
are either designed by Frédérique 
Constant or by independent 
designers contracted for a specific 
series of models. strong emphasis 
is placed on watch design to keep 
abreast of trends and customer 
preferences. Frédérique Constant 
uses cutting-edge computer software, 
principally computer aided design 
software, to assist in the watch 
design and development process. 

their mission is not to restrict the 
interest in Frédérique Constant 
watches to a limited and elitist 
circle of connoisseurs but 
rather to a broader selection of 
appreciative enthusiasts who want 
to enjoy high quality classical 
watches at sensible prices.

the Julien Coudray 1518 timepiece 
pays tribute to the heritage of an 
exceptional personality who lived 
500 years ago. it is positioned firmly 
at the peak of fine watchmaking. 

the brand signature – Manufacture de 
grande horlogerie – reflects a three-
fold ambition. the first is to revive 
the grand horological tradition while 
subtly conveying a “royal” touch 
entirely in tune with the history of the 
name Julien Coudray. the second is 
to create a surprise effect by invoking 
differentiating brand values.  

the third is to draw present and future 
clients into a dimension of emotions 
– because the term “grand” evokes 
fine craftsmanship, a rare spirit, a 
different way of envisaging horology.

the Competentia 1515 movement 
is made entirely from solid gold 
or platinum, is equipped with a 
power reserve indicator, a service 
indicator, a day/night indicator 
and a one-minute tourbillon. 
Despite the complication level, 
this caliber does not exceed five 
millimetres in height, to ensure that 
the watch remains comfortable to 
wear, though adorned with a dial 
comprising eleven enamel parts. 
the peripheral indexes, a modern 
vision of the 16th Century clocks, 
are made from enamel and gold. 
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after having introduced the concept 
of the modern sports watch with the 
alpina 4 in 1938, alpina comes 
back with the concept of ‘4’ in 
it’s alpiner collection. the alpiner 
‘4’ is a professional alpine watch 
featuring the 4 sports properties: 
antimagnetic, antishock, Water-
resistant and stainless steel case. 

From the very beginning, as far back 
as 1883, alpina has been associated 
with horological innovation. Whether 
it was their innovative way of creating 
an excellent working environment, 
or through the introduction of new 
quality control criteria before anyone 
else, alpina has always sought ways 
to improve how things are done.

the story of alpina was originally 
brought to life when swiss watch 
making visionary Gottlieb Hauser 
founded the “alpina swiss 
Watchmakers Corporation,” and in 
doing so united the leading swiss 
independent watchmakers, who 
became known as the “alpinists.”

initially, the Corporation was 
developed to optimize the 
manufacturing of movements and 
timepieces by forming a federation 
of cooperating manufacturers and 
suppliers, but alpina soon started 
developing and producing in-house 
calibres and chronometers. in 
1901, the trademark “alpina” was 
registered and appeared for the 

first time on high-end calibres and 
watches produced by Gottlieb Hauser.

in the 1920s, alpina was already 
being sold in over 2,000 outlets 
worldwide, an exceptional 
figure for those days. it is no 
exaggeration to say that alpina 
was one of the first leading 
manufacturers of swiss watches.

alpina’s mission is now and has 
always been to manufacture extremely 
reliable professional sports watches, 
respecting and implementing the 
“alpinist principle” in manufacturing, 
design and technological innovation.

the Vulcain watch manufacturer 
was founded in 1858 and is the 
inventor of the alarm complication for 
wristwatches. the legendary Cricket 
calibre made the Vulcain watches 
popular with american presidents 
including Harry s. truman, earning 
the brand its prestigious reputation 
as “the Watch for presidents.”

in april 2014, Vulcain marked 
an important milestone opening 
its first ever worldwide flagship 

store in Beijing. the brand has 
unveiled its new 50s president’s 
“pegasus” model, an enriched 
enamel collection to celebrate the 
grand opening of the flagship store. 
this significant model expresses a 
universal symbol of wisdom and 
knowledge to celebrate Vulcain’s 
time-honoured watchmaking tradition. 
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the Gc python Diver Chic is the highlight of the 
latest collection to express distinctive quality 
and style. the rose gold (pVD) watch case in 
combination with the vivid and radiant jungle 
colours elevate this design to perfection. the colour 
splendour fully covers the bezel and soft calf leather 
bracelet in exciting python pattern design. the fresh 
look is further enhanced by a genuine shimmering 
mother-of-pearl dial protected by a sapphire crystal.

Gc’s signature “smart luxury” stands for the 
brand’s commitment to provide quality Made in 
switzerland timepieces and luxury products for men 
and women, all at a surprisingly accessible price 
point. each timepiece makes its own clear statement 
of elegance and prestige, opening the door to the 
luxury segment with the key of relentless attention 
to detail. all Gc timepieces proudly bear the 
prestigious sWiss MaDe label. 

With this timepiece, Gc once more underlines  
its smart luxury signature – premium swiss  
Made quality meets style that conveys joy for 
women everywhere. 

the 130th anniversary of Victorinox 
is celebrated with a timepiece 
echoing the unique values of the 
famous swiss army knife: authentic, 
robust and reliable in all conditions. 
that watch is inoX. Designed and 
built to withstand unusual levels of 
stress, it has passed a battery of 
130 ruthless strength tests with flying 
colours, and is further reinforced 
with a removable bumper protector 
composed of nylon and silicone. 
inoX is a pledge of quality. 

Founded by Karl elsener in 1884, 
Victorinox is renowned worldwide 
for its first creation, the original 
swiss army Knife. this modest yet 

worldwide beloved object inspires all 
the Victorinox product lines, including 
the Victorinox swiss army timepieces.

each Victorinox swiss army timepiece 
embodies the spirit of the legendary 
original swiss army Knife, a 
universal symbol of functionality, 
innovation, quality and iconic design. 

From functionality to innovation, 
from iconic design to quality, 
Victorinox swiss army ensures 
that every timepiece like the swiss 
army Knife that inspired it, turns 
into a true “companion for life”.

39
a n n u a L  r e p o r t  2 0 1 3 / 1 4



superdry watches made its debut with 
clean dials, naive aesthetics, rough-
cut designs and timeless utilitarian 
silhouettes. this edgy brand combines 
vintage americana styling with Japanese 
inspired clean lines using heavily crafted 
straps with thick, quality leather or 
silicone, finished with multi-colour pops to 
showcase their brand name to perfection.

Guess Watches presents its new 
assortment of blue wrist accessories 
that are easy-to-wear yet eye-catching 
to make a statement throughout  
the seasons.

inspired by Guess’s signature style, 
rigor, the watch features industrial 
screw details with a denim-inspired 
design. to complete the fashion 
rendering is a small amount of glitz 
on the top ring and dial, just the right 
amount of sparkle for any Guess girl.

nautica is a leading water-inspired 
global lifestyle brand with apparel 
for men, women and children, 
accessories and a complete home 
collection. nautica products are 
classics that are rich in performance, 
color and authentic style.

the nautica heritage of love and 
respect for water, everywhere, 
everyday, is reflected in every 
aspect of its brand categories. 
its quality products are crafted 
with integrity and are enhanced 
with performance capabilities.

over the past three decades, nautica 
has become one of the most important 
and most recognised american 
brands throughout the world. 

nautica Watches combine distinctive 
styling, bold colors and unique 
design. nautica’s functionality reflects 
an energetic lifestyle that appeals 
to customers around the globe.  

the nsr 103 is a bold dive style 
sport watch that is rugged, yet 
comfortable to wear. it features 
a Japanese date movement with 
date window at 3 o’clock and 
the 45 mm brushed silver case 
is topped with a rugged black 
turning top ring. signature design 
elements such as luminous hands 
and markers and comfortable 
water resistant straps capture the 
essence of the nautica brand.

the nsr 103 holds true to the core 
of nautica Watches fusing the best 
of classic american style with the 
latest in technical innovation.

For the male consumer, Guess’s blue 
print comes with a combination of 
textures, treatments and finishes in 
the unique blue hue. Built using the 
signature men’s silhouette, the style is 
that of a form-fitting blue silicone strap 
that pairs with a matching etched 
top ring and multifunction dial with 
honeycomb-patterned details.

Brilliant, bold and breathtaking, blue 
is indeed the latest fashion statement 
coming from Guess.
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Corporate GovernanCe report

The Board of Directors (the “Board”) of F J Benjamin Holdings Ltd (the “Company”) is committed to high standards 
of corporate governance and fully supports and upholds the principles in the Code of Corporate Governance 
2012 (the “Code”). For effective corporate governance, the Company has put in place various self-regulatory and 
monitoring mechanisms as described below. 

BoarD oF DIreCtorS

the Board’s Conduct of its affairs – principle 1 

Apart from its statutory responsibilities, the Board sets the overall strategy of the Company and its subsidiaries 
(the “Group”) as well as policies on various matters including major investments, key operational initiatives and 
financial controls, reviews the Group’s financial performance and establishes risk management procedures. The 
Board has adopted a set of internal controls which lists out the approval limits for capital expenditure, investments 
and divestments and bank borrowings at Board level. Approval of sub-limits is also provided at management level 
to facilitate operational efficiency.

To facilitate effective management, certain functions have been delegated to  various Board Committees, namely the 
Executive Committee, the Nominating Committee, the Remuneration Committee and the Audit Committee. 
  
The Board meets regularly on a quarterly basis and as required. Important and critical matters concerning the Group 
are also tabled for the Board’s decision by way of written resolutions, faxes, electronic mails and tele-conferencing. 

The attendance of the Directors at these meetings during the financial year is as follows:

Board
Executive 
Committee

Nominating 
Committee

Remuneration 
Committee

Audit
Committee

No. of meetings
Held Attended Held Attended Held Attended Held Attended Held Attended

Frank Benjamin 4 3 4 3 2 1 NA NA NA NA
Keith Tay Ah Kee 4 4 4 4 2 2 1 1 NA NA
Eli Manasseh (Nash)
 Benjamin 

4 4 4 4 NA NA NA NA NA NA

Douglas Benjamin 4 3 4 3 NA NA NA NA NA NA
Karen Chong 4 4 4 4 NA NA NA NA NA NA
Wong Ai Fong 4 4 NA NA NA NA 1 1 4 4
Chew Kwee San 4 4 NA NA NA NA 1 1 4 4
Daniel Ong Jen Yaw 4 4 NA NA 2 2 NA NA 4 4

Newly appointed Directors are briefed on the Group’s business activities, strategic direction, corporate governance 
and the regulatory environment in which the Group operates as well as relevant laws and regulations. Mr Ng Hin 
Lee who was newly appointed on 11 July 2014 was given a detailed briefing by the senior management on the 
Group structure, business risks and challenges faced by the Group as well as the growth strategies of the Group. 
A tour of the facilities was also arranged for the Director for better understanding of the activities within the Group.

Directors are provided with opportunities for continuing education or briefings in areas such as directors’ duties and 
responsibilities, changes to regulations and accounting standards and industry-related matters, so as to be updated 
on matters that affect or may enhance their performance as Board or Board Committee members. In addition, 
Directors are invited from time to time to attend professional programmes for Directors conducted by the Singapore 
Institute of Directors and other relevant bodies. The Company has an on-going training budget for the Directors to 
fund their participation at industry conferences and seminars, and their attendance at any training programme in 
connection with their duties as directors.
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Board Composition and Balance – principle 2

As at the end of the financial year, the Board comprises eight Directors, three of whom are Independent Directors. 
An additional Independent Director was appointed on 11 July 2014.

Based on its composition, the Board is able to exercise objective judgement on corporate affairs. The composition 
of the Board is reviewed annually by the Nominating Committee to ensure that the Board has an appropriate mix 
of expertise, experience and independence needed to discharge its duties effectively. The diversity of the Directors’ 
experience allows for the useful exchange of ideas and views. The Board is satisfied that no individual member of the 
Board dominates the Board’s decision-making and that there is sufficient accountability and capacity for independent 
decision-making. 

The Board has determined that Mr Keith Tay be considered independent notwithstanding that he has served on the 
Board for more than nine years as he has consistently exercised strong independent judgement in the best interests 
of the Company in the discharge of his Director’s duties in Board and Board Committees. Mr Keith Tay has no 
association with the Management that could compromise his independence.

The Board has also determined that Ms Wong Ai Fong be considered independent notwithstanding that she has 
served on the Board for more than nine years as she has continued to demonstrate strong independence in character 
and judgement in which she has discharged her responsibilities as a Director in the Board and Board Committees. 
Ms Wong Ai Fong has no association with the Management that could compromise her independence.

The Board, taking into account the nature of operations of the Group, considers its current size to be adequate for 
effective decision-making.

Chairman and Chief executive officer – principle 3

The Chairman and Chief Executive Officer (“CEO”) functions are assumed by different individuals, thus ensuring an 
appropriate balance of power and authority.

The Chairman, Mr Frank Benjamin, is an Executive Director. Besides giving guidance on the corporate direction of 
the Group, his role includes the scheduling and chairing of Board meetings and the controlling of the quality, quantity 
and timeliness of information supplied to the Board and assists in ensuring compliance with the Company’s corporate 
governance guidelines. 

The CEO, Mr Eli Manasseh (Nash) Benjamin, brother of Mr Frank Benjamin, is also an Executive Director. He 
supervises the day-to-day business operations with the support of the other Executive Directors and Management, as 
well as formulating long-term corporate strategies and policies of the Group.

The Group believes that the appointment of a lead independent director for ease of contact by shareholders is 
unnecessary as the respective Independent Directors are well-known personages in their fields of expertise and they 
have demonstrated high commitment in their role as Directors and have ensured that there is a good balance of 
power and authority. 

access to Information – principle 6

The Board members are provided with board papers a few days in advance of meetings so that sufficient time is 
given to the Board members. The board papers set out the relevant financial information that review the Group’s 
performance in the most recent quarter and other information which includes background or explanatory information 
relating to the matters to be brought before the Board. The Directors make enquiries and request for additional 
information, if needed, during the presentations.
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The Board also has access to minutes and documents concerning all Board and Board Committee meetings.  
In addition, the Board members also have access to all minutes of Executive Committee meetings.

The Board also has separate and independent access to the Management and Company Secretary. The Company 
Secretary attends all Board meetings and is responsible for ensuring that Board procedures are followed and 
applicable rules and regulations are complied with. The Board also has access to independent professional advice, 
if necessary, at the Company’s expense.

nomInatInG CommIttee (nC)

The NC is chaired by Mr Keith Tay and its members are Mr Frank Benjamin and Mr Daniel Ong. With the exception 
of Mr Frank Benjamin, the other two are Independent Directors. 

Board membership – principle 4

In accordance with the Articles of Association, the Directors are required to submit themselves for re-election and 
re-nomination at regular intervals of at least once every three years. Under its written terms of reference approved 
by the Board, the NC has the following main responsibilities:

(a) to review the Board structure, size, composition and independence;

(b) t o make recommendations to the Board on all Board appointments and re-appointments, including making 
recommendations on the composition of the Board;

(c)  to develop the criteria for the selection of Directors and identify candidates for approval by the Board, to fill 
Board vacancies as and when they arise as well as put in place plans for succession;

(d)  to review training and professional development programs for the Directors;

(e) to determine independence of each Director; and

(f)  to determine whether a Director, who has multiple board representations, is able to and has been adequately 
carrying out his duties as Director of the Company.

To address the time commitments of Directors who sit on multiple boards, the Board and Board Committees meeting 
dates are scheduled in advance at the beginning of each calendar year. The Board believes that each Director 
should personally determine the demands of his/her competing directorships and obligations and assess how much 
time is available to serve on the Board effectively. Accordingly, the Board has reviewed and is satisfied with the time 
commitment of the Directors and has not made a determination of the maximum number of board representations a 
Director may hold.

The NC is responsible for the selection, appointment and reappointment of Directors.

(a)  The NC carries out a review of the Board composition at least annually as well as on each occasion that an 
existing Director gives notice if his/her intention to retire or resign. 

(b)  The NC identifies suitable candidates for appointment to the Board after considering the skills required in the 
Board to achieve the Group’s strategic and operational objectives.

(c)  All Directors must submit themselves for re-appointment at regular intervals of at least once every three years. 
Article 102 of the Company’s Articles of Association provides that one-third of the Directors shall retire from 
office by rotation and be subject to re-appointment at the Company’s AGM.
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(d)  The NC takes into consideration the Directors’ contribution and performance in its deliberations on the 
re-appointment of existing Directors. The assessment parameters include attendance record, preparedness, 
intensity of participation and candour at meetings of the Board and Board committees as well as the quality 
of intervention and special contribution.

The profile and information of the Directors as at the date of this report are set out on pages 12 to 15 of the  
Annual Report.

Board performance – principle 5

The NC is responsible for reviewing and evaluating the effectiveness of the Board as a whole and the contribution 
by each Director. 

The NC carries out assessments of the performance of and the contribution by each Director with inputs of the 
Chairman and CEO. The assessment of the Directors includes qualitative and quantitative criteria such as attendance, 
participation at meetings and contributions to the Group outside the Board setting. The performance measurement 
ensures that the mix of skills and experience of Directors continue to meet the needs of the Group. 

remuneratIon CommIttee (rC)

procedures for Developing remuneration policies – principle 7
level and mix of remuneration – principle 8

The RC is chaired by Ms Wong Ai Fong and its members are Mr Keith Tay and Mr Chew Kwee San. All the 
Directors are Non-executive Directors. With the exception of Mr Chew Kwee San, the other two Directors are 
Independent Directors. 

Under its written terms of reference approved by the Board, the RC has the following main responsibilities:

(a)  to ensure that remuneration policies and systems that support the Company’s objectives and strategies are in 
place and being adhered to;

(b)  to co-ordinate annual reviews of the Company’s remuneration policies and practice to ensure they are 
comparable with the pay and employment conditions within the industry and in similar companies; 

(c)  to recommend the remuneration of Executive Directors and key executives to the Board for endorsement in 
accordance with the approved remuneration policies and processes; 

(d)  to provide advice as necessary to Management on remuneration policy for employee categories other than 
those covered in paragraph (c) above;

(e)  to review the remuneration, terms of employment and promotion of all employees of the Group who are 
related to any of the Directors; and

(f)  to recommend the Directors’ fees of  Non-executive Directors to the Board. Directors’ fees are only paid to 
Non-executive Directors and are approved by Shareholders at the Annual General Meeting.

The RC adopts a transparent procedure for fixing the compensation packages of individual Directors. No Director is 
involved in deciding his or her own compensation.
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The RC assists the Board in ensuring that Directors and key executives of the Group are fairly remunerated for their 
performance and individual contribution to the overall performance of the Group, taking into account the performance 
of the Group and the individual Directors respectively. The performance-related elements of compensation are 
designed to align the interests of the Executive Directors with those of the Shareholders and are determined using 
appropriate and meaningful measures to assess the performance of the Executive Directors. In discharging its 
functions, the RC may obtain independent external legal and other professional advice as it deems necessary, at the 
expense of the Company.

The remuneration package comprises a fixed component and a variable component. The fixed component is in the 
form of a basic salary while the variable component is in the form of a performance bonus which is linked to the 
Group and individual performance.

The Board has considered that there was no circumstance that required the remuneration policy to be submitted to 
the Annual General Meeting for approval.

Disclosure of remuneration – principle 9

The following table tabulates the composition of the Directors’ compensation:

Directors
Directors’ 

Fee
Basic 

Salary

Variable 
Performance 

Bonus

Benefit-in-
Kind And 

Others Total
Executive Directors
$500,000 to $749,999
Mr Frank Benjamin #

Mr Eli Manasseh Benjamin #

Mr Douglas Benjamin #

$250,000 to $499,999
Ms Karen Chong

–
–
–

–

92%
94%
95%

88%

0%
0%
0%

7%

8%
6%
5%

5%

100%
100%
100%

100%

Non-Executive Directors
Below $250,000
Mr Keith Tay
Mr Ng Hin Lee *
Ms Wong Ai Fong
Mr Chew Kwee San
Mr Daniel Ong 

100%
–

100%
100%
100%

 –
–
–
–
–

–
–
–
–
–

–
–
–
–
–

100%
–

100%
100%
100%

* Appointed on 11 July 2014.
# No variable performance bonus awarded

The top five key executives of the Group who are not Directors of the Company and whose remunerations falls within 
the following bands are as follows:

Range of Remuneration No. of Executives
$500,000 to $749,999 1
$250,000 to $499,999 4
Total   $2,075,832

The Board is of the view that disclosure of the remuneration details of each director and key management personnel 
as recommended by the Code will reveal commercially-sensitive information to competitors. Given the highly 
competitive talent market in the niche industry, it is in the best interests of the Group that specific details of the 
remuneration of each director and key management personnel be kept confidential.
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The following indicates the composition (in percentage terms) of the annual remuneration of employees who are 
immediate family members of the Directors.

Relationship
Basic Salary 

and allowance
Variable 

Performance Bonus Benefit-in-kind Total
$350,000 to $399,999
Relating to the Chairman
Relating to an Executive Director

82%
91%

7%
7%

11%
2%

100%
100%

$250,000 to $299,999
Relating to the Chairman
Relating to the Chairman

87%
90%

7%
7%

6%
3%

100%
100%

auDIt CommIttee (aC)

accountability and audit – principles 10 and 12

The Board is accountable to the Shareholders while the Management is accountable to the Board. The Board 
approves the quarterly financial statements and authorises the release of the results to the Shareholders. From time 
to time, the Board also provides its Shareholders with updates of new business developments, material contracts 
entered into and other material information via SGXNET announcements.

The AC is chaired by Ms Wong Ai Fong and its members are Mr Chew Kwee San and Mr Daniel Ong. On 11 July 
2014, Mr Ng Hin Lee was appointed as an Independent Director and Chairman of the AC. With the exception of 
Mr Chew Kwee San, the other three Directors are Independent Directors.

The Board ensures that the members of the AC are appropriately qualified to discharge their responsibilities, with the 
members, including the Chairman, having accounting or related financial management expertise and experience. 
The members of the AC keep abreast of relevant changes to accounting standards and issues which have a direct 
impact on the financial statements, through regular updates from the External Auditor or other professionals. 

Under its written terms of reference approved by the Board, the AC has the following main responsibilities:

(a)  to review the financial and other information to be presented to Shareholders, the system of internal control 
and risk management, and the audit process;

(b)  to maintain an appropriate relationship with the Company’s External and Internal Auditors, and to review the 
scope, results, effectiveness and objectivity of the audit process; 

(c)  to review and evaluate the adequacy of the system of internal control, including accounting controls, taking 
input from external audit, internal audit, risk management and compliance functions;

(d) to review the audit plan and audit report with the External Auditor;

(e) to review the scope of the internal audit plan with the Internal Auditor and approve it; 

(f)  to review the quarterly and annual financial statements, including announcements to Shareholders and the 
Singapore Exchange Securities Trading Limited (“SGX-ST”) prior to submission to the Board; 
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(g)  to review and approve interested person transactions to ensure that these transactions are carried out at arm’s 
length and on normal commercial terms and in the best interest of the Company and its minority shareholders; 
and

(h)  to review the independence of the External Auditor and to make recommendations to the Board regarding 
the nomination of the External Auditor for appointment or re-appointment.

The AC has explicit authority to investigate any matter within its terms of reference. The Committee has full access to, 
and the co-operation of the Management, as well as the External and Internal Auditors respectively. The Committee 
also has full discretion to invite any Director or any member of Management to attend its meetings.

The AC also reviewed the adequacy of the whistle blowing policy instituted by the Company through which staff 
may, in confidence, raise concerns about possible improprieties in matters of financial reporting or other matters. The 
objective of such policy is to ensure that arrangements are in place for independent investigation of such matters and 
for appropriate follow-up actions. The AC confirms that no reports have been received under the policy. 

In FY2014, a total of four AC meetings were held. The AC also held one meeting with the External Auditors and the 
Internal Auditor without the presence of the Management, to discuss the reasonableness of the financial reporting 
process, the system of internal controls, and the significant comments and recommendations by the auditors. 

The Group has complied with Rule 712 and Rule 715 or 716 of the Listing Manual issued by the Singapore 
Exchange Securities Trading Limited in relation to its engagement of auditors. 

The AC, having reviewed the non-audit services provided to the Group and the Company by the External Auditor, 
and being satisfied that the nature and extent of such services will not prejudice the independence and objectivity 
of the External Auditor, is pleased to recommend their re-appointment. Fees of $425,000 were paid to the External 
Auditor of the Group during the year for audit and non-audit services. Of this, fees for non-audit services amounted 
to $112,000.

risk management and Internal Controls – principle 11

The Board, with the assistance from the Executive and Audit Committees, is responsible for the governance of risk 
by ensuring that Management maintains a sound system of risk management and internal controls to safeguard 
shareholders’ interests and the Group’s assets, and determines the nature and extent of the significant risks which the 
Board is willing to take in achieving its strategic objectives.

The Group has established and implemented a risk management framework for the identification, assessment, 
monitoring and reporting of significant risks. The Board oversees the Management in the formulation, update and 
maintenance of an adequate and effective risk management framework, while the AC reviews the adequacy and 
effectiveness of the risk management and internal control systems, including financial, operational, compliance and 
information technology controls, on an annual basis.

The Group maintains a risk register which identifies the material risks faced by the Group and the internal controls 
in place to manage or mitigate those risks. The risk register is updated by the business and corporate executive 
heads in the Group regularly and the AC reviews the risk register on a half-yearly basis. The Internal Audit function 
takes into consideration the risks identified and assessed in the register and prepares the audit plan. The audit plan 
is approved by the AC. The Internal Audit function reports all audit findings and recommendations to the AC on a 
quarterly basis and follows up on all recommendations to ensure timely remediation of audit issues.
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While no system can provide absolute assurance against material loss or financial misstatement, the Group’s internal 
controls are designed to provide reasonable assurance that assets are safeguarded, proper accounting records 
are maintained and financial information used within the business and for publication is reliable. In designing the 
internal controls, the Board has had regard to the risks which the business is exposed to and the costs of protecting 
against such risks.

The Board has received assurance from the CEO and the CFO during the meetings of the Board and Audit 
Committees that:

(1)  the financial records have been properly maintained and the financial statements for the year ended 30 June 
2014 give a true and fair view of the Company’s operations and finances; and 

(2)  the system of risk management and internal controls in place within the Group is adequate and effective in 
addressing the material risks in the Group in its current business environment including material financial, 
operational, compliance and information technology risks.

Based on the internal controls established and maintained by the Group, work performed by the Internal Auditors, 
External Auditors’ report on their financial audit, reviews performed by management, various Board Committees and 
the Board, as well as the assurance received from the CEO and the CFO, the Board, with the concurrence of the 
Audit Committee, is of the opinion that the Group’s internal controls addressing financial, operational, compliance 
and information technology risks were adequate as at 30 June 2014. 

Internal audit – principle 13

The Company has an internal audit function that is independent of the activities it audits. The Internal Auditor reports 
directly to the Chairman of the AC on audit matters, and the CEO on administrative matters. The AC approves the 
hiring, removal and evaluation of the Internal Auditor. 

His responsibilities include the review of the effectiveness of the Group’s material internal controls, including financial, 
operational, compliance and information technology controls and risk management. 

The AC is satisfied that the internal audit function has adequate resources and has appropriate standing within the 
Group and meets the standards set by the Institute of Internal Auditors.

eXeCutIve CommIttee (eC)

The EC comprising of five Board members, namely Mr Frank Benjamin, Mr Keith Tay, Mr Eli Manasseh (Nash) 
Benjamin, Mr Douglas Benjamin and Ms Karen Chong, meets regularly with senior management of the Group to 
review operations, investment opportunities and strategic planning.

SHareHolDerS 

Shareholder rights – principle 14
Communication With Shareholders – principle 15

The Company endeavours to provide material information to its Shareholders in a timely and adequate manner. 
When inadvertent disclosure has been made to a selected group of people, the Company will make the same 
disclosure publicly as soon as practicable. The Company also has an Investor Relations section on its website for 
Shareholders to express their views. In addition, the website provides Shareholders and investors with access to all 
publicly-disclosed information, annual reports, new public releases and announcements.
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Dividend policy

The Board aims to declare and pay annual dividend. In considering the level of dividend payments, the Board takes 
into account various factors including:

– the level of available cash;
– the return on equity and retained earnings; and
– the projected levels of capital expenditure and other investment plans.

encourage Greater Shareholders’ participation – principle 16

At Annual General Meetings, Shareholders are given the opportunity to air their views and direct questions regarding 
the Group and its businesses to the Board. To encourage greater Shareholders’ participation, the Company’s Articles 
of Association permit a member entitled to attend and vote to appoint up to two proxies to attend and vote on his or 
her behalf. The Company’s Articles of Association also provides that a proxy need not be a member of the Company. 
Separate resolutions are proposed as individual agenda items. Members of the Board and various Board committees 
together with the External Auditor are present and available to address questions at General Meetings.

aDDItIonal InFormatIon 

Dealing in Securities

The Company has adopted the SGX-ST Best Practices Guide with respect to dealings in securities. All employees 
of the Group who may be in possession of unpublished and/or material price-sensitive information are prohibited 
from dealing in securities of the Company during the period commencing two weeks before the announcement 
of the Company’s financial results for each of the first three quarters of its financial year or one month before the 
announcement of the Company’s full year results and ending on the date of the announcement of the results, in 
accordance with the guidelines set out in the Best Practices Guide. Officers are also prohibited to deal in securities 
of the Company on short-term consideration.

material Contracts

No material contracts of the Company and its subsidiaries involving the interest of the CEO or any Director or 
controlling Shareholder subsisted at the end of the financial year or had been entered into since the end of the 
previous financial year.

Interested person transactions

Transactions with the Company’s interested persons (a term that is defined in the listing manual of the SGX-ST) 
are subjected to review and approval by the Board comprising those Directors who do not have an interest in the 
transaction. Where required by the relevant listing rules of the SGX-ST, the AC reviews the transaction to determine 
that it is on normal commercial terms and hence, not prejudicial to the interest of the Company and Shareholders, 
before making recommendations to the Board for endorsement. For the financial year ended 30 June 2014, there 
were no material interested person transactions entered into.
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The Directors are pleased to present their report to the members together with the audited consolidated financial 
statements of F J Benjamin Holdings Ltd (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries (collectively, the “Group”) and the 
balance sheet and statement of changes in equity of the Company for the financial year ended 30 June 2014.

DIreCtorS

The Directors of the Company in office at the date of this report are:-

Mr Frank Benjamin – Executive Chairman 
Mr Keith Tay Ah Kee  –  Non-Executive Deputy Chairman
Mr Eli Manasseh Benjamin –  Chief Executive Officer
Mr Douglas Jackie Benjamin  –  Executive Director
Ms Karen Chong Mee Keng –  Executive Director 
Ms Wong Ai Fong  –  Independent Director
Mr Chew Kwee San – Non-Executive Director 
Mr Daniel Ong Jen Yaw –  Independent Director
Mr Ng Hin Lee –  Independent Director (Appointed on 11 July 2014 )

arranGementS to enaBle DIreCtorS to aCQuIre SHareS anD DeBentureS

Neither at the end of nor at any time during the financial year was the Company a party to any arrangement whose 
objects are, or one of whose object is, to enable the Directors of the Company to acquire benefits by means of the 
acquisition of shares or debentures of the Company or any other body corporate.

DIreCtorS’ IntereStS In SHareS anD DeBentureS

The following Directors, who held office at the end of the financial year had, according to the register of directors’ 
shareholdings required to be kept under Section 164 of the Singapore Companies Act, Cap. 50 (the “Act”), an 
interest in the shares of the Company as stated below:-

Holdings registered in the name of  
Director or nominee

Holdings in which a Director is 
deemed to have an interest

Name of Director
At

1.7.2013
At

30.6.2014
At

21.7.2014
At

1.7.2013
At

30.6.2014
At

21.7.2014

Ordinary shares 
Mr Frank Benjamin 39,191,000 39,191,000 39,191,000 – – –
Mr Keith Tay Ah Kee 256,000 256,000 256,000 – – –
Mr Eli Manasseh Benjamin 24,310,050 24,310,050 24,310,050 – – –
Mr Douglas Jackie Benjamin 120,000 120,000 120,000 10,000 10,000 10,000
Ms Wong Ai Fong 35,000 35,000 35,000 – – –

Except as disclosed in this report, no Director who held office at the end of the financial year had interests in shares, 
share options, warrants or debentures of the Company, or of related corporations, either at the beginning of the 
financial year or at the end of the financial year.

DIreCtorS’ report
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DIreCtorS’ ContraCtual BeneFItS

Except as disclosed in the financial statements, since the end of the previous financial year, no Director of the 
Company has received or become entitled to receive a benefit by reason of a contract made by the Company or a 
related corporation with the Director, or with a firm of which the Director is a member, or with a company in which 
the Director has a substantial financial interest.

optIonS

There were no options granted by the Company or its subsidiaries to any person to take up unissued shares in the 
Company or its subsidiaries during the financial year.

auDIt CommIttee

The members of the Audit Committee (“AC”) at the date of this report are:

Mr Ng Hin Lee (Chairman) (Appointed on 11 July 2014)
Ms Wong Ai Fong (Interim Chairwoman) (Appointed on 13 November 2013)
Mr Chew Kwee San
Mr Daniel Ong Jen Yaw

The AC carried out its functions in accordance with section 201B(5) of the Act, the Listing Manual of the Singapore 
Exchange Securities Trading Limited and the Code of Corporate Governance as detailed in the Corporate Governance 
Report of the Annual Report.

The AC having reviewed all non-audit services provided by the External Auditors to the Group is satisfied that the 
nature and extent of such services will not prejudice the independence and objectivity of the auditors. The AC has 
also conducted a review of interested person transactions.

The AC convened four meetings during the financial year. The AC has also met with the Internal and External 
Auditors, without the presence of the Company’s management, at least once a year.

DIreCtorS’ report
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auDItor

The auditor, Ernst & Young LLP, Public Accountants and Chartered Accountants, has expressed its willingness to 
accept re-appointment.

On behalf of the Board of Directors

Eli Manasseh Benjamin
Director

Karen Chong Mee Keng 
Director

Singapore
11 September 2014 
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We, Eli Manasseh Benjamin and Karen Chong Mee Keng, being two of the Directors of F J Benjamin Holdings Ltd 
(the “Company”), do hereby state that, in the opinion of the Directors:-

(i)  the accompanying balance sheets, consolidated income statement, consolidated statement of comprehensive 
income, statements of changes in equity, and consolidated cash flow statement together with notes thereto 
are drawn up so as to give a true and fair view of the state of affairs of the Company and its subsidiaries 
(collectively, the “Group”) as at 30 June 2014 and the results of the business, changes in equity and cash 
flows of the Group and the changes in equity of the Company for the year ended on that date, and 

(ii)  at the date of this statement, there are reasonable grounds to believe that the Company will be able to pay 
its debts as and when they fall due.

On behalf of the Board of Directors

Eli Manasseh Benjamin
Director

Karen Chong Mee Keng 
Director

Singapore
11 September 2014  

Statement By DIreCtorS
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report on tHe FInanCIal StatementS

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of F J Benjamin Holdings Ltd (the “Company”) and its 
subsidiaries (collectively, the “Group”) set out on pages 57 to 124, which comprise the balance sheets of the 
Group and the Company as at 30 June 2014, the statements of changes in equity of the Group and the Company 
and the consolidated income statement, consolidated statement of comprehensive income and consolidated cash 
flow statement of the Group for the year then ended, and a summary of significant accounting policies and other 
explanatory information.

management’s responsibility for the financial statements

Management is responsible for the preparation of financial statements that give a true and fair view in accordance 
with the provisions of the Singapore Companies Act, Chapter 50 (the “Act”) and Singapore Financial Reporting 
Standards, and for devising and maintaining a system of internal accounting controls sufficient to provide a 
reasonable assurance that assets are safeguarded against loss from unauthorised use or disposition; and transactions 
are properly authorised and that they are recorded as necessary to permit the preparation of true and fair profit and 
loss accounts and balance sheets and to maintain accountability of assets.

auditor’s responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audit. We conducted our 
audit in accordance with Singapore Standards on Auditing. Those standards require that we comply with ethical 
requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements 
are free from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the financial 
statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgment, including the assessment of the risks of 
material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, 
the auditor considers internal control relevant to the entity’s preparation of the financial statements that give a true 
and fair view in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose 
of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal control. An audit also includes evaluating the 
appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates made by management, 
as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion.

opinion

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements of the Group and the balance sheet and statement of changes in 
equity of the Company are properly drawn up in accordance with the provisions of the Act and Singapore Financial 
Reporting Standards so as to give a true and fair view of the state of affairs of the Group and of the Company as 
at 30 June 2014 and of the results, changes in equity and cash flows of the Group and the changes in equity of the 
Company for the year ended on that date.

To the Members of F J Benjamin Holdings Ltd

InDepenDent auDItor’S report

55
a n n u a l  r e p o r t  2 0 1 3 / 1 4



report on otHer leGal anD reGulatory reQuIrementS

In our opinion, the accounting and other records required by the Act to be kept by the Company and by those 
subsidiaries incorporated in Singapore of which we are the auditor have been properly kept in accordance with the 
provisions of the Act.

Ernst & Young LLP 
Public Accountants and 
Chartered Accountants 
Singapore

11 September 2014

To the Members of F J Benjamin Holdings Ltd

InDepenDent auDItor’S report
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(In Singapore Dollars)
Group

Note 2014 2013
$'000 $'000

Revenue 5 368,200 373,403
Other income 6 10,195 11,906
Interest income 654 668

379,049 385,977

Costs and expenses
Cost of goods sold (224,055) (214,143)
Staff costs 7 (54,227) (51,564)
Rental of premises (58,759) (54,288)
Advertising and promotion (12,595) (15,064)
Depreciation of property, furniture, fixtures and equipment 13 (9,241) (7,675)
Depreciation of investment properties 14 - (82)
Other operating expenses 8 (32,134) (34,955)
Total costs and expenses (391,011) (377,771)

Operating (loss) / profit (11,962) 8,206
Interest expense 10 (3,572) (3,307)

(15,534) 4,899
Exceptional items 9 (1,350) 2,819
Foreign exchange loss, net (634) (1,192)
Share of results of associates / joint venture, net of tax (1,686) 767
(Loss) / profit before taxation from continuing operations (19,204) 7,293
Taxation 11 (2,892) (3,254)
Net (loss) / profit for the financial year (22,096) 4,039

(Loss) / Profit attributable to: 
Owners of the parent 

 – (Loss) / profit before exceptional items (20,752) 1,628
 – Exceptional items (1,350) 2,819

(22,102) 4,447
Non-controlling interests 6 (408)

(22,096) 4,039

(Loss) / Earnings per share attributable to owners of the parent 12
Basic (cents) (3.89) 0.78
Diluted (cents) (3.89) 0.78

for the financial year ended 30 June 2014

ConSolIDateD InCome Statement

The accompanying policies and explanatory notes form an integral part of the financial statements.
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(In Singapore Dollars)
Group

2014 2013
$'000 $'000

(Loss) / profit for the year (22,096) 4,039

Other comprehensive loss, net of tax
Item that may be reclassified subsequently to profit or loss:
Foreign currency translation (3,743) (1,422)

Total comprehensive (loss) / income for the year (25,839) 2,617

Total comprehensive (loss) / income attributable to: 
Owners of the parent (25,842) 3,042
Non-controlling interests 3 (425)

(25,839) 2,617

for the financial year ended 30 June 2014

ConSolIDateD Statement oF CompreHenSIve InCome

The accompanying policies and explanatory notes form an integral part of the financial statements.
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(In Singapore Dollars) Group Company
Note 2014 2013 2014 2013

(Note 43)
$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000

Non-current assets
Property, furniture, fixtures and equipment 13 30,597 27,139 475 786
Investment properties 14 – – – –
Subsidiaries 15 – – 92,410 112,058
Goodwill 16 559 559 – –
Investment in associates/joint venture 17 988 10,166 – –
Investment securities 18 – 86 – 86
Other receivables 19 260 260 – –
Loan to joint venture partner  28 16,500 16,500 – –
Deferred tax assets 27 1,154 938 – –

50,058 55,648 92,885 112,930
Current assets

Non-current asset held for sale 13 1,847 – – –
Inventories 20 90,451 117,694 – –
Investment securities 18 2,724 4,261 – –
Trade debtors 21 69,787 64,766 – –
Other debtors 22 23,604 17,493 78,413 52,913
Prepayments and advances 3,102 3,366 455 37
Tax recoverable 2,295 3,515 – –
Cash on hand and at banks 32 5,176 9,671 175 3,676

198,986 220,766 79,043 56,626
Current liabilities

Trade and other creditors 23 58,579 61,000 2,234 2,529
Finance lease creditors 24 168 163 133 127
Bank borrowings 25 77,103 73,734 – –
Provision for taxation 514 3,035 – 476

136,364 137,932 2,367 3,132

Net current assets 62,622 82,834 76,676 53,494
Non-current liabilities

Finance lease creditors 24 434 602 389 522
Bank borrowings 25 7,500 4,500 – –
Other liabilities 26 2,626 2,603 – –
Deferred tax liabilities 27 266 240 – –

10,826 7,945 389 522

Net assets 101,854 130,537 169,172 165,902
Equity attributable to owners of the parent 

Share capital 29 165,447 165,447 165,447 165,447
Foreign currency translation reserve 30 (27,013) (23,273) – –
(Accumulated losses) / Retained earnings (35,814) (10,868) 3,725 455

102,620 131,306 169,172 165,902
Non-controlling interests 31 (766) (769) – –
Total equity 101,854 130,537 169,172 165,902

As at 30 June 2014

BalanCe SHeetS

The accompanying policies and explanatory notes form an integral part of the financial statements.
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(In Singapore Dollars)
<–Attributable to owners of the parent –>

Note
Share
capital

Foreign 
currency 

translation 
reserve

(Accumulated 
losses)

Non-
controlling 
interests

Total 
equity

$’000 $’000 $’000 $’000 $’000
Group
At 1 July 2013 165,447 (23,273) (10,868) (769) 130,537
Loss for the year – – (22,102) 6 (22,096)
Other comprehensive loss
Item that may be reclassified subsequently 

to profit or loss:
Foreign currency translation – (3,740) – (3) (3,743)
Total comprehensive loss for the 

financial year –
(3,740) (22,102) 3 (25,839)

Dividends paid on 
ordinary shares, representing total 
contributions by and distributions 
to owners

41 – – (2,844) – (2,844)

At 30 June 2014 165,447 (27,013) (35,814) (766) 101,854

At 1 July 2012 165,447 (21,868) (9,628) (344) 133,607
Profit for the year – – 4,447 (408) 4,039
Other comprehensive loss
Item that may be reclassified subsequently 

to profit or loss:
Foreign currency translation – (1,405) – (17) (1,422)
Total comprehensive income for the 

financial year –
(1,405) 4,447 (425) 2,617

Dividends paid on 
ordinary shares, representing total 
contributions by and distributions 
to owners

41 – – (5,687) – (5,687)

At 30 June 2013 165,447 (23,273) (10,868) (769) 130,537

Included in the Group’s accumulated losses are certain profits of approximately S$7,000 (2013: S$7,000), which 
was set aside by the Group’s Chinese subsidiary when it generated profits. The said profits are restricted in use as 
required by the relevant laws and regulations of the People’s Republic of China. 

StatementS oF CHanGeS In eQuIty
for the financial year ended 30 June 2014

The accompanying policies and explanatory notes form an integral part of the financial statements.
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(In Singapore Dollars)

Note
Share

capital
Retained
earnings

Total 
equity

$'000 $'000 $'000

Company
At 1 July 2013 165,447 455 165,902
Profit for the year, representing total comprehensive 

income for the financial year  – 6,114 6,114
Dividends paid on ordinary shares, representing total 

contributions by and distributions to owners 41 – (2,844) (2,844)
At 30 June 2014 165,447 3,725 169,172

At 1 July 2012 165,447 357 165,804
Profit for the year, representing total comprehensive    
  income for the financial year – 5,785 5,785
Dividends paid on ordinary shares, representing total 

contributions by and distributions to owners 41 – (5,687) (5,687)
At 30 June 2013 165,447 455 165,902

StatementS oF CHanGeS In eQuIty
for the financial year ended 30 June 2014

The accompanying policies and explanatory notes form an integral part of the financial statements.
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(In Singapore Dollars)
Group

2014 2013
$'000 $'000

Cash flow from operating activities:
(Loss) / Profit before taxation (19,204) 7,293

Adjustments for:
Depreciation of property, furniture, fixtures and equipment 9,241 7,675
Depreciation of investment properties – 82
Share of results of associates / joint venture, net of tax 1,686 (767)
Currency realignment (3,343) (639)
Loss on disposal of furniture, fixtures and equipment 507 62
Gain on disposal of properties – (2,819)
Interest income (654) (668)
Interest expense 3,572 3,307
Gain on disposal of investment securities (14) –
Gain on remeasurement of previously held interest in associate to fair 

value upon the loss of significant influence – (2,374)
Fair value loss / (gain) on investment securities 1,537 (347)
Provision for impairment of fixed assets and early termination cost for 

non-performing stores 1,350 –
Allowance for inventory obsolescence and inventories written off 821 3,379
Bad debts written off 20 94
Reversal of allowance for doubtful debts (685) (160)

Operating (loss) / profit before reinvestment in working capital (5,166) 14,118
Increase in debtors (2,417) (2,998)
Decrease in prepayments and advances 264 67
Decrease / (increase) in inventories 26,422 (10,628)
Decrease in creditors (2,530) (4,165)

Cash flow from / (used in) operations 16,573 (3,606)
Income tax paid (4,400) (5,666)

Net cash from / (used in) operating activities 12,173 (9,272)
Cash flow from investing activities:

Purchase of furniture, fixtures and equipment (16,557) (10,707)
Proceeds from disposal of property, furniture, fixtures and equipment 460 9,991
Proceeds from investment securities 100 –
Dividend received from joint venture partner – 668
Interest received – 668

Net cash (used in) / from investing activities (15,997) 620

ConSolIDateD CaSH FloW Statement
for the financial year ended 30 June 2014

The accompanying policies and explanatory notes form an integral part of the financial statements.
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(In Singapore Dollars)
Group

2014 2013
$'000 $'000

Cash flow from financing activities:
Repayment of bank borrowings (14,284) (18,959)
Proceeds from bank borrowings 17,106 29,197
Repayment of obligations under finance lease (163) (172)
Interest paid (4,038) (2,869)
Dividends paid to shareholders (2,844) (5,687)

Net cash (used in) / from financing activities (4,223) 1,510

Net decrease in cash and cash equivalents (8,047) (7,142)
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of financial year 572 7,709
Net effect of exchange rate changes on opening cash and cash equivalents (13) 5
Cash and cash equivalents at end of financial year (Note 32) (7,488) 572

ConSolIDateD CaSH FloW Statement
for the financial year ended 30 June 2014

The accompanying policies and explanatory notes form an integral part of the financial statements.
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Notes to the FiNaNcial statemeNts
30 June 2014

1. Corporate InFormatIon

F J Benjamin Holdings Ltd (the “Company”) is a public limited company incorporated and domiciled in 
Singapore and is listed on the Singapore Exchange Securities Trading Limited (SGX-ST).

The registered office and the principal place of business of the Company is 10 Science Park Road, #04-01 
The Alpha, Singapore Science Park II, Singapore 117684.

The principal activities of the Company are those of investment holding and the provision of management 
services to its subsidiaries. The subsidiaries are primarily importers, exporters, licensees, distributors and 
retailers of consumer fashion wear and accessories, home furnishings and timepieces. There has been no 
significant change in the nature of these activities during the financial year.

2. Summary oF SIGnIFICant aCCountInG polICIeS

2.1 Basis of preparation

The consolidated financial statements of the Group and the balance sheet and statement of changes in equity 
of the Company have been prepared in accordance with Singapore Financial Reporting Standards (“FRS”). 

The financial statements of the Company and of the Group are expressed in Singapore dollars (“SGD”) and 
all values are rounded to the nearest thousand ($’000) except when otherwise indicated.

The financial statements have been prepared on the historical cost basis except as disclosed in the accounting 
policies below.

2.2 Changes in accounting policies

The accounting policies have been consistently applied and are consistent with those used in the previous 
financial year, except for the changes in accounting policies discussed below.

The Group has adopted all the new and revised Financial Reporting Standards (“FRSs”) and Interpretation to 
FRSs (“INT FRSs”) that are relevant to its operations and effective for the financial year beginning on or after 1 
July 2013 and early adopted the Amendments to FRS 36 Recoverable Amount Disclosures for Non-financial 
Assets which are effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2014.

The adoption of these standards did not have any effect on the financial performance or position of the Group 
and the Company. 

Accordingly, the transition provisions of FRS 113 Fair Value Measurement have been applied prospectively 
by the Group on 1 July 2013.
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2.3 Further changes in accounting policies 

The Group and the Company have not adopted the following FRS and INT FRS that have been issued but 
not yet effective:  

Effective date  
(annual period

beginning on or after)

Amendments to FRS 32 Offsetting financial assets and financial liabilities 1 January 2014
Amendments to FRS 39 Novation of derivatives and continuation of

hedge accounting
1 January 2014

INT FRS 121 Levies 1 January 2014
Improvements to FRSs 
– Amendment to FRS 16 Property, plant and equipment 1 July 2014
– Amendment to FRS 19 Defined benefit plans: Employee contributions 1 July 2014
– Amendment to FRS 24 Related party disclosures 1 July 2014
– Amendment to FRS 38 Intangible assets 1 July 2014
– Amendment to FRS 40 Investment property 1 July 2014
– Amendment to FRS 102 Share-based payment 1 July 2014
– Amendment to FRS 103 Business combinations 1 July 2014
– Amendment to FRS 108 Operating segments 1 July 2014
– Amendment to FRS 113 Fair value measurement 1 July 2014

The Directors expect that the adoption of the other standards above (where applicable) will have no material 
impact on the financial statements in the period of initial application. 

2.4 Foreign currency

The financial statements are presented in Singapore Dollars, which is also the Company’s functional currency. 
Each entity in the Group determines its own functional currency and items included in the financial statements 
of each entity are measured using that functional currency.

a) transactions and balances

Transactions in foreign currencies are measured in the respective functional currencies of the Company 
and its subsidiaries and are recorded on initial recognition in the functional currencies at exchange 
rates approximating those ruling at the transaction dates. Monetary assets and liabilities denominated 
in foreign currencies are translated at the closing rate of exchange ruling at the end of the reporting 
period. Non-monetary items that are measured in terms of historical cost in a foreign currency are 
translated using the exchange rates as at the dates of the initial transactions. Non-monetary items 
measured at fair value in a foreign currency are translated using the exchange rates at the date when 
the fair value was measured. 

Exchange differences arising on the settlement of monetary items or on translating monetary items at 
the end of the reporting period are recognised in profit or loss except for exchange differences arising 
on monetary items that form part of the Group’s net investment in foreign operations, which are 
recognised initially in other comprehensive income and accumulated under a separate component 
of equity as exchange translation reserve in the consolidated balance sheet and recognised in the 
consolidated income statement on disposal of the foreign operation.
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2.4 Foreign currency (continued)

b) Consolidated financial statements

For consolidation purposes, the assets and liabilities of foreign operations are translated into SGD at 
the rate of exchange ruling at the end of the reporting period and their profit or loss are translated 
at the weighted average exchange rates for the financial year. The exchange differences arising on 
the translation are taken directly to other comprehensive income. On disposal of a foreign operation, 
the deferred cumulative amount recognised in equity relating to that particular foreign operation is 
recognised in profit or loss. 

In the case of a partial disposal without loss of control of a subsidiary that includes a foreign operation, 
the proportionate share of the cumulative amount of the exchange differences are re-attributed to non-
controlling interest and are not recognised in profit or loss. For partial disposals of associates or jointly 
controlled entities that are foreign operations, the proportionate share of the accumulated exchange 
differences is reclassified to profit or loss. 

2.5 Basis of consolidation and business combinations

a) Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements comprise the financial statements of the Company and its 
subsidiaries as at the end of the reporting period. The financial statements of the subsidiaries used in 
the preparation of the consolidated financial statements are prepared for the same reporting date as 
the Company. Consistent accounting policies are applied for like transactions and events in similar 
circumstances.

All intra-group balances, income and expenses and unrealised gains and losses resulting from intra-
group transactions and dividends are eliminated in full.

Subsidiaries are consolidated from the date of acquisition, being the date on which the Group obtains 
control, and continue to be consolidated until the date that such control ceases.

Losses and other comprehensive income within a subsidiary are attributed to the non-controlling 
interest even if that results in a deficit balance.

A change in the ownership interest of a subsidiary, without a loss of control, is accounted for as an 
equity transaction. If the Group loses control over a subsidiary, it:

–  de-recognises the assets (including goodwill) and liabilities of the subsidiary at their carrying 
amounts at the date when control is lost;

– de-recognises the carrying amount of any non-controlling interest;

– de-recognises the cumulative translation differences recorded in equity;

– recognises the fair value of the consideration received;

– recognises the fair value of any investment retained;
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 2.5 Basis of consolidation and business combinations (continued)

a) Basis of consolidation (continued)

– recognises any surplus or deficit in profit or loss;

–  reclassifies the Group’s share of components previously recognised in other comprehensive 
income to profit or loss or retained earnings, as appropriate.

b) Business combinations

Business combinations are accounted for by applying the acquisition method. Identifiable assets 
acquired and liabilities and contingent liabilities assumed in a business combination are measured 
initially at their fair values at the acquisition date. Acquisition-related costs are recognised as expenses 
in the periods in which the costs are incurred and the services are received. 

When the Group acquires a business, it assesses the financial assets and liabilities assumed for 
appropriate classification, and designation in accordance with the contractual terms, economic 
circumstances and pertinent conditions as at the acquisition date. This includes the separation of 
embedded derivatives in host contracts by the acquiree. 

Any contingent consideration to be transferred by the acquirer will be recognised at fair value at 
the acquisition date. Subsequent changes to the fair value of the contingent consideration which is 
deemed to be an asset or liability, will be recognised in accordance with FRS 39 either in profit or loss 
or as a change to other comprehensive income. If the contingent consideration is classified as equity, 
it is not remeasured until it is finally settled within equity. 
 
In business combinations achieved in stages, previously held equity interests in the acquiree are 
remeasured to fair value at the acquisition date and any corresponding gain or loss is recognised in 
profit or loss. 

The Group elects for each individual business combination, whether non-controlling interest in the 
acquiree (if any), that are present ownership interests and entitle their holders to a proportionate share 
of net assets in the event of liquidation, is recognised on the acquisition date at fair value, or at the non-
controlling interest’s proportionate share of the acquiree identifiable net assets. Other components of 
non-controlling interests are measured at their acquisition date fair value, unless another measurement 
basis is required by another FRS.

Any excess of the sum of the fair value of the consideration transferred in the business combination, the 
amount of non-controlling interest in the acquiree (if any), and the fair value of the Group’s previously 
held equity interest in the acquiree (if any), over the net fair value of the acquiree’s identifiable assets 
and liabilities is recorded as goodwill. The accounting policy for goodwill is set out in Note 2.13. In 
instances where the latter amount exceeds the former, the excess is recognised as gain on bargain 
purchase in profit or loss on the acquisition date. 
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2.6 transactions with non-controlling interests 

Non-controlling interests represent the equity in subsidiaries not attributable, directly or indirectly, to owners 
of the parent, and are presented separately in the consolidated statement of comprehensive income and 
within equity in the consolidated balance sheet, separately from equity attributable to owners of the parent.

Changes in the Company owners’ ownership interest in a subsidiary that do not result in a loss of control 
are accounted for as equity transactions. In such circumstances, the carrying amounts of the controlling and 
non-controlling interests are adjusted to reflect the changes in their relative interests in the subsidiary. Any 
difference between the amount by which the non-controlling interest is adjusted and the fair value of the 
consideration paid or received is recognised directly in equity and attributed to owners of the parent. 

2.7 Subsidiaries

A subsidiary is an investee that is controlled by the Group. The Group controls an investee when it is 
exposed, or has rights, to variable returns from its involvement with the investee and has the ability to affect 
those returns through its power over the investee. 

Thus, the Group controls an investee if and only if the Group has all of the following: 

– Power over the investee

– Exposure, or rights or variable returns from its involvement with the investee; and 

– The ability to use its power over the investee to affect its returns.

The Group reassesses whether or not it controls an investee if facts and circumstances indicate that there are 
changes to one or more of the three elements of control listed above. 

In the Company’s separate financial statements, investments in subsidiaries are accounted for at cost less any 
impairment losses. The assessment of impairment loss requires an estimation of the investment’s recoverable 
amount using cash flow projections based on financial budgets approved by management. The discount rate 
applied to the cash flow projections was 5.4% (2013: 5.4%) per annum and cash flow beyond the 5-year 
period is extrapolated using growth rate of 1.0% (2013: 1.0%) per annum. This growth rate does not exceed 
the long-term average growth rate for the industry. The financial statements of the parent and its subsidiaries 
used in the preparation of the consolidated financial statements shall be prepared as of the same reporting 
date. When the end of the reporting period of the parent is different from that of a subsidiary, the subsidiary 
prepares, for consolidation purposes, additional financial statements as of the same date as the financial 
statements of the parent. 
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2.8 Joint ventures

A joint venture is a contractual arrangement whereby two or more parties have joint control. Joint control is 
the contractually agreed sharing of control of an arrangement, which exists only when decisions about the 
relevant activities require the unanimous consent of the parties sharing control.

On acquisition of the investment, any excess of the cost of the investment over the Group’s share of the net 
fair value of the investee’s identifiable assets and liabilities is accounted as goodwill and is included in the 
carrying amount of the investment. Any excess of the Group’s share of the net fair value of the investee’s 
identifiable assets and liabilities over the cost of the investment is included as income in the determination of 
the entity’s share of the joint venture’s profit or loss in the period in which the investment is acquired.

The Group accounts for its interest in a joint venture using the equity method from the date on which it 
becomes a joint venture. Under the equity method, the investment in joint venture is carried in the balance 
sheet at cost plus post-acquisition changes in the Group’s share of the net assets of the joint venture. The 
profit or loss reflects the share of results of operations of the joint venture. Distributions received from joint 
venture reduce the carrying amount of the investment. Where there has been a change recognised in 
other comprehensive income by the joint venture, the Group recognises its share of such changes in other 
comprehensive income. Unrealised gains and losses resulting from transactions between the Group and the 
joint venture are eliminated to the extent of the interest in the joint venture. 

When the Group’s share of losses in a joint venture equals or exceeds its interest in the joint venture, the 
Group does not recognise further losses, unless it has incurred obligations or made payments on behalf of 
the joint venture.

The financial statements of the joint venture are prepared as of the same reporting date as the Company. 
Where necessary, adjustments are made to bring the accounting policies in line with those of the Group.

After application of the equity method, the Group determines whether it is necessary to recognise an 
additional impairment loss on the Group’s investment in its joint venture. The Group determines at each 
end of the reporting period whether there is any objective evidence that the investment in the joint venture 
is impaired. If this is the case, the Group calculates the amount of impairment as the difference between the 
recoverable amount of the joint venture and its carrying value and recognises the amount in profit or loss. 

Upon loss of joint control over the joint venture, the Group measures the retained interest at fair value. Any 
difference between the fair value of the aggregate of the retained interest and proceeds from disposal and 
the carrying amount of the investment at the date the equity method was discontinued is recognised in profit 
or loss. 

In the Company’s separate financial statements, interest in joint venture is accounted for at cost less 
impairment losses.

The Group accounts for all amounts previously recognised in other comprehensive income in relation to that 
joint venture on the same basis as would have been required if that joint venture had directly disposed of the 
related assets or liabilities.
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2.8 Joint ventures (continued)

When an investment in a joint venture becomes an investment in an associate, the Group continues to apply 
the equity method and does not remeasure the retained interest. 

If the Group’s ownership interest in a joint venture is reduced, but the Group continues to apply the equity 
method, the Group reclassifies to profit or loss the proportion of the gain or loss that had previously been 
recognised in other comprehensive income relating to that reduction in ownership interest if that gain or loss 
would be required to be classified to profit or loss on the disposal of the related assets or liabilities. 

2.9 associates

An associate is an entity over which the Group has the power to participate in the financial and operating 
policy decisions of the investee but has no control or joint control of those policies. 

The Group’s investments in associates are accounted for using the equity method from the date on which it 
becomes an associate. On acquisition of the investment, any excess of the cost of the investment over the 
Group’s share of the net fair value of the investee’s identifiable assets and liabilities is accounted as goodwill 
and is included in the carrying amount of the investment. Any excess of the Group’s share of the net fair 
value of the investee’s identifiable assets and liabilities over the cost of the investment is included as income 
in the determination of the entity’s share of the associate’s profit or loss in the period in which the investment 
is acquired.

Under the equity method, the investment in associates are carried in the balance sheet at cost plus post-
acquisition changes in the Group’s share of net assets of the associates. The Group’s share of the profit or 
loss of its associates reflects the share of the results of operations of the associates. Distributions received 
from associates reduce the carrying amounts of the investment. Where there has been a change recognised 
in other comprehensive income by the associate, the Group recognises its share of such changes in other 
comprehensive income. Unrealised gains and losses resulting from transactions between the Group and the 
associates are eliminated to the extent of the interest in the associates. 

The Group’s share of the profit or loss of its associates is the profit attributable to equity holders of the 
associates and, therefore is the profit or loss after tax and non-controlling interests in the subsidiaries of 
associates.

When the Group’s share of losses in an associate equals or exceeds its interest in the associate, the Group does 
not recognise further losses, unless it has incurred obligations or made payments on behalf of the associate.

After application of the equity method, the Group determines whether it is necessary to recognise an 
additional impairment loss on the Group’s investment in its associates. The Group determines at each end of 
the reporting period whether there is any objective evidence that the investment in the associate is impaired. 
If this is the case, the Group calculates the amount of impairment as the difference between the recoverable 
amount of the associate and its carrying value and recognises the amount in profit or loss. 

Goodwill relating to an associate is included in the carrying amount of the investment and is neither amortised 
nor tested individually for impairment. 
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2.9 associates (continued)

Upon loss of significant influence over the associate, the Group measures any retained investment at its fair 
value. Any difference between the carrying amount of the associate upon loss of significant influence and 
the fair value of the aggregate of the retained investment and proceeds from disposal is recognised in profit 
or loss. 

The Group accounts for all amounts previously recognised in other comprehensive income in relation to 
that associate on the same basis as would have been required if that associate had directly disposed of the 
related assets or liabilities.

When an investment in an associate becomes an investment in a joint venture or an investment in joint 
venture becomes an investment in an associate, the Group continues to apply the equity method and does 
not remeasure the retained interest. 

If the Group’s ownership interest in an associate is reduced, but the Group continues to apply the equity 
method, the Group reclassifies to profit or loss the proportion of the gain or loss that had previously been 
recognised in other comprehensive income relating to that reduction in ownership interest if that gain or loss 
would be required to be reclassified to profit or loss on the disposal of the related assets or liabilities. 

The financial statements of the associates are prepared as of the same reporting date as the Company. 
Where necessary, adjustments are made to bring the accounting policies in line with those of the Group. The 
most recent available audited financial statements or, if not available, the unaudited management financial 
statements of the associates, are used by the Group in applying the equity method. 

2.10 property, furniture, fixtures and equipment 

All items of property, furniture, fixtures and equipment are initially recorded at cost. Such costs includes the 
cost of replacing part of the property, furniture, fixtures and equipment and borrowing costs that are directly 
attributable to the acquisition, construction or production of a qualifying property, furniture, fixtures and 
equipment. The accounting policy for borrowing costs is set out in Note 2.19. The cost of an item of property, 
furniture, fixtures and equipment is recognised as an asset if, and only if, it is probable that future economic 
benefits associated with the item will flow to the Group and the cost of the item can be measured reliably. 

Subsequent to recognition, property, furniture, fixtures and equipment are stated at cost less accumulated 
depreciation and accumulated impairment loss.

The cost of an asset comprises its purchase price, any directly attributable costs of bringing the asset to 
working condition for its intended use and costs of its dismantlement, removal or restoration, the obligation 
for which an entity incurs as a consequence of installing the item. 

When significant parts of property, plant and equipment are required to be replaced in intervals, the 
Group recognises such parts as individual assets with specific useful lives and depreciation respectively. 
Likewise, when a major inspection is performed, its cost is recognised in the carrying amount of the plant and 
equipment as a replacement if the recognition criteria are satisfied. All other repair and maintenance costs 
are recognised in profit or loss as incurred.
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2.10 property, furniture, fixtures and equipment (continued)

Depreciation begins when it is available for use and is calculated on the straight-line method over the 
estimated useful lives of the assets as follows:

Leasehold buildings – Over the lease terms of 50 years
Furniture and fittings – 10 years
Electrical installation and office equipment – 6 to 7 years
Motor vehicles – 5 years
Data processing equipment – 3 years
Leasehold improvements – 3 to 6 years

The carrying values of property, furniture, fixtures and equipment are reviewed for impairment when events 
or changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying value may not be recoverable.

The residual values, useful life and depreciation method are reviewed at each financial year-end to ensure 
that the amount, method and period of depreciation are consistent with previous estimates and the expected 
pattern of consumption of the future economic benefits embodied in the items of property, furniture, fixtures 
and equipment.

An item of property, furniture, fixtures and equipment is derecognised upon disposal or when no future 
economic benefits are expected from its use or disposal. Any gain or loss arising on derecognition of the 
asset is included in profit or loss in the financial year the asset is derecognised.

2.11 non-current assets held for sale

Non-current assets classified as held for sale are measured at the lower of their carrying amount and fair value 
less costs to sell. Non-current assets are classified as held for sale if their carrying amounts will be recovered 
principally through a sale transaction rather than through continuing use. This condition is regarded as met 
only when the sale is highly probable and the asset is available for immediate sale in its present condition. 
Management must be committed to the sale, which should be expected to qualify for recognition as a 
completed sale within one year from the date of classification. 

Property, furniture, fixtures and equipment once classified as held for sale are not depreciated or amortised.

2.12 Investment properties

Investment properties are properties that are either owned by the Group or leased under a finance lease 
in order to earn rentals or for capital appreciation, or both, rather than for use in the production or supply 
of goods or services, or for administrative purposes, or sale in the ordinary course of business. Investment 
properties comprise completed investment properties and properties that are being constructed or developed 
for future use as investment properties. Properties held under operating leases are classified as investment 
properties when the definition of investment properties is met and they are accounted as finance leases. 
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2.12 Investment properties (continued)

Investment properties are initially recorded at cost, including transaction costs. Subsequent to initial 
recognition, investment properties are measured at cost less accumulated depreciation and accumulated 
impairment losses. The carrying amount includes the cost of replacing part of an existing investment property 
at the time that cost is incurred if the recognition criteria are met. 

Depreciation begins when it is available for use and is calculated on the straight-line method over the lease 
term of the building.
 
Investment property is depreciated over its leasehold period of 50 years.

Investment properties are derecognised when either they have been disposed of or when the investment 
property is permanently withdrawn from use and no future economic benefit is expected from its disposal. 
Any gains or losses on the retirement or disposal of an investment property are recognised in profit or loss in 
the year of retirement or disposal.

Transfers are made to or from investment property only when there is a change in use. For a transfer between 
investment property to owner-occupied property, there is no change in the carrying amount of the property 
transferred.

2.13 Goodwill 

Goodwill is initially measured at cost. Following initial recognition, goodwill is measured at cost less any 
accumulated impairment loss. 
 
For the purpose of impairment testing, goodwill acquired in a business combination is, from the acquisition 
date, allocated to each of the Group’s cash-generating units that are expected to benefit from the synergies of 
the combination, irrespective of whether other assets or liabilities of the acquiree are assigned to those units. 

The cash-generating unit to which goodwill has been allocated is tested for impairment annually and 
whenever there is an indication that the cash-generating unit may be impaired. Impairment is determined 
for goodwill by assessing the recoverable amount of each cash-generating unit (or group of cash-generating 
units) to which the goodwill relates. Where the recoverable amount of the cash-generating unit is less than the 
carrying amount, an impairment loss is recognised in profit or loss. Impairment losses recognised for goodwill 
are not reversed in subsequent periods. 

Where goodwill forms part of a cash-generating unit and part of the operation within that cash-generating 
unit is disposed of, the goodwill associated with the operation disposed of is included in the carrying amount 
of the operation when determining the gain or loss on disposal of the operation. Goodwill disposed of in this 
circumstance is measured based on the relative fair values of the operations disposed of and the portion of 
the cash-generating unit retained. 

Goodwill and fair value adjustments arising on the acquisition of foreign operation are treated as assets and 
liabilities of the foreign operations and are recorded in the functional currency of the foreign operations and 
are translated in accordance with the accounting policy set out in Note 2.4.
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2.14 Financial instruments

(a) Financial assets

Financial assets are recognised when and only when the Group becomes a party to the contractual 
provisions of the financial instrument. The Group determines the classification of its financial assets at 
initial recognition. 

When financial assets are recognised initially, they are measured at fair value, plus, in the case of 
financial assets not at fair value through profit or loss, directly attributable transaction costs.

The subsequent measurement of financial assets depends on their classification as follows:

 i) Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss include financial assets held for trading. 
Financial assets are classified as held for trading if they are acquired for the purpose 
of selling or repurchasing in the near term. This category includes derivative financial 
instruments entered into by the Group that are not designated as hedging instruments in 
hedge relationships as defined by FRS 39. Derivatives, including separated embedded 
derivatives are also classified as held for trading unless they are designated as effective 
hedging instruments. 

The Group has not designated any financial assets upon initial recognition at fair value 
through profit or loss. 

Subsequent to initial recognition, financial assets at fair value through profit or loss are 
measured at fair value. Any gains or losses arising from changes in fair values of the financial 
assets are recognised in profit or loss. Net gains or losses on financial assets at fair value 
through profit or loss include exchange differences.

Derivatives embedded in host contracts are accounted for as separate derivatives and 
recorded at fair value if their economic characteristics and risks are not closely related to 
those of the host contracts and the host contracts are not measured at fair value with changes 
in fair value recognised in profit or loss. These embedded derivatives are measured at fair 
value with changes in fair value recognised in profit or loss. Reassessment only occurs if there 
is a change in the terms of the contract that significantly modifies the cash flows that would 
otherwise be required.

 ii) loans and receivables 

Non-derivative financial assets with fixed or determinable payments that are not quoted in 
an active market are classified as loans and receivables. Subsequent to initial recognition, 
loans and receivables are carried at amortised cost using the effective interest method, less 
impairment losses. Gains and losses are recognised in profit or loss when the loans and 
receivables are derecognised or impaired, as well as through the amortisation process.
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2.14 Financial instruments (continued)

(a) Financial assets (continued)

 iii) Held-to-maturity investments

Non-derivative financial assets with fixed or determinable payments and fixed maturity are 
classified as held-to-maturity when the Group has the positive intention and ability to hold the 
assets to maturity. Subsequent to initial recognition, held-to-maturity investments are measured 
at amortised cost using the effective interest method less impairment losses. Gains and losses 
are recognised in profit or loss when the held-to-maturity investments are derecognised or 
impaired, and through the amortisation process.

 iv) available-for-sale financial assets

Available-for-sale financial assets include equity and debt securities. Equity investments 
classified as available-for-sale are those, which are neither classified as held for trading nor 
designated at fair value through profit or loss. Debt securities in this category are those which 
are intended to be held for an indefinite period of time and which may be sold in response to 
needs for liquidity or in response to changes in the market conditions. 

After initial recognition, available-for-sale financial assets are measured at fair value with gains 
or losses being recognised in other comprehensive income, until the investment is derecognised 
at which time the cumulative gain or loss previously reported in other comprehensive income 
is reclassified from equity to profit or loss as a reclassification adjustment. Impairment losses, 
foreign exchange gains and losses on monetary instruments and interest calculated using the 
effective interest method are recognised in profit or loss. 

Investments in equity instruments whose fair value cannot be reliably measured are measured 
at cost less impairment loss.

A financial asset is derecognised where the contractual right to receive cash flows from the asset 
has expired. On derecognition of a financial asset in its entirety, the difference between the carrying 
amount and the sum of the consideration received and any cumulative gain or loss that has been 
recognised directly in other comprehensive income is recognised in profit or loss.

All regular way purchases and sales of financial assets are recognised or derecognised on the trade 
date that is the date that the Group commits to purchase or sell the asset. Regular way purchases 
or sales are purchases or sales of financial assets that require delivery of assets within the period 
generally established by regulation or convention in the marketplace concerned. 

(b) Financial liabilities

Financial liabilities are recognised when, and only when, the Group becomes a party to the contractual 
provisions of the financial instrument. The Group determines the classification of its financial liabilities 
at initial recognition. 

Financial liabilities are initially recognised at fair value, plus, in the case of financial liabilities not at 
fair value through profit or loss, directly attributable transaction costs. 
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2.14 Financial instruments (continued)

(b) Financial liabilities (continued)

The measurement of financial liabilities depends on their classification as follows:

 i) Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss

Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss include financial liabilities held for trading. 
Financial liabilities are classified as held for trading if they are acquired for the purpose of 
selling in the near term. This category includes derivative financial instruments entered into by 
the Group that are not designated as hedging instruments in hedge relationships. Separated 
embedded derivatives are also classified as held for trading unless they are designated as 
effective hedging instruments. 

Subsequent to initial recognition, financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss are 
measured at fair value. Any gains or losses arising from changes in fair value of the financial 
liabilities are recognised in profit or loss. 

The Group has not designated any financial liabilities upon initial recognition at fair value 
through profit or loss.

 ii) Financial liabilities at amortised cost

After initial recognition, financial liabilities that are not carried at fair value through profit or 
loss are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective interest method. Gains 
and losses are recognised in profit or loss when the liabilities are derecognised, and through 
the amortisation process.

A financial liability is de-recognised when the obligation under the liability is discharged or cancelled 
or expires. When an existing financial liability is replaced by another from the same lender on 
substantially different terms, or the terms of an existing liability are substantially modified, such an 
exchange or modification is treated as a de-recognition of the original liability and the recognition of 
a new liability, and the difference in the respective carrying amounts is recognised in profit or loss.

Offsetting of financial assets and financial liabilities
Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net amount is presented in the balance sheets, 
when and only when, there is a currently enforceable legal right to set off the recognised amounts and there 
is an intention to settle on a net basis, or to realise the assets and settle the liabilities simultaneously.

2.15 Cash and cash equivalents 

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash at bank, cash on hand and demand deposits which are subject to 
an insignificant risk of changes in value. These also include bank overdrafts that form an integral part of the 
Group’s cash management.
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2.16 Impairment of financial assets

The Group assesses at each reporting date whether there is any objective evidence that a financial asset or 
group of financial assets is impaired.

a) Financial assets carried at amortised cost

For financial assets carried at amortised cost, the Group first assesses whether objective evidence of 
impairment exists individually for financial assets that are individually significant, or collectively for 
financial assets that are not individually significant. If the Group determines that no objective evidence 
of impairment exists for an individually assessed financial asset, whether significant or not, it includes 
the asset in a group of financial assets with similar credit risk characteristics and collectively assess 
them for impairment. Assets that are individually assessed for impairment and for which an impairment 
loss is, or continues to be recognised are not included in a collective assessment of impairment. 

If there is objective evidence that an impairment loss on financial assets carried at amortised cost 
has been incurred, the amount of the loss is measured as the difference between the asset’s carrying 
amount and the present value of estimated future cash flows discounted at the financial asset’s original 
effective interest rate. If a loan has a variable interest rate, the discount rate for measuring any 
impairment loss is the current effective interest rate. The carrying amount of the asset is reduced 
through the use of an allowance account. The impairment loss is recognised in profit or loss.

When the asset becomes uncollectible, the carrying amount of impaired financial asset is reduced 
directly or if an amount was charged to the allowance account, the amounts charged to the allowance 
account are written off against the carrying value of the financial asset. 

To determine whether there is objective evidence that an impairment loss on financial assets has been 
incurred, the Group considers factors such as the probability of insolvency or significant financial 
difficulties of the debtor and default or significant delay in payments. 

If in a subsequent period, the amount of the impairment loss decreases and the decrease can 
be related objectively to an event occurring after the impairment was recognised, the previously 
recognised impairment loss is reversed to the extent that the carrying amount of the asset does not 
exceed its amortised cost at the reversal date. The amount of reversal is recognised in profit or loss. 

b) Financial assets carried at cost

If there is objective evidence (such as significant adverse changes in the business environment where 
the issuer operates, probability of insolvency or significant financial difficulties of the issuer) that 
an impairment loss on financial assets carried at cost has been incurred, the amount of the loss is 
measured as the difference between the asset’s carrying amount and the present value of estimated 
future cash flow discounted at the current market rate of return for a similar financial asset. Such 
impairment losses are not reversed in subsequent periods.
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2.16 Impairment of financial assets (continued)

c) available-for-sale financial assets

In the case of equity investments classified as available-for-sale, objective evidence of impairment 
include (i) significant financial difficulty of the issue or obligor, (ii) information about significant 
changes with an adverse effect that have taken place in the technological, market, economic or 
legal environment in which the issuer operates, and indicates that the cost of the investment in equity 
instrument may not be recovered; and (iii) a significant or prolonged decline in the fair value of the 
investment below its costs. ‘Significant’ is to be evaluated against the original cost of the investment 
and ‘prolonged’ against the period in which the fair value has been below its original cost.

If an available-for-sale financial asset is impaired, an amount comprising the difference between its 
cost (net of any principal repayment and amortisation) and its current fair value, less any impairment 
loss previously recognised in profit or loss, is transferred from other comprehensive income to profit or 
loss. Reversals of impairment loss in respect of equity instruments are not recognised in profit or loss; 
increases in their fair value after impairment are recognised directly in other comprehensive income. 

In the case of debt instruments classified as available-for-sale, impairment is assessed based on 
the same criteria as financial assets carried at amortised cost. However, the amount recorded for 
impairment is the cumulative loss measured as the difference between the amortised cost and the 
current fair value, less any impairment loss on that investment previously recognised in profit or loss. 
Future interest income continues to be accrued based on the reduced carrying amount of the asset, 
using the rate of interest used to discount the future cash flows for the purpose of measuring the 
impairment loss. The interest income is recorded as part of finance income. If, in a subsequent year, 
the fair value of a debt instrument increases and the increases can be objectively related to an event 
occurring after the impairment loss was recognised in profit or loss, the impairment loss is reversed 
in profit or loss.

2.17 Impairment of non-financial assets

The Group assesses at each reporting date whether there is an indication that an asset may be impaired. If 
any such indication exists, or when annual impairment testing for an asset is required, the Group makes an 
estimate of the asset’s recoverable amount. 

An asset’s recoverable amount is the higher of an asset’s or cash-generating unit’s fair value less costs of 
disposal and its value in use and is determined for an individual asset, unless the asset does not generate 
cash inflows that are largely independent of those from other assets. Where the carrying amount of an asset 
exceeds its recoverable amount, the asset is considered impaired and written down to its recoverable amount.              

In assessing value in use, the estimated future cash flows expected to be generated by the asset are discounted 
to their present value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value 
of money and the risks specific to the asset. In determining fair value less costs of disposal, recent market 
transactions are taken into account, if available. If no such transactions can be identified, an appropriate 
valuation model is used. 
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2.17 Impairment of non-financial assets (continued)

The Group bases its impairment calculation on detailed budgets and forecast calculations which are prepared 
separately for each of the Group’s cash-generating units to which the individual assets are allocated. These 
budgets and forecast calculations are generally covering a period of five years. For longer periods, a long-
term growth rate is calculated and applied to project future cash flows after the fifth year.

Impairment losses are recognised in profit or loss except for assets that are previously revalued where the 
revaluation was taken to other comprehensive income. In this case the impairment is also recognised in other 
comprehensive income up to the amount of any previous revaluation. 

For assets excluding goodwill, an assessment is made at each reporting date as to whether there is any 
indication that previously recognised impairment losses may no longer exist or may have decreased. If such 
indication exists, the Group estimates the asset’s or cash-generating unit’s recoverable amount. A previously 
recognised impairment loss is reversed only if there has been a change in the estimates used to determine 
the asset’s recoverable amount since the last impairment loss was recognised. If that is the case, the carrying 
amount of the asset is increased to its recoverable amount. That increase cannot exceed the carrying amount 
that would have been determined, net of depreciation, had no impairment loss been recognised previously. 
Such reversal is recognised in profit or loss unless the asset is measured at revalued amount, in which case 
the reversal is treated as a revaluation increase. 

2.18 Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable value. Cost comprises the invoiced value of goods 
on a weighted average basis together with the related charges incurred in importing such goods. Where 
necessary, allowance is provided for damaged, obsolete and slow moving items to adjust the carrying value 
of inventories to the lower of cost and net realisable value. Net realisable value is the estimated selling price 
in the ordinary course of business, less estimated costs of completion and the estimated costs necessary to 
make the sale. 

2.19 Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs are capitalised as part of the cost of a qualifying asset if they are directly attributable to the 
acquisition, construction or production of that asset. Capitalisation of borrowing costs commences when the 
activities to prepare the asset for its intended use or sale are in progress and the expenditures and borrowing 
costs are incurred. Borrowing costs are capitalised until the assets are substantially completed for their 
intended use or sale. All other borrowing costs are expensed in the period they occur. Borrowing costs consist 
of interest and other costs that an entity incurs in connection with the borrowing of funds.
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2.20 Financial guarantees 

A financial guarantee contract is a contract that requires the issuer to make specified payments to reimburse 
the holder for a loss it incurs because a specified debtor fails to make payment when due in accordance with 
the terms of a debt instrument.

Financial guarantees are initially recognised as a liability at fair value, adjusted for transaction costs that are 
directly attributable to the issuance of the guarantee. Subsequent to initial recognition, financial guarantees 
are recognised as income in profit or loss over the period of the guarantee. If it is probable that the liability 
will be higher than the amount initially recognised less amortisation, the liability is recorded at the higher 
amount with the difference charged to profit or loss. 

2.21 provisions

Provisions are recognised when the Group has a present obligation (legal or constructive) as a result of a past 
event, it is probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits will be required to settle the 
obligation and a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation. 

Provisions are reviewed at each reporting period and adjusted to reflect the current best estimate. If it is no 
longer probable that an outflow of economic resources will be required to settle the obligation, the provision 
is reversed. If the effect of the time value of money is material, provisions are discounted using a current 
pre-tax rate that reflects, where appropriate, the risks specific to the liability. When discounting is used, the 
increase in the provision due to the passage of time is recognised as a finance cost.

2.22 employee benefits

a) Defined contribution plans

The Group participates in the national pension schemes as defined by the laws of the countries in 
which it has operations. In particular, the Singapore companies in the Group make contributions to the 
Central Provident Fund scheme in Singapore, a defined contribution pension scheme. Contributions to 
defined contribution pension schemes are recognised as an expense in the period in which the related 
service is performed.

b) employee leave entitlement

Employee entitlements to annual leave are recognised as a liability when they are accrued to the 
employees. The undiscounted liability for leave expected to be settled wholly before twelve months 
after the end of the reporting period is recognised for services rendered by employees up to the end of 
the reporting period. The liability for leave expected to be settled beyond twelve months from the end 
of the reporting period is determined using the projected unit credit method. The net total of services 
costs, net interest on the liability and remeasurement of the liability are recognised in profit or loss. 
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2.23 leases

The determination of whether an arrangement is, or contains a lease is based on the substance of the 
arrangement at inception date: whether fulfilment of the arrangement is dependent on the use of a specific 
asset or assets and the arrangement conveys a right to use the asset, even if that right is not explicitly 
specified in an arrangement. For arrangements entered into prior to 1 January 2005, the date of inception is 
deemed to be 1 January 2005 in accordance with the transitional requirements of INT FRS 104. 

a) as lessee

Finance leases, which transfer to the Group substantially all the risks and rewards incidental to 
ownership of the leased item, are capitalised at the inception of the lease at the fair value of the leased 
asset or, if lower, at the present value of the minimum lease payments. Any initial direct costs are also 
added to the amount capitalised. Lease payments are apportioned between the finance charges and 
reduction of the lease liability so as to achieve a constant rate of interest on the remaining balance 
of the liability. Finance charges are charged to profit or loss. Contingent rents, if any, are charged as 
expenses in the periods in which they are incurred.

Capitalised leased assets are depreciated over the shorter of the estimated useful life of the asset and 
the lease term, if there is no reasonable certainty that the Group will obtain ownership by the end of 
the lease term.

Operating lease payments are recognised as an expense in profit or loss on a straight-line basis over 
the lease term. The aggregate benefit of incentives provided by the lessor is recognised as a reduction 
of rental expense over the lease term on a straight-line basis.

b) as lessor

Leases where the Group retains substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership of the asset are 
classified as operating leases. Initial direct costs incurred in negotiating an operating lease are added 
to the carrying amount of the leased asset and recognised over the lease term on the same bases as 
rental income (Note 2.24). Contingent rents are recognised as revenue in the period in which they 
are earned. 

2.24 revenue

Revenue is recognised to the extent that it is probable that the economic benefits will flow to the Group and 
the revenue can be reliably measured, regardless of when the payment is made. Revenue is measured at the 
fair value of consideration received or receivable, taking into account contractually defined terms of payment 
and excluding taxes or duty. The Group assesses its revenue arrangements to determine if it is acting as 
principal or agent. The following specific recognition criteria must also be met before revenue is recognised.

a) Sale of goods

Revenue from sale of goods is recognised upon the transfer of significant risk and rewards of ownership 
of the goods to the customer, usually on delivery of goods. Revenue is not recognised to the extent 
where there are significant uncertainties regarding recovery of the consideration due, associated 
costs or the possible return of goods.
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2.24 revenue (continued)

b) Interest income

Interest income is recognised using the effective interest method.

c) Dividend income

Dividend income is recognised when the Group’s right to receive payment is established.

d) rental income

Rental income arising from operating leases on investment properties is accounted for on a straight-
line basis over the lease term. The aggregate cost of incentives provided to lessees is recognised as 
a reduction of rental income over the lease term on a straight-line basis.

e) market support and administrative service income

Market support and administrative service income is recognised upon rendering of services. 

2.25 Government grants

Government grants are recognised when there is reasonable assurance that the grant will be received and 
all attaching conditions will be complied with.

Government grant shall be recognised in profit or loss on a systematic basis over the periods which the entity 
recognises as expenses the related costs for which the grants are intended to compensate. Grants related to 
income are presented as “Other income”.

2.26 Income taxes

 a) Current tax

Current tax assets and liabilities for the current and prior periods are measured at the amount expected 
to be recovered from or paid to the taxation authorities. The tax rates and tax laws used to compute 
the amount are those that are enacted or substantively enacted at the end of the reporting period, in 
the countries where the Group operates and generates taxable income. 

Current taxes are recognised in profit or loss except to the extent that the tax relates to items recognised 
outside profit or loss, either in other comprehensive income or directly in equity. Management 
periodically evaluates positions taken in the tax returns with respect to situations in which applicable 
tax regulations are subject to interpretation and establishes provisions where appropriate. 
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2.26 Income taxes (continued)

b) Deferred tax

Deferred taxation is provided, using the liability method, on all temporary differences at the end of 
the reporting period between the tax bases of assets and liabilities and their carrying amounts for 
financial reporting purposes. 

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for all taxable temporary differences, except:

– where the deferred tax liability arises from the initial recognition of goodwill or of an asset or 
liability in a transaction that is not a business combination and, at the time of the transaction, 
affects neither the accounting profit nor taxable profit or loss; and 

– in respect of taxable temporary differences associated with investments in subsidiaries, 
associates and interests in joint ventures, where the timing of the reversal of the temporary 
differences can be controlled and it is probable that the temporary differences will not reverse 
in the foreseeable future.

Deferred tax assets are recognised for all deductible temporary differences, carry-forward of 
unabsorbed capital allowances and unutilised tax losses, to the extent that it is probable that taxable 
profit will be available against which the deductible temporary differences, and the carry-forward of 
unused tax credits and unused tax losses can be utilised except: 

– where the deferred tax asset relating to the deductible temporary difference arises from the 
initial recognition of an asset or liability in a transaction that is not a business combination 
and, at the time of the transaction, affects neither the accounting profit nor taxable profit or 
loss; and 

– in respect of deductible temporary differences associated with investments in subsidiaries, 
associates and interests in joint ventures, deferred tax assets are recognised only to the extent 
that it is probable that the temporary differences will reverse in the foreseeable future and 
taxable profit will be available against which the temporary differences can be utilised. 

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at the end of each reporting period and 
reduced to the extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profit will be available 
to allow all or part of the deferred tax asset to be utilised. Unrecognised deferred tax assets are 
reassessed at the end of each reporting period and are recognised to the extent that it has become 
probable that future taxable profit will allow the deferred tax asset to be recovered.
 
Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply in the year 
when the asset is realised or the liability is settled, based on tax rates (and tax laws) that have been 
enacted or substantively enacted at the end of each reporting period. 
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2.26 Income taxes (continued)

b) Deferred tax (continued)

Deferred tax relating to items recognised outside profit or loss is recognised outside profit or 
loss. Deferred tax items are recognised in correlation to the underlying transaction either in other 
comprehensive income or directly in equity and deferred tax arising from a business combination is 
adjusted against goodwill on acquisition. 

Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities are offset, if a legally enforceable right exists to set 
off current tax assets against current income tax liabilities and the deferred taxes relate to the same 
taxable entity and the same taxation authority. 

Tax benefits acquired as part of a business combination, but not satisfying the criteria for separate 
recognition at that date, would be recognised subsequently if new information about facts and 
circumstances changed. The adjustment would either be treated as a reduction to goodwill (as long 
as it does not exceed goodwill) if it is incurred during the measurement period or in profit or loss. 

c) Sales tax

Revenue, expenses and assets are recognised net of the amount of sales tax except:

– where the sales tax incurred on a purchase of assets or services is not recoverable from the 
taxation authority, in which case the sales tax is recognised as part of the cost of acquisition 
of the asset or as part of the expense item as applicable; and

– receivables and payables that are stated with the amount of sales tax included.

The net amount of sales tax recoverable from, or payable to, the taxation authority is included as part 
of receivables or payables in the balance sheet.

2.27 related parties 

A related party is defined as follows: 

(a)  A person or a close member of that person’s family is related to the Group and Company if that person: 

(i)  has control or joint control over the Company;
(ii)  has significant influence over the Company; or 
(iii) is a member of the key management personnel of the Group or Company or of a parent of 

the Company.
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2.27 related parties (continued)

(b) An entity is related to the Group and the Company if any of the following conditions applies: 

(i)  the entity and the Company are members of the same group (which means that each parent, 
subsidiary and fellow subsidiary is related to the others);

(ii) one entity is an associate or joint venture of other entity (or an associate or joint venture of a 
member of a group of which the other entity is a member);

(iii) both entities are joint ventures of the same third party;
(iv) one entity is a joint venture of a third entity and the other entity is an associate of the third entity;
(v) the entity is a post-employment benefit plan for the benefit of employees of either the Company 

or an entity related to the Company. If the Company is itself such a plan, the sponsoring 
employers are also related to the Company;

(vi) the entity is controlled or jointly controlled by a person identified in (a);
(vii)  a person identified in (a)(i) has significant influence over the entity or is a member of the key 

management personnel of the entity (or of a parent of the entity). 

2.28 Segment reporting

The Group’s businesses are generally segmented by its channel of distribution and geographical location. 
Segment results, assets and liabilities include items directly attributable to a segment as well as those that 
can be allocated on a reasonable basis. Unallocated items mainly comprise bank borrowings, finance lease, 
taxation, corporate assets and corporate expenses. The turnover by geographical segments is based on the 
location of the customers regardless of where the goods are produced. The assets and capital expenditure 
are based on the location of those assets.

Segment accounting policies are the same as the policies of the Group. Intersegment transactions are carried 
out based on terms agreed upon between the management of the respective segment.

2.29 Share capital and share issue expenses

Proceeds from issuance of ordinary shares are recognised as share capital in equity. Incremental costs 
directly attributable to the issuance of ordinary shares are deducted against share capital.

2.30 Contingencies

A contingent liability is: 

(a) a possible obligation that arises from past events and whose existence will be confirmed only by the 
occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more uncertain future events not wholly within the control of 
the Group; or 

(b) a present obligation that arises from past events but is not recognised because: 

(i) it is not possible that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits will be required to 
settle the obligation; or 

(ii) the amount of the obligation cannot be measured with sufficient reliability. 
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2.30 Contingencies (continued)

A contingent asset is a possible asset that arises from past events and whose existence will be confirmed only 
by the occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more uncertain future event(s) not wholly within the control of 
the Group. 

Contingent liabilities and assets are not recognised on the balance sheet of the Group, except for contingent 
liabilities assumed in a business combination that are present obligations and which the fair values can be 
reliably determined. 

2.31 exceptional items

Exceptional items are items of income and expense of such a size, nature or incidence that their disclosure is 
relevant to explain the performance of the Group for the year.

3. SIGnIFICant aCCountInG JuDGmentS anD eStImateS

The preparation of the Group’s financial statements requires management to make judgments, estimates 
and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of revenues, expenses, assets and liabilities, and the 
disclosure of contingent liabilities at the end of each reporting period. Uncertainty about these assumptions 
and estimates could result in outcomes that require a material adjustment to the carrying amount of the asset 
or liability affected in the future periods.

3.1 Judgments made in applying accounting policies

In the process of applying the Group’s accounting policies, management has made the following judgments, 
apart from those involving estimations, which have the most significant effect on the amounts recognised in 
the consolidated financial statements.

(i) Income tax

The Group has exposure to income taxes in several jurisdictions. Significant judgment is involved 
in determining the group-wide provision for income taxes. There are certain transactions and 
computations for which the ultimate tax determination is uncertain during the ordinary course of 
business. The Group recognises liabilities for expected tax issues based on estimates of whether 
additional taxes will be due. Where the final tax outcome of these matters is different from the 
amounts that were initially recognised, such differences will impact the income tax and deferred tax 
provisions in the period in which such determination is made. 

The carrying amounts of the income tax items in the financial statements are:
Group Company

2014 2013 2014 2013
$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000

Deferred tax assets 1,154 938 – –
Tax recoverable 2,295 3,515 – –
Provision for taxation 514 3,035 – 476
Deferred tax liabilities 266 240 – –
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3.1 Judgments made in applying accounting policies (continued)

(ii) operating lease commitments - as lessor 

The Group has entered into commercial property leases on its leasehold properties. The Group 
has determined, based on an evaluation of the terms and conditions of the arrangements, that it 
retains all the significant risks and rewards of ownership of these properties which are leased out 
on operating leases.

(iii) Determination of functional currency 

The Group measures foreign currency transactions in the respective functional currencies of the 
Company and its subsidiaries. In determining the functional currencies of the entities in the Group, 
judgment is required to determine the currency that mainly influences sales prices for goods and 
services and of the country whose competitive forces and regulations mainly determines the sales 
prices of its goods and services. The functional currencies of the entities in the Group are determined 
based on management’s assessment of the economic environment in which the entities operate and 
the entities’ process of determining sales prices.

3.2 Key sources of estimation uncertainty 

The key assumptions concerning the future and other key sources of estimation uncertainty at the end of 
the reporting period are discussed below. The Group based its assumptions and estimates on parameters 
available when the financial statements was prepared. Existing circumstances and assumptions about future 
developments, however, may change due to market changes or circumstances arising beyond the control of 
the Group. Such changes are reflected in the assumptions when they occur.

(i) property, furniture, fixtures and equipment, investment in subsidiaries and investment in associates / 
joint venture

The cost of leasehold improvements is depreciated over the lease terms of the tenanted area between 
3 to 6 years and leasehold buildings are depreciated over its leasehold period of 50 years. The other 
furniture, fixtures and equipment is depreciated over the common life expectancies.

The Group and Company assesses whether there are indicators of impairment for property, furniture, 
fixtures and equipment, investment in subsidiaries, and investment in associates / joint venture at 
each reporting date. These assets are tested for impairment where there are indications that the 
carrying amounts may not be recoverable. This requires an estimation of the value in use of the assets. 
Estimating the value in use requires the Group and Company to make an estimate of the future cash 
flow from assets and also to determine appropriate discount rates to calculate the present value of 
this cash flow. The growth rate used of 1.0% (2013: 1.0%) per annum in the estimation does not 
exceed the long-term average growth rate for the industry. The discount rate applied to the cash flow 
projections was 5.40% (2013: 5.40%) per annum. 

The carrying amounts of the Group’s and Company’s property, furniture, fixtures and equipment at 
30 June 2014 were approximately $30,597,000 (2013: $27,139,000) and $475,000 (2013: 
$786,000) respectively. The carrying amounts of the Company’s investment in subsidiaries and of the 
Group’s investment in associates / joint venture at 30 June 2014 was approximately $70,916,000 
(2013: $70,966,000) and $988,000 (2013: $10,166,000) respectively. 
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3.2 Key sources of estimation uncertainty (continued) 

(ii) Inventories 

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable value. The net realisable value is estimated 
based on the estimated average realisable value of each type of inventories. The carrying amount of 
the Group’s inventories at 30 June 2014 was approximately $90,451,000 (2013: $117,694,000).

(iii) Financial guarantees 
 

The Company has issued corporate guarantees to banks for bank borrowings granted to its 
subsidiaries and associates / joint venture with total facilities of approximately $201,215,000 (2013: 
$190,043,000). The fair value of these corporate guarantees is estimated based on the actual rates 
charged by the banks while these guarantees are made available, compared to the estimated rates 
that the banks would have charged had these guarantees not been available. The fair value of these 
corporate guarantees has no material financial impact to the results and retained earnings of the 
Company for the financial years ended 30 June 2014 and 30 June 2013. 

(iv) Impairment of loans and receivables 

The Group and Company assess at each reporting period whether there is any objective evidence 
that a financial asset is impaired. To determine whether there is objective evidence of impairment, the 
Group and Company consider factors such as the probability of insolvency or significant financial 
difficulties of the debtor and default or significant delay in payments. 

Where there is objective evidence of impairment, the amount and timing of future cash flows are 
estimated based on historical loss experience for assets with similar credit risk characteristics. The 
carrying amount of the Group’s and Company’s loans and receivables at the end of the reporting 
period is disclosed in Note 34 to the financial statements. 

(v) Goodwill

Goodwill is tested for impairment annually and whenever there is indication that the goodwill may 
be impaired. The recoverable amounts of the cash-generating unit related to goodwill have been 
determined based on value-in-use calculations. These calculations require the use of estimates (Note 16).
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4. Group CompanIeS 

The subsidiaries as at 30 June are:-

Name of company 
[country of incorporation] Principal activities Cost

Percentage of  
equity interest

2014 2013 2014 2013
$'000 $'000 % %

Held by the Company

~ Fashion Dynamics 
International Pte Ltd 
[Singapore]

Investment holding company 3,000 3,000 100 100

~ F. J. B. Investment Pte Ltd
[Singapore]

Investment holding company ^ ^ 100 100

~ F J Benjamin Concepts Pte Ltd 
[Singapore]

Investment holding company 60 60 100 100

~ F J Benjamin Ideas Pte Ltd  
[Singapore] 

Investment holding company 3,000 3,000 100 100

# F J Benjamin (M) Sdn. Bhd. 
[Malaysia]

Importers, distributors and 
retailers of consumer fashion 
wear, accessories and 
timepieces

8,516 8,516 100 100

# F J Benjamin (H.K.) Limited 
[Hong Kong]

Importers, exporters, 
distributors, retailers of 
timepieces and consumer 
fashion accessories

58,612 58,612 100 100

+ BMI (Hong Kong) Limited
[Hong Kong]

Dormant 1,119 1,119 100 100

# Ferro Designs Limited
[Hong Kong]

Investment holding company 19 19 100 100

@ Arcangel Limited 
[Hong Kong]

Distributors of consumer 
fashion wear

693 693 60 60

# F J Benjamin (Taiwan) Ltd
[Taiwan]

Importers, distributors and 
retailers of timepieces

3,909 3,909 100 100 

+ FJ Benjamin (Aust) Pty Ltd 
[Australia]

Dormant 21,434 21,434 100 100

@* F J Benjamin Concepts 
(Thailand) Ltd [Thailand]

Dormant 119 119 49 49

+ F. J. Benjamin Fashions  
(U.S.) Inc. [United States]

Distributors and retailers of 
consumer fashion wear and 
accessories

– 289 – 100

100,481 100,770
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4. Group CompanIeS (ContInueD)

Name of company 
[country of incorporation] Principal activities

Percentage of 
equity interest
2014 2013

% %

Held through subsidiaries

~ F J Benjamin Leading Watch 
Concepts Pte Ltd  
[Singapore]

Dormant 100 100

~ F J Benjamin Lifestyle Pte. Ltd. 
[Singapore]

Importers, exporters, distributors and retailers 
of consumer fashion wear, accessories and 
home furnishings

100 100

~ F J Benjamin (Singapore) Pte Ltd 
[Singapore]

Importers, exporters, licensees, distributors 
and retailers of consumer fashion wear, 
accessories and timepieces

100 100

~ Fashion Dynamics Singapore Pte 
Ltd [Singapore]

Importers, exporters, licensees, distributors 
and retailers of consumer fashion wear, 
accessories and timepieces

100 100

# F J Benjamin Lifestyle Sdn. Bhd. 
[Malaysia]

Importers, exporters, distributors and retailers 
of consumer fashion wear, accessories and 
timepieces

100 100

# F J Benjamin Luxury Timepieces 
Sdn. Bhd. [Malaysia]

Importers, distributors and retailers of 
timepieces

100 100

@ Fashion Dynamics HK Ltd 
[Hong Kong]

Sourcing activities 100 100

+ Fashion Dynamics (Shenzhen) Co. 
Ltd. [People’s Republic of China]

Sourcing activities 100 –

@ F J Benjamin (Shanghai) Co., Ltd 
[People’s Republic of China]

Importers and distributors of consumer fashion 
wear and timepieces

100 100

@ Atelier Arcangel Ltd [United 
Kingdom]

Distributors of consumer fashion wear 100 100

+ Arcangel Inc. [United States] Distributors of consumer fashion wear 100 –

+ F. J. Benjamin Fashions (U.S.) Inc. 
[United States]

Distributors and retailers of consumer fashion 
wear and accessories

100 –

+ F J Benjamin Italy S.R.L.
[Italy]

Promoters, marketers and retailer of fashion 
apparel and accessories

100 100

+ PT Meteor Prima Sejati  
[Indonesia]

Importers, exporters and distributors of 
consumer fashion wear and accessories

100 100

~ Audited by Ernst & Young LLP, Singapore.
# Audited by member firms of Ernst & Young Global in the respective countries.
+ Not required to be audited by the laws of its country of incorporation. These foreign subsidiaries are not considered significant as 

defined under Clause 718 of the Listing Manual of the Singapore Exchange Securities Trading Limited.
* Considered a subsidiary with the Group holding 79% of voting rights (Note 31).
^ Cost of investment is two Singapore dollars.
@  Audited by other auditors.
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5. revenue

Revenue of the Group represents the invoiced value of products supplied to external customers. 

6. otHer InCome

Group
2014 2013

$'000 $'000

Market support and administrative service income (Note 39) 9,144 8,499
Gain on remeasurement of previously held interest in associate to fair value 

upon the loss of significant influence – 2,374
Gain on disposal of investment securities 14 –
Fair value (loss) / gain on investment securities (1,537) 347
Rental income – 218
Government grants  238 36
Loss on disposal of furniture, fixtures and equipment (507) (62)
Miscellaneous credits received from expiry of distribution agreement 1,864 –
Write back of accruals 646 124
Sample sales income 112 141
Others 221 229
 10,195 11,906

7. StaFF CoStS

Group
2014 2013

$'000 $'000

Salaries and bonuses 48,487 45,797
Provident fund contributions 5,740 5,767

54,227 51,564
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8. otHer operatInG eXpenSeS

Group
2014 2013

$'000 $'000

The following items have been included in arriving at other operating expenses:
Audit fees paid to:
– Auditors of the Company 313 313
– Other auditors 153 156
Non-audit fees paid to:
– Auditors of the Company 112 147
– Other auditors 54 55
Allowance for inventory obsolescence (Note 20) 2,649 3,757
Inventories written down (Note 20) 1,101 1,257
Reversal of provision for doubtful debt (685) (160)
Bad debts written off 20 94
Rental of equipment 528 419
Outlet related expenses 6,000 6,074
Transportation and accommodation expenses 2,708 3,247
Utilities 2,061 1,850
Freight, handling and shipping costs 2,364 2,004
Discounts allowed 2,384 2,111
Professional and legal fees 3,977 4,778
Samples / repairs of stocks 1,778 2,194
Repair and maintenance 1,549 1,374

9. eXCeptIonal ItemS

Group
2014 2013

$'000 $'000

Provision for impairment of fixed assets and early termination cost for non-
performing stores (1,350) –

Gain on disposal of properties – 2,819
(1,350) 2,819

10. IntereSt eXpenSe

Group
2014 2013

$'000 $'000

Interest expense on:
– Bank borrowings 3,546 3,274
– Finance lease 26 33

3,572 3,307
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11. taXatIon

Group
2014 2013

$'000 $'000

The major components of income tax expense for financial year ended  
30 June were:

Current tax 1,050 3,767
Under provision in respect of prior years* 2,034 78
Deferred tax:- 

Movements in temporary differences (68) (589)
Over provision in respect of prior years (124) (2)

Tax expense for the year recognised in profit or loss 2,892 3,254

* Included in the under provision in FY2014 was a write off of tax recoverable following the resolution of an issue with the Comptroller 
of Income Tax.

A reconciliation between tax expense and the product of accounting (loss) / profit multiplied by the applicable 
corporate tax rate for the years ended 30 June 2014 and 2013 is as follows:

Group
2014 2013

$'000 $'000

(Loss) / Profit before share of results of associates / joint venture and  
before taxation       (17,518) 6,526

Tax at the domestic rates applicable to profits in the countries where  
the Group operates (3,889) 1,451

Income not subjected to tax (1,079) (1,750)
Expenses not deductible for tax purposes 2,761 1,636
Deferred tax assets not recognised 3,189 1,741
Under provision in respect of prior years 1,910 76
Others – 100
Income tax expense recognised in profit or loss 2,892 3,254
 
The above reconciliation is prepared by aggregating separate reconciliations for each national jurisdiction.

As at 30 June 2014, certain subsidiaries had unutilised tax losses of approximately $51.7 million (2013: 
$36.2 million) available for offset against future taxable profits of the companies in which the losses arose, 
for which no deferred tax assets are recognised due to uncertainty of their recoverability. The use of these 
unutilised tax losses are subject to the agreement of the tax authorities and compliance with certain provisions 
of the tax legislation of the respective countries in which the companies operate. 
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12. (loSS) / earnInGS per SHare

The basic (loss) / earnings per share amounts are calculated by dividing the (loss) / profit for the financial year 
that is attributable to owners of the parent by the weighted average number of ordinary shares outstanding 
during the financial year.

Diluted (loss) / earnings per share amounts are calculated by dividing (loss) / profit for the financial year 
that is attributable to owners of the parent by the weighted average number of ordinary shares outstanding 
during the financial year plus the weighted average number of ordinary shares that would be issued on the 
conversion of all the dilutive potential ordinary shares into ordinary shares.

The following table reflects the (loss) / profit and share data used in the computation for basic and diluted 
(loss) / earnings per share for the financial years ended 30 June:

Group
2014 2013

$'000 $'000

Net (loss) / profit for the financial year attributable to owners of the parent 
used in the computations of basic and diluted (loss) / earnings per share (22,102) 4,447

'000 '000

Weighted average number of ordinary shares for basic and diluted (loss) / 
earnings per share computation 568,710 568,710

13. property, FurnIture, FIXtureS anD eQuIpment

Group
Furniture 

and Fittings

Electrical 
Installation 

and
Office 

Equipment
Motor 

Vehicles

Data 
Processing 
Equipment

Leasehold 
Improvements

Leasehold 
Building Total

$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000

Cost 
At 1 July 2012 2,087 3,735 2,496 4,350 37,860 16,603 67,131
Currency realignment (33) (2) (1) (13) (68) (159) (276)
Additions 1,374 383 – 343 8,607 – 10,707
Disposals (95) (136) – (31) (5,463) (2,985) (8,710)
At 30 June 2013 and 

1 July 2013 3,333 3,980 2,495 4,649 40,936 13,459 68,852
Currency realignment (1) (52) (8) (48) (422) (149) (680)
Additions 714 610 – 403 14,830 – 16,557
Disposals (110) (239) (70) (466) (3,636) – (4,521)
Transfer to asset held 

for sale – – – – – (2,552) (2,552)
At 30 June 2014 3,936 4,299 2,417 4,538 51,708 10,758 77,656
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13. property, FurnIture, FIXtureS anD eQuIpment (ContInueD)

Group
Furniture 

and Fittings

Electrical 
Installation 

and
Office 

Equipment
Motor

Vehicles

Data 
Processing 
Equipment

Leasehold 
Improvements

Leasehold 
Building Total

$’000 $’000 $’000 $’000 $’000 $’000 $’000

Accumulated depreciation 
and impairment loss

At 1 July 2012 1,313 2,461 1,087 3,515 27,762 4,395 40,533
Currency realignment 1 (6) (1) (9) (26) (36) (77)
Charge for the 

financial year 490 427 415 436 5,596 311 7,675
Utilisation of provision for 

impairment – – – – (20) – (20)
Disposals (94) (128) – (26) (5,326) (824) (6,398)
At 30 June 2013 and 

1 July 2013 1,710 2,754 1,501 3,916 27,986 3,846 41,713
Currency realignment (3) (32) (5) (46) (277) (45) (408)
Charge for the  

financial year 732 431 413 501 6,888 276 9,241
Impairment loss 2 – – – 768 – 770
Disposals (93) (198) (70) (453) (2,738) – (3,552)
Transfer to asset held  

for sale – – – – – (705) (705)
At 30 June 2014 2,348 2,955 1,839 3,918 32,627 3,372 47,059

Net carrying amount
At 30 June 2014 1,588 1,344 578 620 19,081 7,386 30,597
At 30 June 2013 1,623 1,226 994 733 12,950 9,613 27,139

During the financial year, an impairment loss of $770,000 was recognised on leasehold improvements to 
bring their carrying values to their recoverable values. Their recoverable amounts were based on the value 
in use of the leasehold improvements. 

 assets pledged as security

The Group’s leasehold buildings with a carrying amount of $7,386,000 (2013: $9,613,000) are pledged 
as security for bank facilities.
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13. property, FurnIture, FIXtureS anD eQuIpment (ContInueD)

Company
Furniture 

and Fittings

Electrical 
Installation 
and Office 
Equipment

Motor 
Vehicles

Data 
Processing 
Equipment

Leasehold 
Improvements Total

$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000

Cost 
At 1 July 2012 138 390 1,167 26 2,512 4,233
Additions – – – 6 3 9
At 30 June 2013 and 1 July 2013 138 390 1,167 32 2,515 4,242
Additions – – – 2 5 7
Disposals – – (5) – – (5)
At 30 June 2014 138 390 1,162 34 2,520 4,244
Accumulated depreciation and 

impairment loss
At 1 July 2012 57 346 289 22 2,094 2,808
Charge for the financial year 11 36 232 7 362 648
At 30 June 2013 and 1 July 2013 68 382 521 29 2,456 3,456
Charge for the financial year 17 2 232 3 64 318
Disposals – – (5) – – (5)
At 30 June 2014 85 384 748 32 2,520 3,769

Net carrying amount
At 30 June 2014 53 6 414 2 – 475
At 30 June 2013 70 8 646 3 59 786

Group Company
2014 2013 2014 2013

$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000

Net carrying amount includes furniture, fixtures 
and equipment under finance leases:-

Motor vehicles 415 710 414 646

Leased assets are pledged as security for the related finance lease liabilities. 

 non-current asset held for sale

On 8 April 2014, the Company’s subsidiary in Hong Kong entered into a provisional sale and purchase 
agreement to sell one unit of its properties. As at 30 June 2014, the leasehold building with a carrying 
amount of approximately $1,847,000 related to the sale, has been presented in the balance sheet as “Non-
current asset held for sale”. The sale was subsequently completed on 30 July 2014 (Note 42).
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14. InveStment propertIeS 

Group
2014 2013

$'000 $'000

Balance sheet:
Cost
At 1 July – 7,004
Disposal – (6,829)
Currency realignment – (175)
At 30 June – –

Accumulated depreciation and impairment loss
At 1 July – 1,853
Charge for the financial year – 82
Disposal – (1,888)
Currency realignment – (47)
At 30 June – –

Net book value – –

Group
2014 2013

$'000 $'000

Income statement:
Rental income from investment properties – 218
Direct operating expenses – 40

15. SuBSIDIarIeS

Company
2014 2013

$'000 $'000

Investment in subsidiaries:
Unquoted shares, at cost 100,481 100,770
Impairment losses (29,565) (29,804)

70,916 70,966

Receivables from subsidiaries:
Loans receivable, unsecured 21,330 20,453
Other receivables 64,010 80,065
Accrual for financial undertakings (6,196) (4,864)

79,144 95,654
Allowance for doubtful debts (57,650) (54,562)

21,494 41,092

92,410 112,058
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15. SuBSIDIarIeS (ContInueD)

Details of the subsidiaries are set out at Note 4. During the year, the Company has transferred its entire share 
in F J Benjamin Fashions (U.S.) Inc. to Fashion Dynamics International Pte Ltd. As a result, the transferee will 
become the immediate holding company of F J Benjamin Fashions (U.S.) Inc. The consideration transferred 
amounted to $289,000 and accordingly the impairment loss previously provided for by the Company was 
written back. In addition, the Company provided additional impairment loss of $50,000 for a subsidiary in 
the year. 

The loans receivable have no fixed terms of repayment and are not expected to be repaid within one year. 
The loans receivable bear interest at 4.0% (2013: 4.0%) per annum. The other receivables are non-trade 
related, unsecured, interest-free, with no fixed terms of repayment and repayable only when the cash flow of 
the subsidiaries permit.

Accrual for financial undertakings relates to the financial support given to certain subsidiaries.

The Company has undertaken not to recall the loans receivable and amounts receivable from certain 
subsidiaries amounting to $5,749,000 (2013: $5,635,000) and $43,730,000 (2013: $43,987,000) 
respectively, until such time the subsidiaries are in the position to repay the amounts without impairing their 
respective liquidity positions.

16. GooDWIll 

Group
2014 2013

$'000 $'000

At 1 July and 30 June  559 559

 Impairment testing of goodwill 

Goodwill acquired through business combination has been allocated to one cash-generating unit (“CGU”) 
within the Distribution segment. 

The recoverable amounts of the CGU associated with goodwill have been determined based on value in use 
calculations using cash flow projections from financial budgets approved by management covering a five-
year period. The pre-tax discount rate applied to the cash flow projections and the forecasted growth rate 
used to extrapolate cash flow projections beyond the five-year period are 5.4% (2013: 5.4% per annum) 
and 1% (2013: 1% per annum) per annum respectively. 

Gross margins used in the value in use calculations were based on budgeted gross margins derived from 
past performance and management’s expectations of market developments. The pre-tax discount rate reflects 
the current market assessment of the risks specific to the CGU. This is the benchmark used by management 
to assess operating performance and to evaluate future investment proposals. The forecasted growth rate 
did not exceed the long-term average growth rate for the distribution business in which the CGU operates. 
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17. InveStment In aSSoCIateS / JoInt venture 

 Group
2014 2013

$'000 $'000

Shares, at cost 4,153 4,153
Impairment losses (1,559) (1,559)
Share of post-acquisition reserves 344 9,426
Share of foreign currency translation reserve (1,950) (1,854)

988 10,166

The principal activities and related details of the Group’s significant associates / joint venture are as follows:

(a) a 50% (2013: 50%) interest in a Singapore-incorporated company, Devil’s Bar Pte Ltd, whose 
principal activities comprise the operating of cafes and entertainment outlets. It remains dormant 
during the financial year. The entity is audited by Ernst & Young LLP, Singapore;

(b) a 48% (2013:  48%) interest in a Singapore-incorporated company, FJD Pte Ltd, which is dormant 
during the financial year. The entity is audited by Ernst & Young LLP, Singapore; and

(c) a 50% (2013: 50%) interest in a joint venture, an Indonesia-incorporated company, PT Gilang 
Agung Persada and its subsidiary, whose principal activities comprise the distribution of consumer 
fashion wear, accessories and timepieces and other sales related activities. The entity is audited by 
an associated firm of Moore Stephens International Limited.

The Group’s interests in these associates / joint venture are held through various subsidiaries. The operations 
of these associates / joint venture are not managed by the Group. Dividends of approximately $668,000 
were received from the joint venture in FY2013.

The summarised aggregated financial information of the equity accounted investments, which comprises 
mainly balances and results of the joint venture not adjusted for the proportion of ownership interest held by 
the Group are as follows:

2014 2013
$'000 $'000

Statement of financial position
Cash and short term deposits 2,064 1,675
Other current assets 80,268 77,656
Non-current assets 17,723 19,897
Total assets 100,055 99,228

Current liabilities (excluding trade and other payables and provisions) 15,173 9,610
Other current liabilities 75,454 74,289
Non-current liabilities (excluding trade and other payables and provisions) 4,957 7,158
Other non-current liabilities 2,684 3,031
Total liabilities 98,268 94,088
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17. InveStment In aSSoCIateS / JoInt venture (ContInueD)

2014 2013
$'000 $'000

Statement of comprehensive income
Revenue 111,221 113,650
Depreciation and amortisation (3,382) (3,379)
Interest income 17 12
Interest expense (816) (833)
(Loss) / Profit before tax (3,328) 3,243
Income tax expense (50) (833)
(Loss) / Profit after tax (3,378) 2,410

18.  InveStment SeCurItIeS

Group Company
2014 2013 2014 2013

$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000

Current:
Held for trading financial assets
– Quoted equity investments 2,724 4,261 – –

Non-current:
Available-for-sale financial assets
– Unquoted equity investments, at cost 2,246 2,246 2,760 2,760
– Quoted equity investments – 527 – 527

2,246 2,773 2,760 3,287
Impairment losses (2,246) (2,687) (2,760) (3,201)

– 86 – 86

Market value:-
Quoted equity investments 2,724 4,347 – 86

19. otHer reCeIvaBleS

Group
2014 2013

$'000 $'000

Loan receivable from third party, unsecured 260 260

The unsecured loan receivable from third party is interest-free, has no fixed terms of repayment and is not 
expected to be repaid within one year. The balance is to be settled in cash.
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20. InventorIeS

Group
2014 2013

$'000 $'000

Trading stocks:- 
On hand 73,718 98,303
On consignment 5,684 7,160
In transit 8,581 9,699
Work-in-progress 2,468 2,532
Total inventories at lower of cost and net realisable value 90,451 117,694

Inventories recognised as an expense in cost of sales 220,665 211,475
 Inclusive of the following credit:
 – Reversal of write-down of inventories (2,929) (1,635)
Allowance for inventory obsolescence charged to the income statement 2,649 3,757
Inventories written down charged to the income statement 1,101 1,257

The reversal of write-down of inventories was made during the financial year due to a higher than expected 
realisation on disposal.

21. traDe DeBtorS

Group
2014 2013

$'000 $'000

External trade debtors 8,458 12,973
Trade debts due from joint venture 61,329 51,793

69,787 64,766

Reversal of allowance for doubtful debts charged to the income statement (685) (160)

Trade debtors are non-interest bearing and are generally on 30 to 120 day terms. They are recognised at 
their original invoiced amounts which represent their fair values on initial recognition.

Trade debts due from joint venture are unsecured, non-interest bearing, repayable upon demand and are to 
be settled in cash. 
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21. traDe DeBtorS (ContInueD)

The Group’s trade debtors that are individually impaired at the end of the reporting period and the movement 
of the allowance accounts used to record the impairment are as follows:

Group
Individually impaired

2014 2013
$'000 $'000

Trade debtors – nominal amounts 7 693
Allowance for impairment (7) (693)

– –

Movement in allowance accounts
At 1 July 693 851
Reversal of allowance for the financial year (685) (160)
Exchange differences (1) 2
At 30 June 7 693

Trade debtors that are individually determined to be impaired at the end of the reporting period relate to 
debtors that are in financial difficulties and have defaulted on payments. These receivables are not secured 
by any collateral or credit enhancements.

22. otHer DeBtorS

Group Company
2014 2013 2014 2013

$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000

Other receivables 4,633 2,787 – 103
Deposits 5,461 6,018 92 92
Due from subsidiaries – – 78,274 52,689
Derivative financial assets – 8 – –
Due from joint venture 13,510 8,680 47 29

23,604 17,493 78,413 52,913

Other receivables and amounts due from joint venture are non-trade related, non-interest bearing, unsecured 
and are generally on 60 to 90 day terms.

The amounts due from subsidiaries are non-trade related, unsecured, interest-free and are repayable on 
demand. These balances are to be settled in cash. 

Derivative financial assets relate to the fair value change of forward contracts. 
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22. otHer DeBtorS (ContInueD)

The Group’s other receivables that are impaired at the end of the reporting period and the movement of the 
allowance accounts used to record the impairment are as follows:

Individually impaired
2014 2013

$'000 $'000

Other receivables – nominal amounts 1,188 1,170
Allowance for impairment (1,188) (1,170)

– –

Movement in allowance accounts
At 1 July 1,170 1,154
Exchange differences 18 16
At 30 June 1,188 1,170

Other receivables that are individually determined to be impaired at the end of the reporting period relate to 
debtors that are in financial difficulties and have defaulted on payments. These receivables are not secured 
by any collateral or credit enhancements.

23. traDe anD otHer CreDItorS

Group Company
2014 2013 2014 2013

$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000

Trade creditors 36,534 40,829 – –
Accruals 9,567 10,063 734 909
Sundry creditors 12,077 9,636 239 120
Derivative financial liabilities 10 – – –
Due to subsidiaries – – 1,261 1,500
Due to associate / joint venture 391 472 – –

58,579 61,000 2,234 2,529

Trade creditors and sundry creditors are non-interest bearing and are generally on 30 to 150 day terms. 

Derivative financial liabilities relate to the fair value change of forward contracts.

The amounts due to subsidiaries and associate / joint venture are non-trade related, unsecured, interest-free 
and are repayable on demand. These balances are to be settled in cash.
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24. FInanCe leaSe CreDItorS

The Group has entered into various finance lease facilities for its motor vehicles. These leases expire over the 
next five years and are secured by a charge over the leased assets (Note 13). The average discount rates 
implicit in the leases range from 1.9% to 4.8% (2013: 1.9% to 4.8%) per annum. Lease terms include purchase 
options but do not contain restrictions concerning payments of dividends, additional debt or further leasing.

Group Company
2014 2013 2014 2013

$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000

Present value of minimum lease payments are as follows:-
 Not later than one year 168 163 133 127
 Later than one year but not later than 

five years 434 602 389 522
Total present value of minimum lease payments 602 765 522 649

Future minimum lease repayments are as follows:-
 Not later than one year 183 190 149 149
 Later than one year but not later than 

five years 460 641 409 557
Total future minimum lease payments 643 831 558 706
Amount representing interest (41) (66) (36) (57)

602 765 522 649

25. BanK BorroWInGS
Group

2014 2013
$'000 $'000

Current
Bank overdrafts (Note 32) 12,664 9,099
Trust receipts and bills payable 42,039 44,919
Term loans 7,000 2,481
Short term loans 15,400 17,235

77,103 73,734

non-current
Term loans 7,500 4,500

Corporate guarantees are given by the Company amounting to approximately $201,215,000 (2013: 
$190,043,000) for facilities granted to certain subsidiaries and associates / joint venture. 

 Short term loans and bank overdrafts

The short term loans bear interest at rates that ranged from 2.14% to 5.1% (2013: 2.21% to 5.1%) per 
annum during the financial year. The bank overdrafts bear interest at rates that ranged from 4.20% to 7.85% 
(2013: 3.94% to 7.85%) per annum during the financial year. 
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25. BanK BorroWInGS (ContInueD)

 trust receipts and bills payable

The trust receipts and bills payable bear interest at rates that ranged from 1.65% to 6.28% (2013: 1.25% 
to 5.57%) per annum during the financial year. 

 term loans

The term loans comprise (i) an SGD loan with fixed interest rate at 3.53% per annum repayable in 20 equal 
quarterly instalments commencing August 2011 and, (ii) an SGD loan with fixed interest rate at 4.00% per 
annum repayable in 24 monthly instalments commencing August 2014.

In financial year 2004, one of the subsidiaries of the Company issued $30 million of deferred consideration 
notes (the “notes”) to the Company as consideration for the acquisition of F J Benjamin (Singapore) Pte Ltd 
and F J Benjamin Leading Watch Concepts Pte Ltd. The Company, in turn, sold the notes to one of its wholly-
owned subsidiaries, via a bank. The notes are unsecured, bear interest at 9.90% (2013: 9.90%) per annum 
and will mature in 2018. 

26. otHer lIaBIlItIeS

Other liabilities consist of an advance from an associate. The advance is interest-free, has no fixed terms of 
repayment and is not expected to be repaid within one year. 

27. DeFerreD taXatIon

Group
Consolidated  
balance sheet

Consolidated  
income statement

2014 2013 2014 2013
$’000 $’000 $'000 $'000

Deferred tax liabilities
Depreciation (385) (364) 21 (282)
Provisions 159 164 5 12
Other (40) (40) –  –

(266) (240)

Deferred tax assets
Provisions 821 724 (97) (81)
Depreciation 124 (14) (138) (47)
Unutilised tax losses 209 197 (12) (197)
Other – 31 29 4

1,154 938 (192) (591)
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27. DeFerreD taXatIon (ContInueD)

 Deferred tax assets

The deferred tax assets are recognised in view of the foreseeable future taxable profit based on management 
forecast.

 unrecognised temporary differences relating to investments in subsidiaries and joint venture

At the end of the reporting period, no deferred tax liability (2013: nil) has been recognised for taxes that 
would be payable on the undistributed earnings and unremitted interest income of certain of the Group’s 
investments as: 

– the Group has determined that undistributed profits and unremitted interest income of its subsidiaries 
will not be distributed in the foreseeable future; and

– the Group’s investment in joint venture is held by a wholly-owned subsidiary in the same tax jurisdiction, 
and the Group has determined that undistributed profit of the subsidiary will not be distributed in the 
foreseeable future. 

Such temporary differences for which no deferred tax liabilities have been recognised aggregate 
to $16,325,000 (2013: $10,836,000). The deferred tax liability is estimated to be $2,027,000 
(2013: $1,419,000).

 tax consequences of proposed dividends

There are no income tax consequences (2013: nil) attached to the dividends to the shareholders proposed 
by the Company but not recognised as a liability in the financial statements.

28. loan to JoInt venture partner 

The loan to joint venture partner is secured by shares in the joint venture, bears interest at 4.0% per annum 
and is repayable in 2016. The loan is to be settled in cash. 

29. SHare CapItal

Group and Company
2014 2014 2013 2013

No. of 
shares 

'000 $'000

No. of 
shares 

'000 $'000

ordinary shares issued and fully paid
At 1 July and 30 June 568,710 165,447 568,710 165,447

The holders of ordinary shares are entitled to receive dividends as and when declared by the Company. 
All ordinary shares have no par value and carry one vote per share without restriction.
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30. ForeIGn CurrenCy tranSlatIon reServe

The foreign currency translation reserve comprises all foreign exchange differences arising from the translation 
of the financial statements of foreign operations whose functional currencies are different from the Group’s 
presentation currency, and the translation of monetary items that in substance forms part of the Company’s 
net investment in the foreign operations.

31. non-ControllInG IntereStS

Included in non-controlling interests are preference shares amounting to $124,000. During the financial year 
ended 30 June 2006, a subsidiary issued non-convertible preference shares to a third party which accounted 
for 51% equity interest in the subsidiary. However, these shares only accounted for 21% voting rights in the 
subsidiary. The preference shareholder is entitled to 20% of the dividend declared by the subsidiary and 
does not share in the profit and loss or net assets of the subsidiary.

32. CaSH anD CaSH eQuIvalentS

Group Company
2014 2013 2014 2013

$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000

Cash on hand and at banks 5,176 9,671 175 3,676

Cash at banks earn interest at floating rates based on daily bank deposit rates. 

Cash and cash equivalents included in the consolidated cash flow statement comprise the following balance 
sheet amounts:

Group
2014 2013

$'000 $'000

Cash on hand and at banks 5,176 9,671
Bank overdrafts (Note 25) (12,664) (9,099)

(7,488) 572

33. FInanCIal rISK manaGement oBJeCtIveS anD polICIeS 

The Group and the Company is exposed to financial risks arising from its operations and the use of financial 
instruments. The key financial risks include credit risk, interest rate risk, liquidity risk, currency exchange 
risk and market price risk. The Board of Directors reviews and agrees policies and procedures for the 
management of these risks, which are executed by the management. The Group and the Company do not 
apply hedge accounting. 

The following sections provide details regarding the Group’s and Company’s exposure to the above-
mentioned financial risks and the objectives, policies and processes for the management of these risks.

There has been no change to the Group’s exposure to these financial risks or the manner in which it manages 
and measures its risks. 
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33. FInanCIal rISK manaGement oBJeCtIveS anD polICIeS  (ContInueD)

 Credit risk

Credit risk is the risk of loss that may arise on outstanding financial instruments should a counterparty default 
on its obligations. The Group’s and the Company’s exposure to credit risk arises primarily from trade and 
other debtors. Cash and fixed deposits are placed in banks and financial institutions with good credit rating. 

The Group manages its credit risk through application of credit approvals, credit limits and monitoring 
procedures.

As at the end of the reporting period, the Group’s and the Company’s maximum exposure to credit risk is 
represented by:

–  the carrying amount of each class of financial assets recognised in the balance sheets, including 
derivatives with positive fair values; and

–  $201,215,000 (2013: $190,043,000) relating to corporate guarantees provided by the Company 
to banks on banking facilities granted to certain subsidiaries and associates / joint venture.

The age analysis of the trade and other receivables that are past due at the end of the reporting periods but 
not impaired is as follows:

Group Company
2014 2013 2014 2013

$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000

Within 30 days 2,890 6,461 – –
31 to 60 days 950 8,138 – –
61 to 90 days 3,780 1,733 – –
More than 90 days 29,336 15,612 – –

36,956 31,944 – –

Trade and other receivables that are neither past due nor impaired are with creditworthy debtors with good 
payment record with the Group. 

The Group has (i) an approximately 88% (2013: 80%) of the trade receivables due from a joint venture 
group in Indonesia and (ii) an approximately 14% (2013: 15%) of the financial assets due from a joint 
venture partner in Indonesia. 

In order to avoid excessive concentrations of risk, the Group’s policies and procedures include specific 
guidelines to focus on maintaining a diversified portfolio. Identified concentrations of credit risk are controlled 
and managed accordingly.
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33. FInanCIal rISK manaGement oBJeCtIveS anD polICIeS  (ContInueD)

 Interest rate risk

Interest rate risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of the Group’s and the Company’s financial 
instruments will fluctuate because of changes in market interest rates. The Group’s exposure to interest rate 
risk arises primarily from bank borrowings which are subject to floating interest rates and are re-priced at 
intervals of less than one year. 

The Group’s policy is to manage interest cost using a mix of fixed and floating rate debts, and interest rate 
economic effect of converting borrowings from fixed rates to floating rates or vice versa.

The effect of a reasonably possible increase in interest rates in each type of currency financial instrument, 
with all other variables held constant, would increase / decrease the loss / profit before tax by the amounts 
shown below.

Group

Basis points

Increase 
in loss 

before tax 

Decrease 
in profit 

before tax
2014 2013 2014 2013

$'000 $'000

Singapore dollar borrowings 75 75 (363) (323)
Euro dollar borrowings 75 75 (59) (26)
Malaysian dollar borrowings 75 75 (131) (118)
US dollar borrowings 50 50 (41) (43)

 liquidity risk

Liquidity risk is the risk that the Group and the Company will encounter difficulty in meeting financial 
obligations due to shortage of funds. The Group manages its liquidity risk by maintaining a healthy balance 
of cash and cash equivalents and an adequate amount of committed credit facilities.

The Group assessed the concentration of risk with respect to refinancing its debt and concluded it to be low. 
Access to sources of funding is sufficiently available and debt maturing within 12 months can be rolled over 
with existing lenders. 

The table below summarises the maturity profile of the Group’s and the Company’s financial assets and 
liabilities at the end of the reporting period based on contractual undiscounted repayment obligations.
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33. FInanCIal rISK manaGement oBJeCtIveS anD polICIeS (ContInueD)

liquidity risk (continued)

1 year 
or less

1 to 5 
years

Over 5 
years Total

$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000

Group
2014
Financial assets:
Investment securities 2,724 – – 2,724
Other receivables – – 260 260
Loan to joint venture partner  – 17,930 – 17,930
Trade debtors 69,787 – – 69,787
Other debtors 23,604 – – 23,604
Cash on hand and at banks 5,176 – – 5,176

101,291 17,930 260 119,481

Financial liabilities: 
Trade and other creditors 58,569 – – 58,569
Derivative financial liabilities 10 – – 10
Finance lease creditors 183 460 – 643
Bank borrowings 77,834 7,742 – 85,576
Other creditors – – 2,626 2,626

136,596 8,202 2,626 147,424

Group
2013
Financial assets:
Investment securities 4,261 – 86 4,347
Other receivables – – 260 260
Loan to joint venture partner  – 18,590 – 18,590
Trade debtors 64,766 – – 64,766
Other debtors 17,485 – – 17,485
Derivative financial assets 8 – – 8
Cash on hand and at banks 9,671 – – 9,671

96,191 18,590 346 115,127

Financial liabilities: 
Trade and other creditors 61,000 – – 61,000
Finance lease creditors 190 641 – 831
Bank borrowings 74,194 4,659 – 78,853
Other creditors – – 2,603 2,603

135,384 5,300 2,603 143,287
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33. FInanCIal rISK manaGement oBJeCtIveS anD polICIeS (ContInueD)

liquidity risk (continued)

1 year 
or less

1 to 5 
years

Over 5 
years Total

$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000

Company
2014
Financial assets:
Subsidiaries – – 27,690 27,690
Other debtors 78,413 – – 78,413
Cash on hand and at banks 175 – – 175

78,588 – 27,690 106,278

Financial liabilities:
Trade and other payables 2,234 – – 2,234
Finance lease creditors 149 409 – 558

2,383 409 – 2,792

2013
Financial assets:
Subsidiaries – – 45,956 45,956
Investment securities – – 86 86
Other debtors 52,913 – – 52,913
Cash on hand and at banks 3,676 – – 3,676

56,589 – 46,042 102,631

Financial liabilities:
Trade and other payables 2,529 – – 2,529
Finance lease creditors 149 557 – 706

2,678 557 – 3,235
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33. FInanCIal rISK manaGement oBJeCtIveS anD polICIeS (ContInueD)

 Currency exchange risk

The Group has transactional currency exposures arising from sales or purchases that are denominated in a 
currency other than the respective functional currencies of the Group entities. The Group seeks to maintain 
a natural hedge through the matching of liabilities against assets in the same currency or against the entity’s 
functional currency. Where appropriate, the Group engages in foreign currency forward contracts to reduce 
exposure from currency fluctuations.

The table below summarised the Group’s and Company’s exposure to the foreign currencies balances at the 
end of the reporting period.

USD CHF EURO SGD THB HKD
$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000

Group 
2014
Trade and other receivables 8,194 1,356 3,709 866 5,508 14,718
Trade and other payables 24,308 1,538 8,365 51,181 19 65
(Net borrowings) / net cash (7,734) (248) (7,730) 12 – –

2013
Trade and other receivables 7,069 62 1,393 879 5,827 14,302
Trade and other payables 28,032 6,363 5,053 32,189 36 12
(Net borrowings) / net cash (8,995) (4,119) (3,453) 12 – –

AUD THB RM HKD EURO
$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000

Company 
2014
Other receivables 3,360 4,602 1,316 30,477 57

2013
Other receivables 3,340 4,877 2,007 24,911 54
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33. FInanCIal rISK manaGement oBJeCtIveS anD polICIeS (ContInueD)

 Currency exchange risk (continued)

The following table demonstrates the sensitivity to a reasonably possible change in the major foreign 
currencies that the Group is exposed to, with all other variables held constant.

2014 2013

Changes

Loss 
before tax 

(increase)/
decrease Changes

Profit 
before tax 
increase/
(decrease)

$'000 $'000

USD +5% (1,192) +5% (1,498)
CHF +5% (22) +5% (521)
EURO +5% (619) +5% (356)
SGD +5% (2,515) +5% (1,565)
THB +5% 274 +5% 290
HKD +5% 733 +5% 715

The weakening of the above currencies with the same percentage point changes result in an opposite change 
to the (loss) / profit before tax with the same quantum. 

 market price risk

Market price risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of the Group’s financial instruments will 
fluctuate because of changes in market prices (other than interest or exchange rates). The Group is exposed 
to equity price risk arising from its investment in quoted equity securities. These securities are quoted on the 
Singapore Exchange Securities Trading Limited (SGX-ST) in Singapore and are classified as held for trading 
or available-for-sale financial assets. 

 Sensitivity analysis for equity price risk

At the balance sheet date, if the market price had been 5% (2013: 5%) higher/lower with all other variables 
held constant, the Group’s loss before tax would have been approximately $136,000 lower/higher (2013: 
profit before tax would have been approximately $213,000 higher/lower), arising as a result of higher/
lower fair value gains on held for trading investments in equity instruments.
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34. FInanCIal InStrumentS

 Carrying value of assets and liabilities

The carrying amounts of financial instruments in each of the following categories as defined in FRS 39 are 
as follows:

Group Company
2014 2013 2014 2013

$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000

Financial assets carried at fair value 
 through profit and loss
Derivative financial assets – 8 – –

Loans and receivables
Subsidiaries – – 27,690 45,956
Loan to joint venture partner 16,500 16,500 – –
Other receivables 260 260 – –
Trade debtors 69,787 64,766 – –
Other debtors 23,604 17,485 78,413 52,913
Cash on hand and at banks 5,176 9,671 175 3,676

115,327 108,682 106,278 102,545

Held for trading financial assets
Investment securities 2,724 4,261 – –

Available-for-sale financial assets
Investment securities – 86 – 86

Financial liabilities carried at fair value 
 through profit and loss
Derivative financial liabilities 10 – – –

Financial liabilities measured at amortised cost
Trade and other creditors 58,569 61,000 2,234 2,529
Finance lease creditors 602 765 522 649
Bank borrowings 84,603 78,234 – –
Other liabilities 2,626 2,603 – –

146,400 142,602 2,756 3,178
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34. FInanCIal InStrumentS (ContInueD)

 Fair value of assets and liabilities 

 a. Fair value Hierarchy 

The Group categorises fair value measurements using a fair value hierarchy that is dependent on the 
valuation inputs used as follows: 

•	 	Level	1	–	Quoted	prices	(unadjusted)	in	active	markets	for	identical	assets	or	liabilities	that	the	
Group can access at the measurement date, 

•	 	Level	2	–	Inputs	other	than	quoted	prices	included	within	Level	1	that	are	observable	for	the	
asset or liability, either directly or indirectly, and 

•	 	Level	3	–	Unobservable	inputs	for	the	asset	or	liability	

Fair value measurements that use inputs of different hierarchy levels are categorised in its entirety 
in the same level of the fair value hierarchy as the lowest level input that is significant to the entire 
measurement.

 B. assets and liabilities measured at fair value 

The following table shows an analysis of each class of assets and liabilities measured at fair value at 
the end of the reporting period: 

Group 
2014

Quoted prices 
in active 

markets for 
identical 

instruments 
(Level 1) 

Significant 
other 

observable 
inputs  

(Level 2) 

Significant 
unobservable 

inputs 
(Level 3) Total 

$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000

Recurring fair value measurements
Financial assets:
Held for trading financial assets
Investment securities (quoted) 2,724 – – 2,724

Financial assets as at 30 June 2014 2,724 – – 2,724

Financial liabilities:
Financial liabilities carried at fair value 

through profit and loss
Derivative financial liabilities – 10 – 10

Financial liabilities as at 30 June 2014 – 10 – 10
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34. FInanCIal InStrumentS (ContInueD)
 
 B. assets and liabilities measured at fair value (continued)

Group 
2013

Quoted prices 
in active 

markets for 
identical 

instruments 
(Level 1) 

Significant 
other 

observable 
inputs

(Level 2) 

Significant 
unobservable 

inputs 
(Level 3) Total 

$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000

Recurring fair value measurements
Financial assets:
Held for trading financial assets
Investment securities (quoted) 4,261 – – 4,261

Available-for-sale financial assets
Investment securities (quoted) 86 – – 86

Financial assets carried at fair
 value through profit and loss
Derivative financial assets – 8 – 8

Financial assets as at 30 June 2013 4,347 8 – 4,355

There have been no transfers between Level 1 and Level 2 during the financial years ended 2014 
and 2013. 

 C. level 2 fair value measurements

Derivative financial assets (forward currency contracts) are valued by reference to current forward 
exchange rates for contracts with similar maturity profiles. 
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34. FInanCIal InStrumentS (ContInueD)

 D.  assets and liabilities that are not carried at fair value and whose carrying amounts approximate 
fair values

Management has determined that the carrying amounts of loan to joint venture partner, all current 
financial assets, financial liabilities, all bank borrowings and finance lease creditors reasonably 
approximate their fair values because these are either short term in nature or are repriced frequently. 

 e.  assets and liabilities whose fair values not determinable 

The loans receivable and other receivables from subsidiaries have no fixed terms of repayment and 
are repayable only when the cash flows of the subsidiaries permit. Accordingly, the fair values of the 
loans and other receivables are not determinable as the timing of the future cash flow arising from 
them cannot be estimated reliably.

The loan receivable from third party and the advance from an associate have no fixed terms of 
repayment. Accordingly, the fair values of the loan receivable from third party and the advance from 
an associate are not determinable as the timing of the future cash flow arising from them cannot be 
estimated reliably.

35. SeGment InFormatIon

For management purposes, the Group is organised into business units based on their channel of distribution, 
and has three reportable operating segments as follows: 

i. The Ongoing Retail segment is involved in the operation of retail stores specialising in the retail of 
consumer fashion wear, accessories and timepieces. 

ii. The Distribution segment is involved in the distribution of consumer fashion wear, accessories, home 
furnishings and timepieces. 

iii. The Export segment is involved in the export of consumer fashion wear, accessories and timepieces. 

No operating segments have been aggregated to form the above reportable operating segments. 

Management monitors the operating results of its business units separately for the purpose of making 
decisions about resource allocation and performance assessment. Segment performance is evaluated based 
on operating profit or loss which in certain respects, as explained in the table below, is measured differently 
from operating profit or loss in the consolidated financial statements. Group financing (including finance 
costs) and income taxes are managed on a group basis and are not allocated to operating segments. 

Transfer prices between operating segments are at terms agreed between parties involved in the transactions. 

117
a n n u a l  r e p o r t  2 0 1 3 / 1 4



Notes to the FiNaNcial statemeNts
30 June 2014

35. SeGment InFormatIon (ContInueD)

 Business segments

Ongoing 
Retail Distribution Export

Corporate 
and 

Others Elimination Group
$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 S’000 $'000

2014
Sales to external consumers 221,505 68,571 78,124 – – 368,200
Intersegment sales – 9,952 4,943 – (14,895) –
Segment revenue 221,505 78,523 83,067 – (14,895) 368,200

Segment results (4,728) (6,294) 4,000 (6,228) (13,250)
Exceptional items (1,350)
Interest income 654
Interest expense (3,572)
Share of results of associates 

/ joint venture, net of tax (1,686)
Loss before taxation (19,204)
Taxation (2,892)
Net loss for the 

financial year (22,096)

2013
Sales to external consumers 213,335 84,108 75,960 – – 373,403
Intersegment sales – 11,116 17,614 – (28,730) –
Segment revenue 213,335 95,224 93,574 – (28,730) 373,403

Segment results 9,552 (3,721) 3,485 (2,970) 6,346
Exceptional items 2,819
Interest income 668
Interest expense (3,307)
Share of results of associates 

/ joint venture, net of tax 767
Profit before taxation 7,293
Taxation (3,254)
Net profit for the 

financial year 4,039
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35. SeGment InFormatIon (ContInueD)

 Business segments (continued)

Ongoing 
Retail Distribution Export

Corporate 
and 

Others Group
$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000

2014
Segment assets 123,013 36,388 42,036 26,410 227,847
Investment in associates/ joint venture – – – 988 988

123,013 36,388 42,036 27,398 228,835
Unallocated assets 20,209
Total assets 249,044

Segment liabilities 44,529 8,924 16,767 1,023 71,243
Unallocated liabilities 75,947
Total liabilities 147,190

Capital expenditure 13,974 1,102 1,475 6 16,557
Depreciation 6,893 1,250 504 594 9,241

2013
Segment assets 105,169 68,796 43,979 27,091 245,035
Investment in associates / joint venture – – – 10,166 10,166

105,169 68,796 43,979 37,257 255,201
Unallocated assets 21,213
Total assets 276,414

Segment liabilities 38,185 14,889 15,953 1,072 70,099
Unallocated liabilities 75,778
Total liabilities 145,877

Capital expenditure 9,827 421 450 9 10,707
Depreciation 5,533 868 315 1,041 7,757
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35. SeGment InFormatIon (ContInueD)

 Business segments (continued)

Assets and liabilities which are common and cannot be meaningfully allocated to the business segments are 
presented as unallocated assets and liabilities, as shown in the table below.

2014 2013
$'000 $'000

Unallocated assets
Loan to joint venture partner 16,500 16,500
Other receivables 260 260
Deferred tax assets 1,154 938
Tax recoverable 2,295 3,515

20,209 21,213
Unallocated liabilities
Finance lease creditors 602 765
Bank borrowings (excluding bank overdrafts) 71,939 69,135
Provision for taxation 514 3,035
Other liabilities 2,626 2,603
Deferred tax liabilities 266 240

75,947 75,778

 Geographical segments

Revenue, non-current assets and capital expenditure information based on geographical location of customers 
and assets respectively are as follows: 

Southeast
Asia

North 
Asia Other Group

$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000

2014
Turnover 317,810 39,858 10,532 368,200

Other geographical information:
Non-current assets 40,803 8,660 595 50,058
Capital expenditure 16,132 338 87 16,557

2013
Turnover 303,432 61,644 8,327 373,403

Other geographical information:
Non-current assets 43,604 11,462 582 55,648
Capital expenditure 10,495 113 99 10,707
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36. operatInG leaSeS 

The Group has various operating lease agreements for retail outlets, office premises and office equipment. 
The leases expire at various dates till 2020 and contain provisions for rental adjustments, renewal options, 
as well as commitments for additional lease payments when turnover of certain retail outlets exceeds 
pre-determinable levels. There was turnover rent of $2,519,000 (2013: $3,706,000) recognised as an 
expense during the period. Lease terms do not contain restrictions concerning payments of dividends, 
additional debt or further leasing. Future minimum lease payments for all leases with initial or remaining 
terms of one year or more are as follows:-

Group
2014 2013

$'000 $'000

Within one year 53,162 50,803
Between one year to five years 85,185 91,103
Later than five years 2,792 966

141,139 142,872

37. ContInGent lIaBIlItIeS, unSeCureD

The Company has undertaken to provide financial support to certain subsidiaries for deficiencies in their 
shareholders’ funds and to extend adequate funding to meet their operational needs.

38. CommItmentS

As at 30 June 2014, the Group has entered into several licensing and distribution agreements with its 
principals. Under the agreements, the Group is committed to certain levels of purchases and advertising 
expenditure in accordance with the agreed terms and conditions. The Group has substantially met these 
purchase and advertising commitments.

As at 30 June 2014, the Group has outstanding forward contracts with settlement dates within the next one 
year of USD 6,699,000 (2013: CHF 1,200,000).
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Notes to the FiNaNcial statemeNts
30 June 2014

39. relateD party tranSaCtIonS DISCloSure

In addition to related parties transactions disclosed in other notes to the financial statements, during the 
financial year, the Group has entered into transactions with related parties on terms agreed between the 
parties, as shown below:

2014 2013
$'000 $'000

Sale of goods to joint venture 69,136 63,091
Market support and administrative service income from joint venture 9,144 8,499
Purchase of goods from joint venture 39 6
Directors’ fees

– Directors of the Company 285 315
– Other directors of subsidiaries – 24

Remuneration of key management personnel comprising short-term 
employee benefits:
– Directors of the Company 2,242 2,770
– Other directors of subsidiaries 3,262 3,496
– Non directors 403 643

5,907 6,909

Provident fund contributions of $156,000 (2013: $158,000) are included in remuneration of key 
management personnel.

40. CapItal manaGement

The Group aims to maintain healthy capital ratios, using gearing ratio and return on equity, in order to 
support its business and maximise shareholders’ value, while at the same time maintaining an appropriate 
dividend policy to reward its shareholders.

The Group manages its capital structure and make adjustments to it, in light of changes in economic conditions. 
To maintain or adjust the capital structure, the Group may adjust the dividend payment to shareholders, return 
capital to shareholders or issue new shares. No changes were made in objectives, policies or processes during 
the financial years ended 30 June 2014 and 30 June 2013. The Group has complied with bank covenants, 
relating to net equity arising from its borrowings for the financial years 30 June 2014 and 30 June 2013.

The Group monitors capital using a gearing ratio and return on equity. Gearing ratio is computed as net debt 
divided by total equity attributable to owners of the parent while return on equity is computed as net (loss)/
profit attributable to owners of the parent for the financial year divided by the total equity attributable to 
owners of the parent. Net debt is calculated as borrowings less cash on hand and at banks.
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Notes to the FiNaNcial statemeNts
30 June 2014

40. CapItal manaGement (ContInueD)

The capital ratios of the Group for the financial years ended are as follow:

Group 
2014 2013

$'000 $'000

Bank borrowings 84,603 78,234
Finance lease creditors 602 765
Less: cash on hand and at banks (5,176) (9,671)
Net debt 80,029 69,328

Equity attributable to owners of the parent 102,620 131,306

Net (loss) / profit attributable to owners of the parent 
for the financial year (22,102) 4,447

Gearing ratio 78.0% 52.8%
Return on equity –21.5% 3.4%

41. DIvIDenDS

Group and Company
2014 2013

$'000 $'000

Paid during the financial year:
First and final dividend (one-tier tax exempt) for financial year 2013: 0.5 cent 

[2012: 1.0 cent (one-tier tax exempt)] per ordinary share 2,844 5,687

Proposed but not recognised as a liability as at 30 June:
First and final dividend (one-tier tax exempt) for financial year 2014: 0.25 cent
 [2013: first and final dividend 0.5 cent (one-tier tax exempt)]
 per ordinary share 1,422 2,844
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Notes to the FiNaNcial statemeNts
30 June 2014

42. eventS oCCurrInG aFter tHe reportInG perIoD

(a) On 30 July 2014, a Hong Kong subsidiary of the Group completed the sale of a unit of the properties, 
which has been classified as non-current asset held for sale (Note 13) as at 30 June 2014, for a cash 
consideration of $3.3 million.

(b) On 11 August 2014, FJ Benjamin (Singapore) Pte Ltd entered into separate sale and purchase 
agreements dated 30 July 2014 with PT Saratoga Investama Sedaya Tbk and its co-investor where FJ 
Benjamin (Singapore) Pte Ltd will sell and PT Saratoga Investama Sedaya Tbk and its co-investor will 
purchase 6 out of 24 mandatory convertible bonds issued by an associated company of PT Meteor 
Prima Sejati for the aggregate consideration of US$18 million. The face value of each of the MCBs is 
IDR 12,550,000,000.

43. ComparatIveS 

Certain comparative figures have been reclassified to conform to the current year’s presentation. The effects 
of such reclassification are as follows:

Company

As restated
As previously

 disclosed
$'000 $'000

Balance Sheet
Subsidiaries 112,058 116,686
Other debtors 52,913 48,322
Prepayments and advances 37 –

44. autHorISatIon oF FInanCIal StatementS

The financial statements for the financial year ended 30 June 2014 were authorised for issue in accordance 
with a resolution of the Directors dated 11 September 2014. 
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StatIStICS oF SHareHolDInGS
As at 5 September 2014

SHare CapItal

Number of Equity Securities: 568,709,857
Number of Treasury Shares: Nil
Class of Equity Shares: Ordinary shares
Voting Rights: One Vote per share

DIStrIButIon oF SHareHolDInGS
No. of No. of

Size of Shareholdings Shareholders % Shares %

1  –  999 53 1.12 4,316 0.00
1,000  –  10,000 2,987 63.10 12,909,922 2.27
10,001  –  1,000,000 1,667 35.21 105,595,990 18.57
1,000,001 AND ABOVE 27 0.57 450,199,629 79.16
TOTAL 4,734 100.00 568,709,857 100.00

tWenty larGeSt SHareHolDerS

No. of
No. Name Shares %

1 DBS NOMINEES (PRIVATE) LIMITED 99,256,900 17.45
2 LIM ENG HOCK                  65,000,000 11.43
3 RAFFLES INVESTMENTS LIMITED   62,280,000 10.95
4 BENJAMIN FRANK                39,191,000 6.89
5 WESTERN PROPERTIES PTE LTD    28,050,000 4.93
6 UOB KAY HIAN PRIVATE LIMITED 25,530,000 4.49
7 BNP PARIBAS SECURITIES SERVICES SINGAPORE BRANCH 19,592,000 3.44
8 SSP INNOVATIONS PTE LTD 19,264,000 3.39
9 BENJAMIN ELI MANASSEH *         17,310,050 3.04
10 KESTREL CAPITAL (HONG KONG) LIMITED 9,312,000 1.64
11 CITIBANK NOMINEES SINGAPORE PTE LTD 9,141,500 1.61
12 UNITED OVERSEAS BANK NOMINEES (PRIVATE) LIMITED 8,824,040 1.55
13 HSBC (SINGAPORE) NOMINEES PTE LTD 7,307,500 1.28
14 DB NOMINEES (SINGAPORE) PTE LTD 6,408,439 1.13
15 LIM YEW HOE                   6,399,000 1.13
16 BANK OF SINGAPORE NOMINEES PTE. LTD. 4,222,000 0.74
17 OCBC SECURITIES PRIVATE LIMITED 3,695,000 0.65
18 DBS VICKERS SECURITIES (SINGAPORE) PTE LTD 2,964,000 0.52
19 OCBC NOMINEES SINGAPORE PRIVATE LIMITED 2,701,080 0.47
20 MAYBANK KIM ENG SECURITIES PTE. LTD. 2,587,120 0.45

TOTAL 439,035,629 77.20

* Excludes 7,000,000 shares held in a nominee’s name.
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SuBStantIal SHareHolDerS aS reCorDeD In tHe reGISter oF SuBStantIal SHareHolDerS

Direct
Interest %

Deemed
Interest %

1. Lim Eng Hock  65,000,000 11.43  35,641,000  6.27 
2. Segulah Pte Ltd @  91,937,900 16.17 – –
3. Raffles Investments Limited #  62,280,000  10.95 – –
4.  Frank Benjamin  39,191,000  6.89 – –
5. Temasek Holdings (Private) Ltd @ – –  91,937,900  16.17 
6. DBS Trustee Limited @ – –  91,937,900  16.17 
7. DBS Group Holdings Limited @ – –  91,937,900  16.17 
8. DBS Bank Ltd. @ – –  91,937,900  16.17 
9.  Aequitas Pte Ltd # – –  62,280,000  10.95 
10. Kambau Pte Ltd # – –  62,280,000  10.95 
11. Siong Lim Private Limited # – –  62,280,000  10.95 
12. Tecity Pte Ltd # – –  62,280,000  10.95 
13. Dr Tan Kheng Lian # – –  62,280,000  10.95 
14. Mavis Benjamin, Mrs – –  39,191,000  6.89 

@   Temasek Holdings (Private) Ltd, DBS Trustee Limited, DBS Group Holdings Limited and DBS Bank Ltd are deemed to be interested in the shares 
held by Segulah Pte Ltd.

#   Aequitas Pte Ltd, Kambau Pte Ltd, Siong Lim Private Limited, Tecity Pte Ltd and Dr Tan Kheng Lian are deemed to be interested in the shares held 
by Raffles Investments Limited.

perCentaGe oF SHareHolDInGS In puBlIC'S HanDS

Based on the information available to the Company, as at 5 September 2014, approximately 44% of the Company's 
shares were held in the hands of the public. Hence, the Company has complied with Rule 723 of the Listing Manual 
of the Singapore Exchange Securities Trading Limited.

StatIStICS oF SHareHolDInGS
As at 5 September 2014
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notICe oF annual General meetInG

NOTICE IS HEREBY GIVEN that the Annual General Meeting of F J Benjamin Holdings Ltd (“the Company”) will be 
held at Lavender Room, Level 3, Orchard Hotel, 442 Orchard Road, Singapore 238879 on Monday, 20 October 
2014 at 11.00 a.m. for the following purposes:

aS orDInary BuSIneSS

1.  To receive and adopt the Directors’ Report and the Audited Accounts of the Company for the year ended 30 
June 2014 together with the Auditor’s Report thereon. (Resolution 1)

2.  To declare a first and final dividend of 0.25 cent per ordinary share one-tier tax exempt for the year ended 
30 June 2014 (FY2013: 0.5 cent per ordinary share) (Resolution 2)

3.  To re-elect the following Directors of the Company retiring pursuant to Article 102 of the Articles of Association 
of the Company:

 Mr Douglas Jackie Benjamin (Resolution 3)
 Ms Karen Chong Mee Keng (Resolution 4)

  Mr Douglas Benjamin will, upon re-election as a Director of the Company, remain as a member of the 
Executive Committee and will be considered non-independent.

  Ms Karen Chong will, upon re-election as a Director of the Company, remain as a member of the Executive 
Committee and will be considered non-independent.

4.  To re-elect Mr Ng Hin Lee as a Director of the Company retiring pursuant to Article 106 of the Articles of 
Association of the Company. (Resolution 5)

  Mr Ng will, upon re-election as a Director of the Company, remain as Chairman of the Audit Committee and 
will be considered independent.

5.  To re-appoint Mr Frank Benjamin, a Director of the Company retiring under Section 153(6) of the Companies 
Act Chapter 50 of Singapore (the “Companies Act”), to hold office from the date of this Annual General 
Meeting until the next Annual General Meeting of the Company. 

 [See Explanatory Note (i)] (Resolution 6)

  Mr Frank Benjamin will, upon re-appointment as a Director of the Company, remain as Chairman of the 
Executive Committee and a member of the Nominating Committee and will be considered non-independent. 

6.  To re-appoint Mr Keith Tay Ah Kee, a Director of the Company retiring under Section 153(6) of the  
Companies Act, to hold office from the date of this Annual General Meeting until the next Annual General 
Meeting of the Company. 

 [See Explanatory Note (i)] (Resolution 7)

  Mr Keith Tay will, upon re-appointment as a Director of the Company, remain as Chairman of the  
Nominating Committee and a member of the Remuneration Committee and the Executive Committee and will 
be considered independent. 

7.  To approve the payment of Directors’ Fees of up to S$325,000 for the year ending 30 June 2015 
(FY2014: S$325,000) (Resolution 8)
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notICe oF annual General meetInG

8. T o re-appoint Messrs Ernst & Young LLP as the Auditor of the Company and to authorise the Directors of the 
Company to fix their remuneration. (Resolution 9)

9. To transact any other ordinary business which may properly be transacted at an Annual General Meeting.

aS SpeCIal BuSIneSS

To consider and if thought fit, to pass the following resolutions as Ordinary Resolutions, with or without any 
modifications:

10. authority to issue shares 

  That pursuant to Section 161 of the Companies Act and Rule 806 of the Listing Manual of the Singapore 
Exchange Securities Trading Limited (“SGX-ST”), the Directors of the Company be authorised and 
empowered to: 

 (a) (i) issue shares in the Company (“shares”) whether by way of rights, bonus or otherwise; and/or

  (ii)  make or grant offers, agreements or options (collectively, “Instruments”) that might or would 
require shares to be issued, including but not limited to the creation and issue of (as well 
as adjustments to) securities, options, warrants, debentures or other instruments convertible 
into shares, 

   at any time and upon such terms and conditions and for such purposes and to such persons as the 
Directors of the Company may in their absolute discretion deem fit; and

 (b)  (notwithstanding the authority conferred by this Resolution may have ceased to be in force) issue 
shares in pursuance of any Instruments made or granted by the Directors of the Company while this 
Resolution was in force,

 provided that:

 (1)  the aggregate number of shares (including shares to be issued in pursuance of the Instruments, made 
or granted pursuant to this Resolution) to be issued pursuant to this Resolution shall not exceed 50% 
of the total number of issued shares (excluding treasury shares) in the capital of the Company (as 
calculated in accordance with sub-paragraph (2) below), of which the aggregate number of shares 
to be issued other than on a pro rata basis to shareholders of the Company (including shares to be 
issued in pursuance of any instruments made or granted pursuant to this Resolution) shall not exceed 
10% of the total number of issued shares (excluding treasury shares) in the capital of the Company 
(as calculated in accordance with sub-paragraph (2) below);

 (2)  (subject to such calculation as may be prescribed by the SGX-ST) for the purpose of determining the 
aggregate number of shares that may be issued under sub-paragraph (1) above, the total number 
of issued shares (excluding treasury shares) shall be based on the total number of issued shares 
(excluding treasury shares) in the capital of the Company at the time of the passing of this Resolution, 
after adjusting for: 

(a) any new shares arising from the conversion or exercise of any instruments or convertible 
securities;
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(b)  any new shares arising from exercising share options or vesting of share awards which are 
outstanding or subsisting at the time of the passing of this Resolution; and 

(c) any subsequent bonus issue, consolidation or subdivision of shares;

 (3)  in exercising the authority conferred by this Resolution, the Company shall comply with the requirements 
imposed by the SGX-ST from time to time and the listing rules of the SGX-ST as may for the time 
being be applicable (unless such compliance has been waived by the SGX-ST) and the Articles of 
Association of the Company; and 

 (4)  unless revoked or varied by the Company in a general meeting, such authority shall continue in force 
until the conclusion of the next Annual General Meeting of the Company or the date by which the next 
Annual General Meeting of the Company is required by law to be held, whichever is earlier.

 [See Explanatory Note (ii)] (Resolution 10)

11. renewal of Share purchase mandate

 That:

 (a)  for the purposes of the Companies Act, the exercise by the Directors of the Company of all powers 
of the Company to purchase or otherwise acquire shares not exceeding in aggregate the Maximum 
Limit (as hereafter defined), at such price(s) as may be determined by the Directors of the Company 
from time to time up to the Maximum Price (as hereafter defined), whether by way of: 

  (i)  market purchase(s) (“Market Purchase”), transacted on the SGX-ST through the ready market, 
through one (1) or more duly licensed stock brokers appointed by the Company for that 
purpose; and/or 

  (ii)  off-market purchase(s) (“Off-Market Purchase”) in accordance with an equal access scheme, 
as may be determined or formulated by the Directors of the Company as they consider fit, 
which scheme(s) shall satisfy all conditions prescribed by the Companies Act; 

   and otherwise in accordance with all other laws and regulations, including but not limited to, 
the provisions of the Companies Act and listing rules of the SGX-ST as may for the time being be 
applicable, be and is hereby authorised and approved generally and unconditionally (the “Share 
Purchase Mandate”); 

 (b)  the authority conferred on the Directors of the Company pursuant to the Share Purchase Mandate may 
be exercised by the Directors of the Company at any time and from time to time during the period 
commencing from the date of the passing of this Ordinary Resolution and expiring on the earlier of: 

(i)  the date on which the next Annual General Meeting of the Company is held or required by 
law to be held; or 

(ii)  the date on which the purchases or acquisitions of shares by the Company pursuant to the 
Share Purchase Mandate are carried out to the full extent mandated; or

(iii)  the date on which the authority conferred by the Share Purchase Mandate is revoked or varied 
by the Shareholders of the Company in a general meeting.

notICe oF annual General meetInG
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 (c) in this Ordinary Resolution: 

   “Maximum Limit” means the number of issued shares representing 8% of the total number of issued 
shares as at the date of the passing of this Ordinary Resolution unless the Company has effected a 
reduction of the share capital of the Company in accordance with the applicable provisions of the 
Companies Act, at any time during the Relevant Period, in which event the issued shares shall be 
taken to be the amount of the issued shares as altered (excluding any treasury shares that may be held 
by the Company from time to time); 

   “Relevant Period” means the period commencing from the date on which the last Annual General 
Meeting of the Company was held and expiring on the date the next Annual General Meeting of the 
Company is held or is required by law to be held, whichever is the earlier, after the date of this Ordinary 
Resolution; and 

   “Maximum Price” in relation to a share to be purchased or acquired, means the purchase price 
(excluding brokerage, stamp duties, commission, applicable goods and services tax and other related 
expenses) which shall not exceed: 

(i) in the case of a Market Purchase, 105% of the Average Closing Price (hereinafter defined); and 

(ii)  in the case of an Off-Market Purchase pursuant to an equal access scheme, 120% of the 
Average Closing Price, 

where:

   “Average Closing Price” means the average of the closing market prices of a share for the five (5) 
consecutive Market Days (a “Market Day” being a day on which the SGX-ST is open for trading in 
securities) on which the shares are transacted on the SGX-ST immediately preceding the date of the 
Market Purchase by the Company or, as the case may be, the date of the making of the offer pursuant 
to the Off-Market Purchase, and deemed to be adjusted in accordance with the listing rules of the 
SGX-ST for any corporate action which occurs after the relevant five (5) Market Days; and 

 (d)  the Directors of the Company and/or any of them be and are hereby authorised to complete and do 
all such acts and things (including executing such documents as may be required) as they and/or he/
she may consider necessary, expedient, incidental or in the interests of the Company to give effect to 
the transactions contemplated and/or authorised by this Ordinary Resolution.  

 [See Explanatory Note (iii)] (Resolution 11)

By Order of the Board

Karen Chong Mee Keng 
Company Secretary

Singapore, 3 October 2014
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eXplanatory noteS:

(i)  The effects of the Ordinary Resolutions 6 and 7 proposed in items 5 and 6 above, are to re-appoint directors 
of the Company who are over 70 years of age. 

(ii)  The Ordinary Resolution 10 in item 10 above, if passed, will empower the Directors of the Company to issue 
shares, make or grant Instruments convertible into shares and to issue shares pursuant to such Instruments, 
up to a number not exceeding, in total, 50% of the total number of issued shares (excluding treasury shares) 
in the capital of the Company, of which up to 10% may be issued other than on a pro-rata basis to existing 
shareholders of the Company.

  The sub-limit of 10% for issues other than on a pro-rata basic is below the 20% sub-limit permitted by 
the Listing Manual of the SGX-ST. The Directors believe that the lower sub-limit of 10% would sufficiently 
address the Company’s present need to maintain flexibility while taking into account shareholders’ concern 
against dilution.

  For the purpose of determining the aggregate number of shares that may be issued, the total number of issued 
shares (excluding treasury shares) will be calculated based on the total number of issued shares (excluding 
treasury shares) in the capital of the Company at the time this Ordinary Resolution is passed, after adjusting 
for new shares arising from the conversion or exercise of any convertible securities or share options or vesting 
of share awards which are outstanding or subsisting at the time when this Ordinary Resolution is passed and 
any subsequent bonus issue, consolidation or subdivision of shares.

(iii)  The Ordinary Resolution 11 proposed in item 11 above, if passed, will empower the Directors of the 
Company to exercise all powers of the Company to purchase or otherwise acquire (whether by way of 
market purchases or off-market purchases) shares on the terms of the Share Purchase Mandate as set out in 
the attached letter to shareholders of the Company (the “Letter”). The authority conferred by the shareholders 
of the Company will continue in force until (i) the date of the next Annual General Meeting of the Company, 
(ii) the date by which the next Annual General Meeting of the Company is required by law to be held, or (iii) 
the date on which the purchases or acquisitions of shares by the Company pursuant to the Share Purchase 
Mandate are carried out to the full extent mandated, whichever is the earliest, unless previously revoked or 
varied by the Company in a general meeting. 

Apart from using its internal sources of funds, the Company may obtain or incur borrowings to finance its 
purchases or acquisitions of shares. The Directors of the Company do not propose to exercise the Share 
Purchase Mandate to such extent that it would result in any material adverse effect to the financial position 
of the Company or the Group, or result in the Company being delisted from the SGX-ST. The amount of 
financing required for the Company to purchase its shares pursuant to the Share Purchase Mandate and the 
impact on the Company’s financial position, cannot be realistically ascertained as at the date of this Notice 
as this will depend on factors such as the aggregate number of shares purchased and the purchase prices 
paid at the relevant times. 

  An illustration of the financial impact of the share purchases by the Company pursuant to the Share Purchase 
Mandate on the audited financial statements of the Group for the financial year ended 30 June 2014 is set 
out in the Letter.
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noteS:

1.  A Member entitled to attend and vote at the Annual General Meeting (the “Meeting”) is entitled to appoint 
one or two proxies to attend and vote in his/her stead. A proxy need not be a Member of the Company. 
The instrument appointing a proxy or proxies must be under the hand of the appointor or of his attorney duly 
authorised in writing. If the appointor is a corporation, the instrument appointing a proxy must be executed 
either under seal or the hand of its duly authorised attorney.

  
2.  The instrument appointing a proxy must be deposited at the Registered Office of the Company at 10 Science 

Park Road, #04-01 The Alpha, Science Park II, Singapore 117684 not less than forty-eight (48) hours before 
the time appointed for the holding of the Meeting.

perSonal Data prIvaCy:

By submitting an instrument appointing a proxy(ies) and/or representative(s) to attend, speak and vote at the Annual 
General Meeting and/or any adjournment thereof, a member of the Company (i) consents to the collection, use 
and disclosure of the member’s personal data by the Company (or its agents) for the purpose of the processing and 
administration by the Company (or its agents) of proxies and representatives appointed for the Annual General 
Meeting (including any adjournment thereof) and the preparation and compilation of the attendance lists, minutes 
and other documents relating to the Annual General Meeting (including any adjournment  thereof), and in order 
for the Company (or its agents) to comply with any applicable laws, listing rules, regulations and/or guidelines 
(collectively, the “Purposes”), (ii) warrants that where the member discloses the personal data of the member’s 
proxy(ies) and/or representative(s) to the Company (or its agents), the member has obtained the prior consent of 
such proxy(ies) and/or representative(s) for the collection, use and disclosure by the Company (or its agents) of the 
personal data of such proxy(ies) and/or representative(s) for the Purposes, and (iii) agrees that the member will 
indemnify the Company in respect of any penalties, liabilities, claims, demands, losses and damages as a result of 
the member’s breach of warranty.
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SHare purCHaSe manDate

F J BENJAMIN HOLDINGS LTD
(Incorporated in the Republic of Singapore)
(Company Registration No. 197301125N)

Board of Directors: 
Frank Benjamin, Executive Chairman
Keith Tay Ah Kee, Non-Executive Deputy Chairman
Eli Manasseh (Nash) Benjamin, Chief Executive Officer 
Douglas Jackie Benjamin, Executive Director 
Karen Chong Mee Keng, Executive Director
Wong Ai Fong, Independent Director 
Chew Kwee San, Non-Executive Director
Daniel Ong Jen Yaw, Independent Director
Ng Hin Lee, Independent Director (appointed on 11 July 2014)

Registered Office: 
10 Science Park Road
#04-01 The Alpha
Singapore Science Park II
Singapore 117684

3 October 2014

To:  The Shareholders of F J Benjamin Holdings Ltd

PROPOSED RENEWAL OF THE SHARE PURCHASE MANDATE

Dear Sir/Madam

1. IntroDuCtIon

1.1 aGm

We refer to (a) the notice of annual general meeting of the Company (“AGM”) dated 3 October 2014 (the 
“Notice of AGM”) convening the AGM to be held on 20 October 2014 (the “2014 AGM”), and (b) the 
ordinary resolution number 11 under the heading “Special Business” set out in the Notice of AGM. 

1.2 letter

The purpose of this Letter is to provide Shareholders with information relating to the proposed renewal of the 
Share Purchase Mandate, details of which are set out in paragraph 2 of this Letter and to seek their approval 
in relation thereto at the 2014 AGM. 

1.3 SGX-St

The Singapore Exchange Securities Trading Limited (the “SGX-ST”) assumes no responsibility for the accuracy 
or correctness of any of the statements made, opinions expressed or reports contained in this Letter. 
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2. tHe propoSeD reneWal oF tHe SHare purCHaSe manDate

2.1 The Share Purchase Mandate

Any purchase or acquisition of Shares by the Company would have to be made in accordance with and 
in the manner prescribed by the Companies Act (Chapter 50) of Singapore (the “Companies Act”), its 
Memorandum and Articles, the rules of the Listing Manual and such other laws and regulations as may, for 
the time being, be applicable.  

It is also a requirement that a company which wishes to purchase or acquire its own shares should obtain 
approval of its shareholders to do so at a general meeting. At the extraordinary general meeting of the 
Company (“EGM”) held on 29 October 2007, Shareholders approved a Share Purchase Mandate (as 
defined herein) to allow the Company to purchase or otherwise acquire its issued Shares (as defined herein). 
The Share Purchase Mandate was subsequently renewed at the AGMs of the Company in each subsequent 
year, including the AGM held on 31 October 2013 (the “2013 AGM”). The rationale for, the authority and 
limitations on, and the financial effects of, the renewal of the mandate at the 2013 AGM (the “2013 Share 
Purchase Mandate”) were set out in the Company’s Letter to Shareholders dated 16 October 2013.

The authority conferred pursuant to the 2013 Share Purchase Mandate may be exercised by the Directors at 
any time during the period commencing from the date of the 2013 AGM and expiring on the date (a) when 
the next AGM of the Company is held or required by law to be held, (b) the date on which the purchases 
or acquisitions of Shares pursuant to the 2013 Share Purchase Mandate are carried out to the full extent 
mandated or (c) the date on which the authority conferred by the 2013 Share Purchase Mandate is revoked 
or varied by the Shareholders in a general meeting, whichever is earliest.

Accordingly, the Directors are seeking the approval of Shareholders for the renewal of the Share Purchase 
Mandate at the 2014 AGM.

2.2 Rationale for Proposed Renewal of the Share Purchase Mandate

The approval of the proposed renewal of the Share Purchase Mandate authorising the Company to purchase 
or acquire its Shares would give the Company the flexibility to undertake share purchases or acquisitions up 
to the 8% limit described in paragraph 2.3(a) below, at any time during the period when the Share Purchase 
Mandate is in force.

The rationale for the Company to undertake the purchase or acquisition of its issued Shares is as follows:

(a) in managing the business of the Group, the management will strive to increase Shareholders’ value 
by improving, inter alia, the return on equity (“ROE”) of the Company. In addition to growth and 
expansion of the business, share purchases may be considered as one of the ways through which the 
ROE of the Company may be enhanced;

(b) in line with international practice, the Share Purchase Mandate will provide the Company with greater 
flexibility in managing its capital and maximising returns to its Shareholders. To the extent that the 
Company has capital and surplus funds, which are in excess of its financial needs, taking into account 
its growth and expansion plans, the Share Purchase Mandate will facilitate the return of excess cash 
and surplus funds to Shareholders in an expedient, effective and cost-efficient manner;

(c) share purchase programmes help to buffer short-term share price volatility; and 
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(d) the Share Purchase Mandate will provide the Company the flexibility to undertake share repurchases 
at any time, subject to market conditions, during the period when the Share Purchase Mandate is 
in force.

While the Share Purchase Mandate would authorise a purchase or acquisition of Shares up to the said 8% 
limit during the duration referred to in paragraph 2.3(b) below, Shareholders should note that purchases or 
acquisitions of Shares pursuant to the Share Purchase Mandate may not be carried out to the full 8% limit as 
authorised and the purchases or acquisitions of Shares pursuant to the Share Purchase Mandate will be made 
only as and when the Directors consider it to be in the best interests of the Company and/or Shareholders 
and in circumstances which they believe will not result in any material adverse effect to the financial position 
of the Company or the Group, or result in the Company being delisted from the SGX-ST. The Directors will 
use their best efforts to ensure that, after a purchase or acquisition of Shares pursuant to the Share Purchase 
Mandate, the number of Shares remaining in the hands of the public will not fall to such a level as to cause 
market illiquidity or adversely affect the orderly trading and listing status of the Shares on the SGX-ST.

2.3 authority and limits on the Share purchase mandate

The authority and limitations placed on the share purchases by the Company under the proposed Share 
Purchase Mandate, if renewed at the forthcoming 2014 AGM, are similar in terms to those previously 
approved by Shareholders at the 2013 AGM, and for the benefit of Shareholders, are summarised below: 

 (a) maximum number of Shares

Only Shares which are issued and fully paid-up may be purchased by the Company. The total number 
of Shares which may be purchased or acquired pursuant to the Share Purchase Mandate is limited to 
that number of Shares representing not more than 8% of the total number of Shares (ascertained as at 
the date of the 2014 AGM at which the renewal of the Share Purchase Mandate is approved). Any 
Shares which are held as treasury shares will be disregarded for purposes of computing the 8% limit.

For illustrative purposes only, on the basis of 568,709,857 Shares in issue as at the Latest Practicable 
Date (as defined herein) and assuming no further Shares are issued on or prior to the date of the 2014 
AGM, not more than 45,496,789 Shares (representing approximately 8% of the total number of 
Shares as at that date) may be purchased by the Company pursuant to the proposed Share Purchase 
Mandate during the duration referred to in paragraph 2.3(b) below.

 (b) Duration of authority

Purchases or acquisitions of Shares may be made, at any time and from time to time, on and from 
the date of the 2014 AGM, at which the renewal of the Share Purchase Mandate is approved, up to: 

(i) the date on which the next AGM is held or required by law to be held; or

(ii) the date on which the purchases or acquisitions of Shares pursuant to the proposed Share 
Purchase Mandate are carried out to the full extent mandated; or

(iii) the date on which the authority conferred by the Share Purchase Mandate is revoked or varied 
by the Shareholders in a general meeting,
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whichever is the earliest. 

The authority conferred on the Directors by the Share Purchase Mandate to purchase Shares may 
be renewed at the next AGM or at an EGM to be convened immediately after the conclusion or 
adjournment of the next AGM. When seeking the approval of the Shareholders for the Share Purchase 
Mandate, the Company is required to disclose details pertaining to purchases or acquisitions of 
Shares pursuant to the proposed Share Purchase Mandate made during the previous 12 months, 
including the total number of Shares purchased, the purchase price per Share or the highest and 
lowest prices paid for such purchases of Shares, where relevant, and the total consideration paid for 
such purchases.

 (c) manner of purchases or acquisitions of Shares

Purchases or acquisitions of Shares may be made by way of:

(i) market purchase(s) (“Market Purchase”), transacted on the SGX-ST through the ready market, 
through one (1) or more duly licensed stock brokers appointed by the Company for that 
purpose; and/or

(ii) an off-market acquisition (“Off-Market Purchase”) in accordance with an equal access scheme 
as defined in Section 76C of the Companies Act.

The Directors may impose such terms and conditions which are not inconsistent with the Share 
Purchase Mandate, the Listing Rules (as defined herein) and the Companies Act, as they consider fit in 
the interests of the Company in connection with or in relation to any equal access scheme or schemes. 
An Off-Market Purchase must, however, satisfy all the following conditions:

(A) offers for the purchase or acquisition of Shares shall be made to every person who holds 
Shares to purchase or acquire the same percentage of their Shares;

(B) all of the abovementioned persons shall be given a reasonable opportunity to accept the offers 
made; and

(C) the terms of all the offers shall be the same, except that there shall be disregarded (1) differences 
in consideration attributable to the fact that offers may relate to Shares with different accrued 
dividend entitlements; (2) differences in consideration attributable to the fact that offers relate 
to Shares with different amounts remaining unpaid; and (3) differences in the offers introduced 
solely to ensure that each person is left with a whole number of Shares.

Pursuant to Rule 885 of the Listing Manual, if the Company wishes to make an Off-Market Purchase 
in accordance with an equal access scheme, it shall issue an offer document to all Shareholders 
containing at least the following information:

(1) the terms and conditions of the offer;

(2) the period and procedures for acceptances;

(3) the reasons for the proposed purchase or acquisition of Shares;

(4) the consequences, if any, of the purchases or acquisitions of Shares by the Company that will 
arise under the Take-over Code (as defined herein) or other applicable take-over rules;
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(5) whether the purchases or acquisitions of Shares, if made, could affect the listing of the Shares 
on the SGX-ST; 

(6) details of any purchases or acquisitions of Shares made by the Company in the previous 12 
months (whether Market Purchases or Off-Market Purchases in accordance with an equal 
access scheme), giving the total number of Shares purchased, the purchase price per Share or 
the highest and lowest prices paid for the purchases of Shares, where relevant, and the total 
consideration paid for the purchases; and

(7) whether the Shares purchased by the Company will be cancelled or kept as treasury shares.

 (d) maximum purchase price

The purchase price (excluding brokerage, stamp duties, commission, applicable goods and services 
tax and other related expenses) to be paid for a Share will be determined by the Directors or a 
committee of Directors that may be constituted for the purposes of effecting purchases or acquisitions 
of Shares by the Company under the Share Purchase Mandate. However, the maximum purchase 
price (the “Maximum Price”) to be paid for the Shares pursuant to the purchases or acquisitions of the 
Shares must not exceed:

(i) in the case of a Market Purchase, 105% of the Average Closing Price; and

(ii) in the case of an Off-Market Purchase pursuant to an equal access scheme, 120% of the 
Average Closing Price,

in either case, excluding related expenses of the purchase or acquisition.

For the above purposes:

“Average Closing Price” means the average of the closing market prices of a Share for the five (5) 
consecutive Market Days on which the Shares are transacted on the SGX-ST immediately preceding 
the date of the Market Purchase by the Company or, as the case may be, the date of the making of the 
offer pursuant to the Off-Market Purchase, and deemed to be adjusted in accordance with the Listing 
Rules for any corporate action which occurs after the relevant five (5) Market Days.

“date of the making of the offer” means the date on which the Company announces its intention to 
make an offer for an Off-Market Purchase, stating therein the purchase price (which shall not be more 
than the Maximum Price for an Off-Market Purchase calculated on the foregoing basis) for each Share 
and the relevant terms of the equal access scheme for effecting the Off-Market Purchase.

2.4 Status of Purchased Shares

A Share purchased or acquired by the Company is deemed cancelled immediately on purchase or acquisition 
(and all rights and privileges attached to the Share will expire on such cancellation) unless such Share is held 
by the Company as a treasury share. Accordingly, the total number of issued Shares will be diminished by 
the number of Shares purchased or acquired by the Company and which are not held as treasury shares. 
At the time of each purchase or acquisition of Shares by the Company, the Directors will decide whether the 
Shares purchased will be cancelled or kept as treasury shares or partly cancelled and partly kept as treasury 
shares, depending on the needs of the Company at that time. 
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2.5 treasury Shares

Under the Companies Act, Shares purchased or acquired by the Company may be held or dealt with as 
treasury shares. Some of the provisions on treasury shares under the Companies Act, are summarised below:

 (a) maximum Holdings

The number of Shares held as treasury shares cannot at any time exceed 8% of the total number of 
issued Shares.

 (b) voting and other rights

The Company cannot exercise any right in respect of treasury shares. In particular, the Company 
cannot exercise any right to attend or vote at meetings and for the purposes of the Companies Act, 
the Company shall be treated as having no right to vote and the treasury shares shall be treated as 
having no voting rights.

In addition, no dividend may be paid, and no other distribution of the Company’s assets may be 
made, to the Company in respect of treasury shares. However, the allotment of shares as fully paid 
bonus shares in respect of treasury shares is allowed. Also, a subdivision or consolidation of any 
treasury share into treasury shares of a smaller amount is allowed so long as the total value of the 
treasury shares after the subdivision or consolidation is the same as before.

 (c) Disposal and Cancellation

Where Shares are held as treasury shares, the Company may at any time:

(i) sell the treasury shares for cash;

(ii) transfer the treasury shares for the purposes of or pursuant to an employees’ share scheme;

(iii) transfer the treasury shares as consideration for the acquisition of shares in or assets of another 
company or assets of a person;

(iv) cancel the treasury shares; or

(v) sell, transfer or otherwise use the treasury shares for such other purposes as may be prescribed 
by the Minister for Finance.

Under the Companies Act, where Shares purchased or acquired by the Company are cancelled, the 
Company shall:

(i) reduce the amount of its share capital where the Shares were purchased out of the capital of 
the Company;

(ii) reduce the amount of its profits where the Shares were purchased or acquired out of the profits 
of the Company; or

(iii) reduce the amount of its share capital and profits proportionately where the Shares were 
purchased out of both the capital and the profits of the Company,
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by the total amount of the purchase price paid by the Company for the Shares cancelled. Shares 
which are cancelled will be automatically delisted, and certificates in respect thereof will be cancelled 
and destroyed by the Company as soon as reasonably practicable following such cancellation. The 
total number of issued Shares will be diminished by the number of Shares purchased or acquired by 
the Company and which are cancelled and not held as treasury shares.

Under Rule 704(28) of the Listing Manual, immediate announcement must be made of any sale, transfer, 
cancellation and/or use of treasury shares (in each case, the “usage”). Such announcement must include 
details such as the date of the usage, the purpose of the usage, the number of treasury shares comprised in 
the usage, the number of treasury shares before and after the usage, and the percentage of the number of 
treasury shares comprised in the usage against the total number of issued shares (of the same class as the 
treasury shares) which are listed on the SGX-ST before and after the usage. 

2.6 reporting requirements

Within 30 days of the passing of a Shareholders’ resolution to approve the purchases of Shares by the 
Company, the Company shall lodge a copy of such resolution with the Registrar of Companies.

The Company shall notify the Registrar of Companies within 30 days of a purchase of Shares by the 
Company on the SGX-ST or otherwise. Such notification shall include the date of the purchases, the total 
number of Shares purchased by the Company, the number of Shares cancelled and/or held as treasury 
shares, the Company’s issued ordinary share capital as at the date of the Shareholders’ resolution approving 
the purchase of the Shares and after the purchase of Shares, and the amount of consideration paid by the 
Company for the purchases, whether the Shares were purchased out of profits or the capital of the Company 
and such other particulars as may be required in the prescribed form. 

Rule 886 of the Listing Manual specifies that a listed company shall notify the SGX-ST of all purchases or 
acquisitions of its Shares not later than 9.00 a.m.:

(a) in the case of a Market Purchase, on the Market Day following the day on which the Market Purchase 
was made, and

(b) in the case of an Off-Market Purchase under an equal access scheme in accordance with Section 76C 
of the Companies Act, on the second Market Day after the close of acceptance of the offer for the 
Off-Market Purchase.

The notification of such purchases or acquisitions of Shares to the SGX-ST shall be in such form and shall include 
such details that the SGX-ST may prescribe. The Company shall make arrangements with its stockbrokers to 
ensure that they provide the Company in a timely fashion the necessary information which will enable the 
Company to make the notifications to the SGX-ST.

2.7 Source of Funds

The Company may only apply funds for the purchase or acquisition of the Shares as provided in the Articles 
(as defined herein) and in accordance with the applicable laws in Singapore. The Company may not 
purchase its Shares for consideration other than in cash or, in the case of a Market Purchase, for settlement 
otherwise than in accordance with the trading rules of the SGX-ST.

The Companies Act permits the Company to purchase or acquire its own Shares out of capital, as well as 
from its distributable profits. Apart from using its internal sources of funds, the Company may obtain or incur 
borrowings to finance its purchase or acquisition of Shares.
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2.8 Financial Effects

It is not possible for the Company to realistically calculate or quantify the impact of purchases or acquisitions 
of Shares that may be made pursuant to the Share Purchase Mandate on the net tangible assets (“NTA”) 
and earnings per Share (“EPS”) as the resultant effect would depend on, inter alia, the aggregate number of 
Shares purchased or acquired, whether the purchases or acquisitions are made out of capital or profits, the 
purchase prices paid for such Shares and the amount (if any) borrowed by the Company to fund the purchases 
or acquisitions and whether the Shares purchased or acquired are cancelled or held as treasury shares.

The Company’s total issued share capital will be diminished by the total number of the Shares purchased by 
the Company and which are cancelled. The NTA of the Group will be reduced by the aggregate purchase 
price paid by the Company for the Shares.

Under the Companies Act, purchases or acquisitions of Shares by the Company may be made out of the 
Company’s capital or profits so long as the Company is solvent. Where the consideration paid by the 
Company for the purchase or acquisition of Shares is made out of profits, such consideration (excluding 
brokerage, stamp duties, commission, applicable goods and services tax and other related expenses) will 
correspondingly reduce the amount available for the distribution of cash dividends by the Company. Where 
the consideration paid by the Company for the purchase or acquisition of Shares is made out of capital, the 
amount available for the distribution of cash dividends by the Company will not be reduced.

The Directors do not propose to exercise the Share Purchase Mandate to such an extent that it would have 
a material adverse effect on the working capital requirements of the Group. The purchase or acquisition of 
the Shares will only be effected after considering relevant factors such as the working capital requirement, 
availability of financial resources, the expansion and investment plans of the Group and the prevailing 
market conditions. The proposed Share Purchase Mandate will be exercised with a view of enhancing the 
EPS and/or the NTA value per Share.

For illustrative purposes only, the financial effects of the Share Purchase Mandate on the Company and the 
Group, based on the audited financial accounts of the Group for the financial year ended 30 June 2014 are 
based on the assumptions set out below:

(a) based on 568,709,857 Shares in issue as at the Latest Practicable Date and assuming no further 
Shares are issued and no Shares are held by the Company as treasury shares on or prior to the 
date of the 2014 AGM, not more than 45,496,789 Shares (representing approximately 8% of the 
total number of issued Shares of the Company as at that date) may be purchased by the Company 
pursuant to the proposed Share Purchase Mandate;

(b) in the case of Market Purchases by the Company and assuming that the Company purchases or 
acquires 45,496,789 Shares at the Maximum Price of S$0.19 for a Share (being the price equivalent 
to 5% above the average of the closing market prices of the Shares for the five (5) consecutive Market 
Days on which the Shares were traded on the SGX-ST immediately preceding the Latest Practicable 
Date), the maximum amount of funds required for the purchase or acquisition of 45,496,789 Shares 
(excluding brokerage, stamp duties, commission, applicable goods and services tax and other related 
expenses) is approximately S$8.644 million; and 

(c) in the case of Off-Market Purchases by the Company and assuming that the Company purchases or 
acquires 45,496,789 Shares at the Maximum Price of S$0.22 for a Share (being the price equivalent 
to 20% above the average of the closing market prices of the Shares on the five (5) consecutive Market 
Days on which the Shares were traded on the SGX-ST immediately preceding the Latest Practicable 
Date), the maximum amount of funds required for the purchase or acquisition of 45,496,789 Shares 
(excluding brokerage, stamp duties, commission, applicable goods and services tax and other related 
expenses) is approximately S$10.009 million. 
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For illustrative purposes only, and based on the assumptions set out in sub-paragraphs (a), (b) and (c) 
above and assuming that (i) the purchase or acquisition of Shares is financed by internal sources of funds 
and external borrowings; (ii) the Share Purchase Mandate had been effective on 30 June 2014; and (iii) 
the Company had purchased or acquired 45,496,789 Shares (representing approximately 8% of the total 
number of issued Shares of the Company at the Latest Practicable Date) on 30 June 2014, the financial 
effects of the purchase or acquisition of 45,496,789 Shares by the Company pursuant to the Share Purchase 
Mandate:

(i) by way of purchases made entirely out of capital and held as treasury shares; and

(ii) by way of purchases made entirely out of capital and cancelled,

on the audited financial accounts of the Company and the Group for the financial year ended 30 June 2014 
are set out below: 

 (1) purchases made entirely out of capital and held as treasury shares 

(a) market purchases

Group Company
Before
Share

Purchase

After
Share

Purchase

Before
Share

Purchase

After
Share

Purchase
S$’000 S$’000 S$’000 S$’000

As at 30 June 2014
Issued capital and reserves 101,854 101,733 169,172 169,051
Treasury shares – (8,644) – (8,644)
Total shareholders’ equity 101,854 93,089 169,172 160,407
NTA 101,854 93,089 169,172 160,407
(Loss) / Profit after taxation and minority 

interest (22,096) (22,217) 6,114 5,993
Net debt 80,029 88,673 347 3,990
Number of Shares (‘000) 568,710 568,710 568,710 568,710
Financial Ratios
NTA per Share (cents) 17.91 16.37 29.75 28.21
Gross debt gearing (%) 83.65 95.26 0.31 2.49
Net debt gearing (%) 78.57 95.26 0.21 2.49
Current ratio (times) 1.46 1.38 33.39 12.40
(Loss) / Earnings before interest, tax, 

depreciation and amortisation divided 
by interest expenses (times) (1.97) (1.91) 298.52 44.15

Basic (LPS) / EPS (cents)
(before exceptional items) (3.65) (3.67) 1.81 1.79
(after exceptional items) (3.89) (3.91) 1.08 1.05
ROE (%) (21.69) (23.87) 3.61 3.74
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(B) off-market purchases

Group Company
Before
Share

Purchase

After
Share

Purchase

Before
Share

Purchase

After
Share

Purchase
S$’000 S$’000 S$’000 S$’000

As at 30 June 2014
Issued capital and reserves 101,854 101,685 169,172 169,003
Treasury shares – (10,009) – (10,009)
Total shareholders’ equity 101,854 91,676 169,172 158,994
NTA 101,854 91,676 169,172 158,994
(Loss) / Profit after taxation and minority interest (22,096) (22,265) 6,114 5,945
Net debt 80,029 90,038 347 5,355
Number of Shares (‘000) 568,710 568,710 568,710 568,710
Financial Ratios
NTA per Share (cents) 17.91 16.12 29.75 27.96
Gross debt gearing (%) 83.65 98.21 0.31 3.37
Net debt gearing (%) 78.57 98.21 0.21 3.37
Current ratio (times) 1.46 1.37 33.39 10.02
(Loss) / Earnings before interest, tax, depreciation and 

amortisation divided by interest expenses (times) (1.97) (1.88) 298.52 32.99
Basic (LPS) / EPS (cents)
(before exceptional items) (3.65) (3.68) 1.81 1.78
(after exceptional items) (3.89) (3.92) 1.08 1.05
ROE (%) (21.69) (24.29) 3.61 3.74

 (2)  purchases made entirely out of capital and cancelled

(a) market purchases

Group Company
Before
Share

Purchase

After
Share

Purchase

Before
Share

Purchase

After
Share

Purchase
S$’000 S$’000 S$’000 S$’000

As at 30 June 2014
Issued capital and reserves / Total shareholders’ equity 101,854 93,089 169,172 160,407
NTA 101,854 93,089 169,172 160,407
(Loss) / Profit after taxation and minority interest (22,096) (22,217) 6,114 5,993
Net debt 80,029 88,673 347 3,990
Number of Shares (‘000) 568,710 523,213 568,710 523,213
Financial Ratios
NTA per Share (cents) 17.91 17.79 29.75 30.66
Gross debt gearing (%) 83.65 95.26 0.31 2.49
Net debt gearing (%) 78.57 95.26 0.21 2.49
Current ratio (times) 1.46 1.38 33.39 12.40
(Loss) / Earnings before interest, tax, depreciation and 

amortisation divided by interest expenses (times) (1.97) (1.91) 298.52 44.15
Basic (LPS) / EPS (cents)
(before exceptional items) (3.65) (3.99) 1.81 1.94
(after exceptional items) (3.89) (4.25) 1.08 1.15
ROE (%) (21.69) (23.87) 3.61 3.74

SHare purCHaSe manDate

142
F  J  B e n J a m I n



(B) off-market purchases

Group Company
Before
Share

Purchase

After
Share

Purchase

Before
Share

Purchase

After
Share

Purchase
S$’000 S$’000 S$’000 S$’000

As at 30 June 2014

Issued capital and reserves / Total shareholders’ equity 101,854 91,676 169,172 158,994
NTA 101,854 91,676 169,172 158,994
(Loss) / Profit after taxation and minority interest (22,096) (22,265) 6,114 5,945
Net debt 80,029 90,038 347 5,355
Number of Shares (‘000) 568,710 523,213 568,710 523,213
Financial Ratios
NTA per Share (cents) 17.91 17.52 29.75 30.39
Gross debt gearing (%) 83.65 98.21 0.31 3.37
Net debt gearing (%) 78.57 98.21 0.21 3.37
Current ratio (times) 1.46 1.37 33.39 10.02
(Loss) / Earnings before interest, tax, depreciation and 

amortisation divided by interest expenses (times) (1.97) (1.88) 298.52 32.99
Basic (LPS) / EPS (cents)
(before exceptional items) (3.65) (4.00) 1.81 1.94
(after exceptional items) (3.89) (4.26) 1.08 1.14
ROE (%) (21.69) (24.29) 3.61 3.74

Shareholders should note that the financial effects set out above are purely for illustrative purposes only. 
Although the proposed Share Purchase Mandate would authorise the Company to purchase or acquire up 
to 8% of its issued Shares, the Company may not necessarily purchase or acquire or be able to purchase 
or acquire the entire 8% of its issued Shares. In addition, the Company may cancel all or part of the Shares 
repurchased or hold all or part of the Shares repurchased in treasury.

Shareholders who are in doubt as to their respective tax positions or any tax implications arising from the 
Share Purchase Mandate or who may be subject to tax in a jurisdiction other than Singapore should consult 
their own professional advisers.

2.9 take-over Implications

Appendix 2 of the Take-over Code contains the Share Buy-Back Guidance Note applicable as at the Latest 
Practicable Date. The take-over implications arising from any purchase or acquisition by the Company of its 
Shares are set out below.

 (a) obligation to make a take-over offer

If, as a result of any purchase or acquisition by the Company of the Shares, the proportionate 
interest in the voting capital of the Company of a Shareholder and persons acting in concert with him 
increases, such increase will be treated as an acquisition for the purposes of Rule 14 of the Take-over 
Code. Consequently, a Shareholder or a group of Shareholders acting in concert with a Director 
could obtain or consolidate effective control of the Company and become obliged to make an offer 
under Rule 14 of the Take-over Code.
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 (b) persons acting in Concert

Under the Take-over Code, persons acting in concert comprise individuals or companies who, pursuant 
to an agreement or understanding (whether formal or informal), co-operate, through the acquisition by 
any of them of shares in a company to obtain or consolidate effective control of the company.

Unless the contrary is established, the following persons, inter alia, will be presumed to be acting in 
concert, namely:

(i) a company with its parent company, its subsidiaries, its fellow subsidiaries, any associated 
companies of the foregoing companies, any company whose associated companies include 
any of the foregoing companies, and any person who has provided financial assistance (other 
than a bank in the ordinary course of business) to any of the foregoing companies for the 
purchase of voting rights;

(ii) a company with any of its directors, together with their close relatives, related trusts and any 
companies controlled by any of the directors, their close relatives and related trusts;

(iii) a company with any of its pension funds and employee share schemes;

(iv) a person with any investment company, unit trust or other fund in respect of the investment 
account which such person manages on a discretionary basis, but only in respect of the 
investment account which such person manages;

(v) a financial or other professional adviser, with its client in respect of the shareholdings of 
the adviser and the persons controlling, controlled by or under the same control as the 
adviser and all the funds which the adviser manages on a discretionary basis, where the 
shareholdings of the adviser and any of those funds in the client total 10% or more of the 
client’s equity share capital;

(vi) directors of a company, together with their close relatives, related trusts and companies 
controlled by any of them, which is subject to an offer or where they have reason to believe a 
bona fide offer for their company may be imminent;

(vii) partners; and

(viii) an individual, his close relatives, his related trusts, any person who is accustomed to act 
according to his instructions, companies controlled by any of the foregoing persons and any 
person who has provided financial assistance (other than a bank in the ordinary course of 
business) to any of the foregoing persons and/or entities for the purchase of voting rights.

For this purpose, ownership or control of at least 20% but not more than 50% of the voting rights of 
a company will be regarded as the test of associated company status.

The circumstances under which Shareholders, including Directors and persons acting in concert with 
them respectively, will incur an obligation to make a take-over offer under Rule 14 of the Take-over 
Code after a purchase or acquisition of Shares by the Company are set out in Rule 14 and Appendix 
2 of the Take-over Code.
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 (c) effect of rule 14 and appendix 2

 In general terms, the effect of Rule 14 and Appendix 2 of the Take-over Code is that, unless exempted, 
Directors and persons acting in concert with them will incur an obligation to make a take-over offer 
under Rule 14 if, as a result of the Company purchasing or acquiring Shares:

(i) the voting rights of such Directors and their concert parties would increase to 30% or more; or

(ii) in the event that such Directors and their concert parties hold between 30% and 50% of the 
Company’s voting rights, if the voting rights of such Directors and their concert parties would 
increase by more than 1% in any period of six (6) months.

Under Appendix 2 of the Take-over Code, a Shareholder not acting in concert with the Directors will 
not be required to make a take-over offer under Rule 14 if, as a result of the Company purchasing or 
acquiring its Shares:

(A) the voting rights of such Shareholder would increase to 30% or more; or

(B) if such Shareholder holds between 30% and 50% of the Company’s voting rights, the voting 
rights of such Shareholder would increase by more than 1% in any period of six (6) months.

Such Shareholder need not abstain from voting in respect of the resolution authorising the Share 
Purchase Mandate.

Any Shares held by the Company as treasury shares shall be excluded from the calculation of the 
percentages of voting rights under the Take-over Code referred to above.

Based on the Register of Directors’ Shareholdings and the issued share capital of the Company as 
at the Latest Practicable Date, none of the Directors and persons acting in concert with them would 
become obliged to make a take-over offer for the Company under Rule 14 of the Take-over Code as a 
result of the purchase by the Company of the maximum limit of 8% of its issued Shares as at the Latest  
Practicable Date. 

As at the Latest Practicable Date, the Directors are not aware of any other fact(s) or factor(s) which 
suggest or imply that any particular person(s) and/or Shareholder(s) are, or may be regarded 
as, persons acting in concert such that their respective interests in Shares should or ought to be 
consolidated, and consequences under the Take-over Code would ensue as a result of a purchase or 
acquisition of Shares by the Company pursuant to the Share Purchase Mandate. 

Shareholders who are in doubt as to their obligations, if any, to make a mandatory take-over offer 
under the Take-over Code as a result of any purchase or acquisition of Shares by the Company should 
consult the Securities Industry Council and/or their professional advisers at the earliest opportunity.
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2.10 listing rules

While the Listing Rules do not expressly prohibit purchase of shares by a listed company during any particular 
time or times, the listed company would be considered an “insider” in relation to any proposed purchase 
or acquisition of its issued shares. In this regard, the Company will not purchase any Shares pursuant to 
the Share Purchase Mandate after a price-sensitive development has occurred or has been the subject of a 
consideration and/or a decision of the Board of Directors until such time as the price-sensitive information 
has been publicly announced. In particular, in line with the best practices guides on securities dealings issued 
by the SGX-ST, the Company will not purchase or acquire any Shares through Market Purchases during the 
period of:

(a) one (1) month immediately preceding the announcement of the Company’s full year financial 
statements; and

(b) two (2) weeks immediately preceding the announcement of the Company’s financial statements for 
each of the first three (3) quarters of its financial year.

The Company is required under Rule 723 of the Listing Manual to ensure that at least 10% of its Shares are 
in the hands of the public. The “public”, as defined under the Listing Manual, are persons other than the 
Directors, Chief Executive Officer, Substantial Shareholders or controlling shareholders of the Company or its 
Subsidiaries, as well as the associates of the foregoing.

Based on the Register of Directors’ Shareholdings and the Register of Substantial Shareholders maintained by 
the Company as at the Latest Practicable Date, approximately 249,561,907 Shares, representing 43.88% of 
the issued Shares, are in the hands of the public. Assuming that the Company purchases its Shares from the 
public through Market Purchases up to the full 8% limit pursuant to the Share Purchase Mandate, the number 
of Shares in the hands of the public would be reduced to 204,065,118 Shares, representing 39.00% of 
the reduced issued share capital of the Company. Accordingly, the Company is of the view that there is 
a sufficient number of issued Shares held in the hands of the public which would permit the Company to 
undertake purchases or acquisitions of its issued Shares up to the full 8% limit pursuant to the proposed Share 
Purchase Mandate without affecting the listing status of the Shares on the SGX-ST, and that the number of 
Shares remaining in the hands of the public will not fall to such a level as to cause market illiquidity. 

In undertaking any purchases or acquisitions of Shares through Market Purchases, the Directors will use their 
best efforts to ensure that, notwithstanding such purchases, a sufficient float in the hands of the public will 
be maintained so that the purchases or acquisitions of Shares will not adversely affect the listing status of the 
Shares on the SGX-ST, cause market illiquidity or adversely affect the orderly trading of the Shares.

2.11 previous Share purchases 

The Company has not entered into transactions to acquire any Shares pursuant to the 2013 Share Purchase 
Mandate in the 12 months immediately preceding the Latest Practicable Date. 
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3. DIreCtorS’ anD SuBStantIal SHareHolDerS’ IntereStS 

3.1 Directors’ Interests

 The interests of the Directors in the Shares as recorded in the Register of Directors’ Shareholdings as at the 
Latest Practicable Date are set out below:

Director 
Number of Shares Total Percentage

Interest (%)Direct Interest Deemed Interest

Frank Benjamin 39,191,000 – 6.89
Eli Manasseh (Nash) Benjamin (1) 17,310,050 7,000,000 4.27
Keith Tay Ah Kee 256,000 – 0.05
Douglas Jackie Benjamin (2) – 130,000 0.02
Wong Ai Fong (3) – 35,000 0.01
Karen Chong Mee Keng – – –
Chew Kwee San – – –
Daniel Ong Jen Yaw – – –
Ng Hin Lee – – –

(1) Eli Manasseh (Nash) Benjamin – deemed interest - The shares are held in a nominee’s name.
(2)  Douglas Jackie Benjamin – 10,000 shares are held in his spouse’s name, 40,000 shares are held in a nominee’s name and 80,000 

shares are purchased under the CPF Investment Scheme. 
(3) Wong Ai Fong – The shares are purchased under the CPF Investment Scheme and managed by a nominee.

3.2 Substantial Shareholders’ Interests 

The interests of the substantial shareholders of the Company (other than those who are Directors) in the Shares 
as recorded in the Register of Substantial Shareholders as at the Latest Practicable Date are set out below: 

Substantial Shareholder
Number of Shares Total Percentage

Interest (%)Direct Interest Deemed Interest

Lim Eng Hock (4) 65,000,000 35,641,000 17.70
Segulah Pte Ltd 91,937,900 – 16.17
Temasek Holdings (Private) Ltd (5) – 91,937,900 16.17
DBS Trustee Limited (5) – 91,937,900 16.17
DBS Group Holdings Limited (5) – 91,937,900 16.17
DBS Bank Ltd. (5) – 91,937,900 16.17
Raffles Investments Limited 62,280,000 – 10.95
Aequitas Pte Ltd (6) – 62,280,000 10.95
Kambau Pte Ltd (6) – 62,280,000 10.95
Siong Lim Private Limited (6) – 62,280,000 10.95
Tecity Pte Ltd (6) – 62,280,000 10.95
Dr Tan Kheng Lian (6) – 62,280,000 10.95
Mavis Benjamin (7) – 39,191,000 6.89

(4) Lim Eng Hock – deemed interest - The shares are held in nominees’ names and by related companies.  
(5)  Temasek Holdings (Private) Ltd, DBS Trustee Limited, DBS Group Holdings Limited and DBS Bank Ltd are deemed to be interested in the 

shares held by Segulah Pte Ltd. 
(6)  Aequitas Pte Ltd, Kambau Pte Ltd, Siong Lim Private Limited, Tecity Pte Ltd and Dr Tan Kheng Lian are deemed to be interested in the 

shares held by Raffles Investments Limited. 
(7) Mavis Benjamin – Mavis Benjamin is the spouse of Frank Benjamin and therefore deemed interested in the shares held by Frank Benjamin.
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4. annual General meetInG 

The 2014 AGM of the Company, notice of which is set out in pages 127 to 132 of the 2014 Annual Report, 
will be held on 20 October 2014 at 11 a.m. for the purpose of, inter alia, considering and if thought fit, 
passing with or without modifications, the resolution on the renewal of the Share Purchase Mandate as set 
out in the Notice of AGM. 

5. DIreCtorS’ reCommenDatIon

The Directors are of the opinion that the proposed renewal of the Share Purchase Mandate is in the best 
interests of the Company. Accordingly, they recommend that Shareholders vote in favour of ordinary resolution 
number 11, being the ordinary resolution relating to the proposed renewal of the Share Purchase Mandate 
as set out in the Notice of AGM. 

6. reSponSIBIlIty Statement 

The Directors collectively and individually accept full responsibility for the accuracy of the information given 
in this Letter and confirm , after making all reasonable enquires that, to the best of their knowledge and belief, 
this Letter constitutes full and true disclosure of all material facts about the renewal of the Share Purchase 
Mandate, the Company and its Subsidiaries, and the Directors are not aware of any facts the omission of 
which would make any statement in this Letter misleading. 

Where information in the Letter has been extracted from published or otherwise publicly available sources 
or obtained from a named source, the sole responsibility of the Directors has been to ensure that such 
information has been accurately and correctly extracted from those sources and/or reproduced in this Letter 
in its proper form and context. 

7. DoCumentS For InSpeCtIon

Copies of the following documents are available for inspection at the registered office of the Company during 
normal business hours up to and including the date of the 2014 AGM: 

(a) the Memorandum and Articles; and

(b) the 2014 Annual Report. 

Yours faithfully
For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of 
F J BENJAMIN HOLDINGS LTD 

Frank Benjamin
Executive Chairman
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SCHeDule - DeFInItIonS

In this Letter, the following definitions apply throughout unless the context otherwise requires: 

“2013 AGM” : The annual general meeting of the Company held on 31 October 2013

“2013 Share Purchase Mandate” : The Share Purchase Mandate renewed at the 2013 AGM

“2014 AGM” : The annual general meeting of the Company to be held on 20 October 2014 

“2014 Annual Report” : The annual report of the Company for the financial year ended 30 June 2014

“AGM” : The annual general meeting of the Company 

“Articles” : The Articles of Association of the Company 

“Board of Directors” : The board of Directors of the Company 

“CDP” : The Central Depository (Pte) Limited 

“Companies Act” : The Companies Act (Chapter 50 of Singapore)

“Company” : F J Benjamin Holdings Ltd

“Director” : A director of the Company as at the date of this Letter

“EGM” : An extraordinary general meeting of the Company 

“EPS” : Earnings per Share

“Group” : The Company, its Subsidiaries and associated companies

“Latest Practicable Date” : 5 September 2014, being the latest practicable date prior to the printing 
of this Letter 

“Listing Manual” : The listing manual of the SGX-ST

“Listing Rules” : The listing rules of the SGX-ST as set out in the Listing Manual

“Market Day” : A day on which the SGX-ST is open for trading in securities 

“Market Purchase” : Shall have the meaning ascribed to it in paragraph 2.3(c)(i) 

“Maximum Price” : Shall have the meaning ascribed to it in paragraph 2.3(d)

“Memorandum” : The Memorandum of Association of the Company 

“Notice of AGM” : The notice of the 2014 AGM

“NTA” : Net tangible assets

“Off-Market Purchase” : Shall have the meaning ascribed to it in paragraph 2.3(c)(ii) 

“ROE” : Return on equity

“SGX-ST” : Singapore Exchange Securities Trading Limited
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“Shareholders” : Registered holders for the time being of the Shares (other than CDP), or in 
the case of depositors, depositors who have Shares entered against their 
name in the Depository Register

“Shares” : Ordinary shares in the share capital of the Company

“Share Purchase Mandate” : A general mandate given by Shareholders to authorise the Directors to 
purchase, on behalf of the Company, Shares in accordance with the terms 
set out in the Letter as well as the rules and regulations set forth in the 
Companies Act and the Listing Rules

“Subsidiary” : A company which is for the time being a subsidiary of the Company as 
defined by Section 5 of the Companies Act

“Substantial Shareholder” : Shall have the meaning ascribed to it in the Companies Act 

“Take-over Code” : The Singapore Code on Take-overs and Mergers

“S$” and “cents” : Singapore dollars and cents, respectively

“%” : Percentage or per centum 

The terms “depositor”, “Depository Register” and “depository agent” shall have the meanings ascribed to them 
respectively in Section 130A of the Companies Act.

The term “controlling shareholder” shall have the meaning ascribed to it in the Listing Manual. 

Words importing the singular shall, where applicable, include the plural and vice versa and words importing the 
masculine gender shall, where applicable, include the feminine and neuter genders. References to persons shall 
include corporations.

Any reference in this Letter to any enactment is a reference to that enactment as for the time being amended or re-
enacted. Any word defined under the Companies Act or any statutory modification thereof and used in this Letter 
shall have the meaning assigned to it under the Companies Act or any statutory modification thereof, as the case 
may be. 

Any reference to a time of a day in this Letter shall be a reference to Singapore time unless otherwise stated.

Any discrepancy in the tables in this Letter between the listed amounts and the totals or percentages thereof are due 
to rounding.
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F J BenJamIn HolDInGS ltD
(Co. Reg. No. 197301125N)
(Incorporated In The Republic of Singapore)

proXy Form
(Please see notes overleaf before completing this Form)

I/We, 

of

being a member/members of F J Benjamin Holdings Ltd (the “Company”), hereby appoint:

Name NRIC/Passport No. Proportion of Shareholdings

No. of Shares %

Address

and/or (delete as appropriate)

Name NRIC/Passport No. Proportion of Shareholdings

No. of Shares %

Address

or failing the person, or either or both of the persons, referred to above , the Chairman of the Meeting as my/our 
proxy/proxies to vote for me/us on my/our behalf at the Annual General Meeting (the “Meeting”) of the Company 
to be held on Monday, 20 October 2014 at 11.00 a.m. at Lavender Room, Level 3, Orchard Hotel, 442 Orchard 
Road, Singapore 238879 and at any adjournment thereof. I/We direct my/our proxy/proxies to vote for or against 
the Resolutions proposed at the Meeting as indicated hereunder. If no specific direction as to voting is given or in the 
event of any other matter arising at the Meeting and at any adjournment thereof, the proxy/proxies will vote or abstain 
from voting at his/her discretion. The authority herein includes the right to demand or to join in demanding a poll and 
to vote on a poll.

(please indicate your vote “For” or “against” with a tick [ü] within the box provided.)

No. Resolutions relating to: For Against
1 Directors’ Report and Audited Accounts for the year ended 30 June 2014
2 Payment of proposed first & final dividend
3 Re-election of Mr Douglas Jackie Benjamin as a Director
4 Re-election of Ms Karen Chong Mee Keng as a Director
5 Re-election of Mr Ng Hin Lee as a Director
6 Re-appointment of Mr Frank Benjamin as a Director
7 Re-appointment of Mr Keith Tay Ah Kee as a Director
8 Approval of Directors’ Fees amounting to S$325,000 for the year ending 30 June 2015
9 Re-appointment of Messrs Ernst & Young LLP as Auditors
10 Authority to issue shares 
11 Renewal of Share Purchase Mandate

Dated this day of 2014
Total number of Shares in: No. of Shares

(a) CDP Register

Signature of Shareholder(s) 
or, Common Seal of Corporate Shareholder

* Delete where inapplicable

(b) Register of Members

IMPORTANT:
1. For investors who have used their CPF monies to buy F J Benjamin 

Holdings Ltd’s shares, this Report is forwarded to them at the 
request of the CPF Approved Nominees and is sent solely FOR 
INFORMATION ONLY.

2. This Proxy Form is not valid for use by CPF investors and shall be 
ineffective for all intents and purposes if used or purported to be 
used by them.

3. CPF investors who wish to attend the Meeting as an observer must 
submit their requests through their CPF Approved Nominees within 
the time frame specified. If they also wish to vote, they must submit 
their voting instructions to the CPF Approved Nominees within the 
time frame specified to enable them to vote on their behalf.



noteS:

1.  Please insert the total number of Shares held by you. If you have Shares entered against your name in the 
Depository Register (as defined in Section 130A of the Companies Act, Chapter 50 of Singapore), you 
should insert that number of Shares. If you have Shares registered in your name in the Register of Members, 
you should insert that number of Shares. If you have Shares entered against your name in the Depository 
Register and Shares registered in your name in the Register of Members, you should insert the aggregate 
number of Shares entered against your name in the Depository Register and registered in your name in the 
Register of Members. If no number is inserted, the instrument appointing a proxy or proxies shall be deemed 
to relate to all the Shares held by you.

2.  A member of the Company entitled to attend and vote at a meeting of the Company is entitled to appoint 
one or two proxies to attend and vote in his/her stead. A proxy need not be a member of the Company.

3.  Where a member appoints two proxies, the appointments shall be invalid unless he/she specifies the 
proportion of his/her shareholding (expressed as a percentage of the whole) to be represented by each 
proxy.

4.  Completion and return of this instrument appointing a proxy shall not preclude a member from attending 
and voting at the Meeting. Any appointment of a proxy or proxies shall be deemed to be revoked if a 
member attends the meeting in person, and in such event, the Company reserves the right to refuse to admit 
any person or persons appointed under the instrument of proxy to the Meeting.

5.  The instrument appointing a proxy or proxies must be deposited at the registered office of the Company 
at   10 Science Park Road, #04-01, The Alpha Science Park II, Singapore 117684 not less than 48 hours 
before the time appointed for the Meeting.

6.  The instrument appointing a proxy or proxies must be under the hand of the appointor or of his attorney duly 
authorised in writing. Where the instrument appointing a proxy or proxies is executed by a corporation, it 
must be executed either under its seal or under the hand of an officer or attorney duly authorised. Where 
the instrument appointing a proxy or proxies is executed by an attorney on behalf of the appointor, the letter 
or power of attorney or a duly certified copy thereof must be lodged with the instrument.

7.  A corporation which is a member may authorise by resolution of its directors or other governing body such 
person as it thinks fit to act as its representative at the Meeting, in accordance with Section 179 of the 
Companies Act, Chapter 50 of Singapore.

perSonal Data prIvaCy:

By submitting an instrument appointing a proxy(ies) and/or representative(s), the member accepts and agrees to 
the personal data privacy terms set out in the Notice of Annual General Meeting dated 3 October 2014.

General:

The Company shall be entitled to reject the instrument appointing a proxy or proxies if it is incomplete, improperly 
completed or illegible, or where the true intentions of the appointor are not ascertainable from the instructions of 
the appointor specified in the instrument appointing a proxy or proxies. In addition, in the case of Shares entered 
in the Depository Register, the Company may reject any instrument appointing a proxy or proxies lodged if the 
member, being the appointor, is not shown to have Shares entered against his name in the Depository Register as 
at 48 hours before the time appointed for holding the Meeting, as certified by The Central Depository (Pte) Limited 
to the Company.
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F J Benjamin (Singapore) Pte Ltd 
F J Benjamin Lifestyle Pte Ltd 
Fashion Dynamics Singapore Lte Ltd
10 science park road,
#04-01 the alpha
singapore science park ii
singapore 117684
tel  : (65) 6737 0155
Fax  : (65) 6732 9616

maLaysia

F J Benjamin (M) Sdn. Bhd. 
F J Benjamin Lifestyle Sdn. Bhd. 
F J Benjamin Luxury Timepieces Sdn. Bhd.
12th Floor, KH tower 
no 8 lorong p ramlee
50250 Kuala lumpur
Malaysia
tel  : (60) 3 2056 6888
Fax  : (60) 3 2031 4405

hong Kong

F J Benjamin (H.K.) Limited 
Fashion Dynamics HK Ltd
island place tower
room 2308, 510 King’s road
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Hong Kong
tel  : (852) 2506 2666
Fax  : (852) 2506 3573

Arcangel Limited
unit 14
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19-21 shing Yip street, 
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Hong Kong
tel  : (852) 2308 4091
Fax  : (852) 2308 4090

taiWan

F J Benjamin (Taiwan) Ltd
5F-9, no 255 sec 1 
Dunhua south road 
taipei 106
taiwan, republic of China 
tel  : (886) 2 2711 8088
Fax  : (886) 2 2781 7880 

china

F J Benjamin (Shanghai) Co. Ltd.
room 1706 shanghai times square 
office Building,  
93 Huai Hai Zhong road
shanghai, China
postal Code 200021
tel  : (021) 6391 8001
Fax  : (021) 6391 8002

usa

F J Benjamin Fashions (U.S.) Inc. 
Arcangel Inc.
70th West 40th street
12th Floor
new York, new York 10018
united states of america
tel  : (1) 212 206 8264
Fax  : (1) 212 206 7771

itaLy

F J Benjamin Italy S.R.L.
Via alessandro Manzoni 39,
20121 Milan,
italy
tel  : (39) 02 6379 3307
Fax  : (39) 02 3674 4444 

uK

Atelier Arcangel Ltd
unit 209
Metropolitan Wharf
70 Wapping Wall
london e1W 3ss
tel  : (44) 207 680 9716 
Fax  : (44) 207 702 2064
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